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Annual Repert & Accounts

INVESTORS IN EUROPEAN
COMMERCIAL PROPERTY

LISTED SINCE 1994

.)
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Shareholders funds of £417 million

EPRA net assets of £503 million

£934 miltion of office properties across London, France, Germany and Sweden

Top UK property company total shareholder return performance in the last 5 years
Strong alignment of interest with shareholders management owns 54%
Substantial cash and tiquid resources available for new investment

Cautiously entrepreneuriat approach to future opportunities

PROPERTY INVESTMENTS BY VALUE

France Germany
25% 20%
Sweden

(Direct) 6%

London —_—
56% Sweden

(Indirect) 3%

GENERATING CASH THROUGH HIGH NET INITIAL YIELD
AGAINST LOW COST OF DEBT
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HOW WE OPERATE

OUR GOAL IS TO CREATE
LONG-TERM SHAREHOLDER VALUE

WE AIM TO ACHIEVE OUR GOAL BY-

> PURSUING AN OPPORTUNISTIC
INVESTMENT STRATEGY

> FOCUSING ON CASH RETURNS
> OPERATING IN DIVERSE LOCATIONS

> UTILISING DIVERSIFIED SOURCES OF
FINANCE

- MAINTAINING A BROAD CUSTOMER BASE
> MINIMISING VACANT SPACE
> IMPQSING STRICT COST CONTROL

» RETAINING A HIGH LEVEL OF LIQUID
RESOURCES
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
= Total Shareholder Return

Am - to provide a TSR of ever 12% p a
aver the medium term

Achievernent — 2008-2012 1354%, or187% pa
compaund

- Effective management of balance sheet

Aim - to sell assets with Lirmnited
growth potential and invest
in high yieiding alternatives

Achievement — 2006 to 2012 £746 millian
of property sales

- Pre-let developments in
Landshut and Grafelfing
Germany are providing returns
onequity of 19 4% and 18 3% pa
respectively

- Administration cost ratio

Aim - to maintain administraiion costs
below 15 (% of net rental income

Achtevement - 2012 15 9%
- 2011 19 4%
- 2010 15 2%

= Occupancy rate

Aim - to maintain an occupancy level
of over 5%

Achievement - 2012 96 2%
- 2011 96 1%
- 2010 %5 7%




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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(pence)
EPRA net assets per share up 17 4% to 1,154 4 pence (2011 983 1 pence)

EPRA net assets up 13 1% to £503 4 million (2011 £444 9 mitlion)
EPRA earnings per share up 0 6% to 65 3 pence (2011 44 9 pence)
Net assets per share up 17 8% to 963 1 pence (2011 817 5 pence)
Net assets up 13 5% to €417 1 millien (2011 £347 5 million}
Earnings per share up 29 3% to 104 0 pence (2011 82 0 pence)
Profit before tax up 48 8% to €56 1 million (2011 £37 7 million}
Profit after tax up 20.4% tc €46 7 million (20171 £38 8 million)

Proposed distribution to shareholders €8 5 mitlion (April 2012
€7 2 million) by way of tender offer buy-back 1:n 446 at 00 pence
equivatent ta 19 é pence per share

Low weighted average cost of debt 3 67% (2011 4 04%)
Adjusted solidity 41 1% (2011 40 5%)
Adjusted gearing $2 7% {2011 109 3%)

Interest cover 3 9 times (2011 2 4 times)

EPRA EARNINGS PER SHARE
(pence)

OTHER KEY DATA

9
9
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Total Shareholder Return { TSR") in 2012 29 7%
Top performer in UK listed property sectar TSR over 5§ years 135 4%
Planning permission gatned at

«  Vauxhall Square (143,000 sq m}
= Spring Mews (20 800 sq m})
Clfford s Inn (3 423 sqm)

s Catena (150 000 sq m)

Portfolio value £934 5 million - up 1 7% in local currencies
Loan to value of property loans 58 8% (2011 62 5%)

Issue of 5 5% €45 million retail bond 2019

Proportion of Government occupiers 39 6%

RECURRING INTEREST COVER

{times)

Occupancy rate 94 2%
Indexation applies to 65% of contracted rent

Liquid resources £224 ¢ million

EPRA NET ASSETS PER SHARE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

PROGRESS ON MANY FRONTS

This has been a successiul year for the Group with continued
progress on many fronts we have gained two significant
planning permissions, reduced the vacancy rate, acquired
properties expanded the sources of our financing ncreased
profits and delivered strong returns for shareholders

OVERVIEW Our tctal shareholder return for the year was 30%
and the annualised return since 2008 has been almaost 19%
compound making CLS the top performing UK listed real
estate share over the last five years

The profit before tax was up 48 8% to £546 1 mullion {2011

£37 7 milion) and EPRA net assets per share increased by

17 4% ta 1,154 4 pence (2017 983 1 pence} EPRA earnings per
share were marginally ahead at 65 3 pence {2011 64 9 pence)

The core fundamentals of our business have remained strong
we have secure income from over 400 customers across four
cauniries a broad range of financing sources from over 20
banks and the capital markets, and high levels of cash and
other iquid resources

The conditions in the financial markets improved during the
secand half of the year as concerns regarding the future of
the Eurozane eased after some decisive measures from the
European Central Bank This led to a strong performance in
the securities markets, even though many fundamental
challenges are still to be addressed in the economy

INVESTMENT PROPERTY PORTFOLIG During the year, the
investment property portfolio in local currency terms and on
a like-for-like basis grew by 1 7% due largely to planning
consents gained on two important sites in London Elsewhere
across the Group values were broadly unchanged Total
acquisitions, all in London, were £13 1 million while no
properties were sold At the year end the total portfolia value
had increased ta £934 5 million (2011 £902 1 mullion)
notwithstanding a negative currency effect of £11 1 million

The Group continues to generate cash from its care
investment portfolio with a high net imtial yield of 7 0% and a
low cost of debt of just 3 67% This spread of 330 basis points
amangst the highast in the listed property sector, 1s a key
factor in our performance

Contracted rental income in the year grew by £1 6 million, or
2 4%, on a like-for-like basis and the rent roll at 31 December
2012 was £48 3 million At a time of rising inflatien, 1t 1s worth
emphasising that 65% of our rents are subject to iIndexation,
and the guality of our income remains high, with 40% from
governments and 29% from magor corporations

We work closely with our customers to understand their
space needs, and having in-house property management
in all our regions ts a key factor in meeting our occuplers
expectations i well-maintained buitdings As an example,
we were able to accommodate the expansion needs of one
of our occupiers by moving thern from one of our London
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buildings to 1,500 sq m in another, and we praovided a full
facilities management service as part of the move This
attention to detail 1s @ matenal reason for our low vacancy
rate, which reduced in the year to just 3 8%, less than half the
benchmark average of over 9% for our type of property

Letting enquiries remain resilient, in particutar in Laondon and
Germany The French economy 15 currently the weakest in
which we invest, and where we are aware of the intentions of
certain occupiers to depart in 2013, we will need to work hard
to replace them The weighted average lease length across
the Groupis 7 2 years, and 4 1 years io first break clause

During the year we acquired a number of high yielding office

properties in Landen, the three most significant of which cost |
£10 8 mution with an average yield of 9 97% and an average |
capital value per sq m of £1,489, which was well below

replacement cost The UK government s imtiatives to improve

the planning system to ease the housing shortage are o be

welcomed and we are actwely exploring the patential for

conversions ot offices to residential for selected elements of

our London portfolio

We completed the development of two pre-tet office buildings
in Germany totalung 7042 sq m to generate an extra €856,000
per annum We secured planning permission on both the
significant applications in Vauxhall In May, we gained consent
{or the student and hotel scheme, Spring Mews, SEi1, where
demolition took place before the end of the year and completion
Is targated for late 2014 The annual net income 1s expected to
he some £2 5 million after a development cost of £50 million
Secondly, in December the major 143,000 sq m mixed-use
scheme, Vauxhall Square, SW8 gained planming permission
We will now progress options and details on this site where
vacant possession 1S available from the end of 2014

Since the year end, we have ganad planning consent for a
prime 3,423 sq m office refurbishment and 500 sqm
residential development at Clifford s Inn, Fetter Lane, London
EC4 which we expect to camplete by the end of 2014

In Sweden Catena AB a Stockholm-listed company in which
we own a 29 9% interest, also secured its planning approval
for a 150 000 sg m rmixed-use development and will likewise,
be advancing iis plans during 2013

RESULTS Profit after tax grew by 20 4% te £44 7 million
(2011 £38 8 mitlion) and sharsholders funds increased to
£417 1 million aftar distributions to shareholders of

£12 6 mullion

The uplift in EPRA net assets per share of 17 4% to 1,154 4
pence (2011 983 1 pence) was after an adverse foreign
exchange effect of B 7 pence, equating to £3 8 mullien, due to
the weaker euro against sterling Net assets per share rose by
17 8% to 963 1 pence (2011 8175 pence) Since 1 January 2013,
sterling has weakened against the eura and Swedish krona




“ With a solid balance sheet, a strong
cash generating operation and a
tangible, medium-term development
programme, we are in an excellent
position

Had the current exchange rates applied at 31 December 2012,
our net assets would have increased by 3 2% or £13 4 miilion,
to £430 5 million, and pro forma EPRA NAV would have been
40 0 pence hugher at 1,194 4 pence Also, since the year end
the corporate bond portfolic has nsen in value by £2 4 million,
equivalent to 5 5 pence on EPRA net assets per share

Recurring tnterest cover was a healthy 3 2 imes {2011 2 6
times) reflecting in particular the Groug s reduced cost of
debt Net debt as a percentage of property loan to value was
58 8% (2011 42 5%)

FINANCING The Group seeks to have a wide variety of
different financing from banks and other debt sources, and
to ring-fence debt against iIndividual properties where
appropriate, a strategy which has served the Group well over
the years This year we weicome two new lenders to the
Group, an Asian bank and 3 German Sparkasse lender, which
brings the total number of banks with which we enjoy an
active relationship 1o 21 This shows that there continue to be
new borrowing sources In the markat, even as athers stop
lending, and to exploit this we typically approach a wide range
of banks for any new financing

During the year we refinanced £95 million of debt with banks
and in September ratsed our second carporate bond, this ime
in London on the relatively new Order book for Retall Bonds
{ORB) It raised £465 millsion, from some 5,000 private invester
bondholders, at a fixed rate of interest of 5 5% for over seven
years This retail bond increased the diversity of our tunding
sources, and was for a longer term and enjoyed additranal
flexibility than traditionat bank debt It alse had the intangible
benefit of raising the awareness of the Group amongst the
private investor and wealth management community We were
only the second listed property company to raise money this
way, which highlighted our abiity to innovate, a further three
listed property companies subsequently issued bonds on ORB
and we are optimustic that this market will offer increasing
choice and sophistication as 1t grows evolves and matures

In addition, in December we signed a new £15 miltion general
facility with one of our existing lenders to finance the
acquisition of new purchases

Our weightad average cost of debt at 31 December 2012 was

Just 3 67% (2011 4 D4%), wath an average loan length of 4 4 years
We continue to believe in a benign interest rate environment and,
theretore, have 73% of our debt at floating rates whilst §7% I1s
protected against interest rate rises, mamly using caps for 40%

The Group s balance sheet 1s strong and we have cash and
other Liguid resources of £224 9 rmillion, excluding substantial
credit facility headroom The Group s portfolio of corporate
bonds performed well during the year with a total return, being
an aggregaie of price changes and income, of £32 5 million,
or 31 4% All bonds met with their respective terms and the
Group recewved around £9 1 million of interest income during

CLS Holdings plc

Annuel Report & Acceunts

the year, corresponding to an 8 8% running yield At the end of
the year, the average annual running yield was 8 2% against
market value and the bonds had a weighted average duration
of 7 4 years

ENERGY EFFICIENCY The extra attention and investment that
the Group has made in this important area 1s paying
dwvidends Driven by our in-house Sustainability Manager,

we have progressed a wide range of measures, including
installing our first photovoltaic panels on the roof of ane of
our London properties [t s pleasing to report that in Londen
we have reduced our gas cansumption by over 25% in each of
the last two years across our pertfolio In our HQ office we
have reduced paper consumption by some 31% in one year
Many etficiency improvements have been behawioural,
together with better use and monitoring aof controis During
the year we have installed over 300 LED lLights

As we share our knowledge with our customers, we are
enhancing our service to them, which can help to retain them
In our properties

DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS During 2012 using our
traditional tender offer buy back of shares we distributed

£7 ¢ million in April and £4 6 million in Sepiember The Board
proposes to distribute £8 5 mullien in Aprit 2013 at a rate of
11n 46 shares at 900 pence per share A circular setting out
the details will be sent to sharehalders with the Annual
Report and Accounts

OUTLOQK In tast years report, | referred to the need for a
credible solution to the Eurozone crisis and a greater supply
of credit to provide a platform far economies to grow There
has been some progress on bath caunts which has lessened
risk and volability but much remains to be done to restore
confidence amongst the business community

Our central expectation Is that growth in the countries in
which we operate will remain volatile but that attractive
opportunities will continue to emerge With a salid balance
sheet a strong cash generating aperation and a tangible
rmedium-term development pregramme, we are In an
excellent position to benefit from any such opportunities

St r t
Executive Chairman

4 March 2013
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CORPORATE OBJECTIVE, BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

A PROVEN STRATEGY

THE BENEFITS OF QUR STRATEGY OF DIVERSIFICATION REMAIN CLEAR WE OPERATE ACROSS FOUR COUNTRIES
WE HAVE A SOLID CUSTOMER BASE OF SOME 400 OCCUPIERS AND WE ARE FINANCED BY 21 BANKS

CORPORATE 08JECTIVE

Our objective 15 ta create long-term shareholder value

which 1s measured through totel shareholder returns and KPi
net assets per share

BUSINESS MODEL

Investments are required to make & high cash-on-cash return  KPI

STRATEGY

We focus on cash returns specialising in predominantly
high-yielding office properties

The cost of debt 15 kept well nelow the net initial yield of the
properties to enhance the return an equity

We invest in modern high quality, well-let properties in good
locatians in selected European cities

Gur investment strategy IS opportunistic 1ts approach
caubiously entreareneurial

Lecal teams are reguired to compete far an allocation of the
Group's capital on a case-by-case basis

We create extra value via developmants when letting risk anc
financing risk have in large part been mitigated and at the
appropriate time In the cycle

We operate In diverse locations

We invest in Lendan, France, Germany and Sweden and in
sterling tne euro znd the Swedish krona

We utilise diversified sources ot finance ta raduce risk

We have 58 loans from 21 lending sources and twa CLS
corporate bonds

Mest progerties are owned by single purpose vehicles ana
financed by non-recourse bank debt In the currency used to
purchase the asset

Usually over 10 banks are approachec for each refinancing
to achieve the most advantageous terms, and no one bank
provides aver 20% of the Group s debt

During periods of low, benign interest rates debt i1s hedgec
using caps and allowed to float at 31 December 2012 73% of
debt was al floating rates

The customer base is diversified but underpinned by a strong
£are Inceme siream

We avoid a heavy reliance on any one customer or business
sactor, and activaly seek rentindexation, we have some 400
customers 39 6% of rental income 13 derived from gevernment
occuplers, and a further 29 3% from major corporations, the
weighted average unexpired lease term 1s 7 2 years, 65% of
rental Income 1s subject to Indexation

We maintain low vacancy rates KPI

In-house local property managers maintain close links with
occupiers to understand their needs

We focus on the guality of service anc accommedation for our
customers

We maintain strict cost contral KP!

We perform as many back office functions as possible in-house,

and meniter our performance against our peer group, our
administration cost per employee and as a percentage aof rents
is ane af the lowesl in the sector

We retain high levels of liquid resources

We operate an in-house Treasury team which manages cash
and carporate bonds te maximise their returns
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST CORPQORATE OBJECTIVE

Anticipating a fall in real estate values, CLS sold 40% of its
property partfolio into an over-heated market between 2004
and 2068

In 2008, the fall of Lehman Brothers and its adverse impact
an the banking sector ted to falls in property values

In 2008/09 whilst virtually all UK lListed property companies
were having to conduct nghts issues, CLS returned cash to
shareholders

Accordingly, in the five years from 1 January 2008, CLS has
provided a total shareholder return of 135 4%, or 18 7% per
annum compound representing the best performance
amongst Its peer group

PERFORMANCE AGAINST OTHER KPIs
See page 2

CLS Holdings pic

Annual Repert & Accounts

TOTAL SHAREHCLDER RETURN OF UK LISTED
PRGPERTY SECTOR COMPANIES 2008-2012
(%}

Source Bloomberg

“ The best TSR performance
within the UK real estate sector
over the past five years "”
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BUSINESS REVIEW

MEETING CUSTOMER NEEDS

The main actmity of the Group 1s investment in commercial
real estate across four European regions London, France,
Germany and Sweden There 15 a particular focus on providing
well-managed, cost-effective offices and property for cost-
conscious occuplers in key European cities

The Group s total property interests at 31 December 2012
were £959 9 millon, comprising the wholly-owned investment
property portfolio valued at £934 5 million, a 29 9% interast

in Swedish listed prooerty company Catena AB valued at

£20 7 mullion and a £4 7 mulbion interest in 14 6% of Cood
Invesiments AB The Group’s Other Investments comprised
the corporate bond portfolio, vatued at £127 3 million at the
year end and smaller equity holdings of £2 4 million

08

PROPERTIES

OVERVIEW At 31 December 2017, the directly held
investment portfolio totalled £934 5 million a like-for-like
annual increase of 1 7% 1n local currencies or 0 5% when
translated into sterling In lacal currencies, the London
portfolio rose by 4 7% and the other portfolios were broadty
unchanged (Germany +0 1%, Sweden -0 3% and France -1 4%}
At the year eng, and excluding Spring Mews, which is under
development, the average caprial value of £2,164 persqm
was close to replacement cost, meaning that the land
element of our investments in key European cities was
minimal, this highlights how competitive the Group can be
In attracting occuplers with cost-effective rents

The contracted rent grew 1n the year on a like-for-like basis by
2 4% n local currencies and at the year end was £68 3 million
This produces a net initial yield of 7 0% on value, again
excluding Spring Mews, and an average rent of just £16% per
sqg m The income stream Is strongly secured as 40% is from
gavernment occuplers and 29% from major corporations and
45% of rents are subject ta Indexation The weighted average
tease length (s 7 2 years or 6 1years to the first break QOver
the next three years, Just 23% of the current rent roll expires
and the rent on these expiries 1s broadly in line wath current
open market rental values

The overall vacancy rate remains low at just 3 8% reflecting
the benefits of active, in-house asset and property
management together with mantaining strong relationships
with our occuplers, working to understand their needs as our
customers

The Group s portfolio spread provides diversification and
protection Inevitably occupier demand will vary year on year
as different economies graw at different speeds As previously
farecast, the lack of new speculative offices in mast of aur
local markets 1s a positive for our portfolio and our ability to
attract occuplers, and this 1s likely to remain the case for the
fareseeable future

Whilst the availability of debt continued to shrink over the tast
12 months (presenting buying opportunities) our extensive
banking contacts meant that we were able to identify new
lenders to the Group including from the Far East

Across the Group the exira focus on sustamnabitity in our
operations and our properties has paid real dividends and
improved energy efftciency Occupiers have appreciated the
cotlaborative approach we have adopted on this sharing
knowledge and this has been a powerful incentive for
occupiers ta stay with the Group The benefits of aur
employing a full-time Sustainability Manager are evident In
the Corporate, Social and Environmental Responsibility
Report on page 20




i@
A particular focus on providing
well-managed, cost-effective offices
and property for cost-conscious

occupters in key European cities "
LONDECN
+ Value €437 5 million
« Group s property Interests 46%
+ Noof properttes 28
« Lettable space 137,753sgqm
*  Netimtiai yield 6 6%
¢ Vacancyrate 23%
«  Like-for-lke valuation uplift 4 7%
+ Government and major corporates  79%
+ Average unexpired lease length B 4 years
¢ Tofirst break 7 6 years

The London division has had another very successful year,
with a significant fall in the vacancy rate and the achievement
of two key planning permissians

It cantinues to be most encouraging to have further reduced
vacancy levels from 4 0% 1n 2017 to just 2 3% This reinforces
the trend referred to last year of occupiers clearly making
decisions not just on price but also towards better managed
and refurbished buildings This s couplad with the clear
benefits of in-house property management For example,
service charges are prepared on our multi-let buildings within
Just three weeks of the year end, giving confidence to
accuplers

During the year, 12,815 sq m became vacant, and we let or
renewed leases with existing occupiers on 15,116 sg m In
particular we let 1 801 sq m at Great West House, reducing
its vacancy to its lowest level for over five years Westminster
Tower Quayside and Falcon House all became fully let in

the year

During the second hatf of the year we acguired three office
buildings Crosspaint House in Wallington near Croydan
(1,943 sq m yieldsng 14 1%}, Gateway Hause in Kennington,
SWE (1,844 sg m yielding § 5%) and Sentinel House Coulsdon
near Croydon (3,411 sgq m yielding 8 9%) in separate
transactions totalling £10 8 millicn before costs This equated
to an average capital vatue of £1 489 per sq m, which was
below replacement cost These transactions were of a size
where competition to buy them was reduced due to other
parties difficutties in finding debt

CLS Hotdings plc

Annual Report & Accounts

MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENT FROPERTIES 2012
(€ millians)

AVERAGE UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM
(Years)

EFFECT OF RENT EXPIRIES
(€ millions)
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BUSINESS REVIEW conTinueD

Significant pregress has been made since January 2012 on
pregressing development ogportunmities from within the
investment portfolio

*  Spring Mews, Vauxhall, SE11 - in May, planning consent
was granted for 3 20,800 sq m mixed-use scheme which
will consist of 400 student bedrocms, and a 93 bedroom
suite hotel together with a 541 sg m community centre
and cafe, £68 sq m of offices and a 245 sq m convenience
store We will also provide a new pedestrian tharoughfare
for the public inking Spring Gardens to Tinworth Street
Demolition has been completed and construction i1s under
way with a target completion in late 2014 The developmant
1s expected to generate aver £5 5 rmillion net income per
annum when complete Detailed discussions are well
advanced with our selected operators for both the hotel
and the student housing

¢ Vauxhall Square, SW8 - in Decernber, and subject to
signing a Section 1046 agreement this 143,000 sq m
mixed-use scheme was also granted planning consent
for 410 private residential apartments, 110 affordable
homes, 22,732 sg m of offices 3,119 sq m of shops and
rastaurants, a 278 badroom hotal and a 123 suite hotel,
359 student rooms and a 50 bedroom new hostel for the
homeless, together with a 3,777 sq m multi-screen
cinema There will also be associated community
facilities zll built around a substantial new public square
The Group will pragress plans during 2013, with a start
date on site expected to be in 2015 on a phased basis
The development cost 1s anticipated to be In excess of
£500 miilion The Yauxhall Nine Elms Opportunity area
has seen significant achievements in 2012, with the
Battersea Power Station s future being secured the
Northern Line extension funding confirmed by the
Government, and construction well under way on the new
United States embassy and on numerous other sites with
substantial pre-sales of residential apartments The
Dutch embassy 1s reported to be coming to the area and
other requirements are emerging The pace of activity
bodes well for Vauxhall Square, which 15 located in the
heart of the arez adjacent te the Vauxhall transport
interchange The VYauxhall Business Improvement District
has had a pesitive first nine months of operation, with a
saries of inimatives which have raised awareness of the
benefits of Vauxhall as a business location, to the
advantage of the Group s holdings in the area

* Clfford s Inn, EC4 - 1n January 2013, planning consent
was gained to comprehensively refurbish the existing
space to create 3,423 sq m of ofnices behind a new
Portland stone fagade with an infill extension and eight
new residential apartments, at a total cost of £10 1 rmullion
The twelve month programme s expected to begin in the
second quarter of 2013

10

Overall the London portfolio increased in value by 4 7%
Spring Mews and Vauxhall Square rose in value by 51 7% in
aggregate, reflecting the effect of their planning gains
Excluding these properties, the London portfolio fell by 0 3%
the effect of the weakening of the high-yielding investment
market was mitigated by cur success in significantly reducing
the vacancy rata of tha portfolio, and by other assat
management initiatives

FRANCE

+  Value £239 6 mithion
+ Group's property interests 25%

¢« No of properttes 26

+ Lettable space 96,244 5qm
« Net inihal yreld 7 7%

*  Vacancy rate 38%

+  Like-for-like valuation fall -1 4%

¢« Governmentand major corporates  59%

* Average unexpired lease length 5 0 years

* Tofirst break 2 4 years

The French economy has been impacted noticeably by the
Eurozone crisis concern over rising soveraign debt levels, and
a presidentizl election year when change was expected GDP
growth was only just in positive territory at 0 2%, with
economists forecasts for 2013 being not much higher

Unsurprisingly this has led some businesses to pause their
investment plans and this, coupled with some struggling
financially, has led to a reduction In new letting enquiries and
a rise In our vacancy rate over the year to from 2 7% twelve
months aga to 3 8% at December 2012 This is still well below
the market average vacancy of 6 5% Take up of offices fell in
bath the Pans and Lyon markets by 4% and 29% respectively

Leases were renewed on 3 596 sg m and whilst new leases
were signed on 4 064 sqm, occuplers vacated 5,202 sqm

In France the property fundamentals are good, with the lack
of new construction pretecting rents and vacancy levels,
especially in Lyon However, we must be prepared for vacancy
tevels to nise If the economy does not grow, as there are mare
lease expines and breaks in our French portfolio in 2013 than
in either of the previous two years At our property in Rueil
Malmaison, to the west of Paris, an occupier departure in
2013 from 2,847 sg m provides an opportunsty to refurbish
and reconfigura some of the commaon areas

The investment market has seen an expected reduction in
volumes of almost 8% in the year, however there were still
aver 30 individual transactions of more than €100 millicn
There are fewer properties being offered for sale and there
are still almast no signs of distress sales in this region The
Group s own investment portfolio fell invalue by 1 4% in local
currency terms largely reflecting the increase in vaids
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GERMANY TOP 10 CUSTOMERS

*  Value £197 4 millian The 106 customers which contribute most rental income
* Group's property interests 20% to the Group account for 41 2% of the rent roll, and
. No of perEI"tIES 16 comprise

s Lettable space 144,991 sg m

s Netimtial yield 7 0%

s Vacancy rate 7 6% LONDON

s Like-for-like valuation uplift 01% 2 The Home Office Government
s (Government and major corporates  49%

* Average unexpired lease length 2 0 years 2 \?Vecletar;t ;f State for Government
s Tofirst break 8 9years Orx ana rensions

>  Cap Germini
BAE Systems

The German ecenomy has demonstrated resiliance with GDP
growth in 2012 of 0 9% and a forecast of 1 5% for 2013, and >
with employment data at an all-time high of aver 41 millian
people and unemployment at only 6 7% In real estate

GERMANY
markets, whilst the volume of new lettings 1n 2012 was lower
than 2011, it was still above the 10 year average at over = City of Bochum
3 million sq m Inevitably, there have been some pauses in 5> EON
decision-making by occupiers but vacancy levels are at therr
ten-year low of 9% and new construction i1s at a five-year low = Branlab
The level of investment increased by some 11% comparad to
2011, to the highest level since 2007 SWEDEN

The Group s German vacancy rate at the year end was 7 4%,
which reflected a long-planned departure in Dacember of an
occupler in Berlin from 3,500 sqg m Current enquiries,
however, are encauraging, notably at the Group s two multi-let
properties in the Munich area, by letting space currently
under offer the vacancy rate would fall to 5 1%

- Vastra Gotaland County Council

= Vanershorg Kommun

FRANCE

= Grand Duchy of lLuxembourg
Ouring the year we completed the two pre-let developments

near Munich on time and budget, let to Dr Honle AG and E ON

Service Plus GmbH, increasing the annual rent roll by

£856,0G60 The value of the German portfolio remained flat in

the year in local currency terms, with the positive effect of the

new developments baing largely offset by the increased

vacancy rate

We continue to look actively for oppartunities in this market
The availability of bank debt 1s maost advantageous in Germany
compared to the Group s other regions

VACANCY RATE HISTORY
{%)

Majcr Carporation

Major Corporation

Gavernment
Major Corporation

Major Corparation

Government

Government

Government
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BUSINESS REVIEW conminued

SWEDEN

= Value £85 4 million
Directly owned

« Value £40 0 million
* Group's praperty interests 6%

* No of properties 1

* Lettabie space 45354 sqgm
¢ Netintial yietd 7 5%

* Vacancy rate 17%

s Like-for-Lke valuation fail -0 3%

¢ Government and major corporates  97%

* Average unexpired lease length 3 5years

¢« Tofirst break 3 S years
Indirectly owned

¢« Valuen Catena £20 7 million
s+ Groups property interest 2%

» Interest in Catena AB 29 9%

&  Value in Cood Investments £4 7 million
s  Group s property interest 1%

* |nterestin Cood investments 16 6%

The Group s property Interests 1n Sweden span two operating
segments Investment Properties and Other Investments

Two of cur Other Investments are equity stakes In assoclates
which invest in Swedish real estatz and as these operate
against the same ecanamic backdrop, they are considered
together with the directly-held Swedish investment properties
in this Business Review

The Swedish econamy continues to perfarm relatively well
with GDP growth in 2013 and 2014 expected to be 1 2% and
2 6%, respectively, low levels of sovereign debt at just 35%
of GDP, and unemployment at 8% Sweden s rising working
age population Is also good for economic growth prospects,
due to its productivity and consumption potential

The directly-owned interest 1s a £5,354 sq m office complex at
Vanersborg near Gothenburyg, called Yanerparken which has
over 98% accupancy The leases to the largest occupier, the
local County Council expire in 2015 and in 2013 negotiations
are expected to begin on {ease renewals Our new £2 3 million
energy centre has been through its first full year of aperation
and 1s performing well The Swedish engineers who designed
the systemn are advising the Group on similar oppertunities in
Landon, most notably at Spring Mews Vauxhall

12

The Group owns 2% 9% in the Stockholm-listed real estate
company, Catena AB, which has one remaining but significant
property in Stockholm Catena secured planning permission
in December far some 800 apartments and 73,000 sq m of
commercial space which can be deliverad over the next few
years The valuation uplift from gaining this permission drove
its contribution to share of profit ot associates after tax to

£5 8 milion, and during the year we also received a distribution
from Catena of £0 6 million At the year end, the market value
of the Group s shareholding was £20 7 million being 2 surplus
of €1 8 mitlion over the boak value, this equates to an extra

4 pence per share on our EPRA net asset value

The Group s 16 6% interest in the residential property
company Cood Investments AB which specialises in holiday
homes on vacation sites Since the Group s initial investment
in January 2012 operational improvements at Coad have
deliverad encouraging resulis with an associate protit aiter
tax of £0 8 million, 1n addition te a dividend of £0 2 million paid
in the year The remaining carrying value of this associate
holding was £4 7 million and future potential 1s significant

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

HEADLINES Profit after tax of £46 7 million (20171 £38 8
milllon) generated EPRA earnings per share of 65 3 pence
(2011 64 9 pence) and basic earnings per share of 106 0 pence
(2011 82 0 pence) Gross property assets at 31 December
2012 were £934 5 million (2011 £902 1 million) EPRA net
assets per share were 17 4% higher at 1 154 4 pence (2011
983 1 pence), and basic net assets per share rose by 17 8%

to 963 1 pence (2011 817 5 pence)

Approximately 40% of the Group s business 1s conducted In
the reporting currency of sterling, around 50% 1s I1n euros,
and the balance 1s in Swedish kronor Compared to last year,
profits suffered as the average rate of the euro was 7 0%
weaker and the krana 1 1% wezker against sterling than in
2011 Likewise at 31 Decernber 2012 the closing rate of the
euro was 2 8% weaker against sterling than twelve months
previously reducing the sterting equivalent value of net assets

EXCHANGE RATES TOTHE £
EUR SEK

At 31 December 2010 11664 10 4828
2011 average rate 11525 10 4091
At 31 December 2011 11987 10 7088
2012 average rate 12332 10 7326
At 31 Decemper 2012 12317 10 5677




STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME At £46 1 mitlion,
rental incame in 2012 was £0 1 mullion less than in 2011

but acquisitions added £1 0 million of rent, and indexation

a further £1 3 million, and 1t was the weakness of the euro
and krona, raducing rent by £2 3 million, which distorted the
underlying strong rental performance of the Group Other
property-related income and net sarvice charge expenses
were In line with last year resuiting in net rental income

ot £62 ¢ millicn being broadly unchanged from last year
(2011 £63 0 mitlion)

We monitor the adrministration expenses incurred in running
the property portfolio by reference to the incame derived from
it, which we calt the administration cost ratio and this s a key
performance indicator of the Group In 2012 we expanded the
property development team in London ahead of gaining
planning consents for Spring Mews and Vauxhall Square and
administration expenses, net of £0 1 msllian capitalised since
gawing the planning consents, increased to £10 0 million
(2011 £9 7 million} As a proportion ot net rental income, the
admunistration cost ratio increased to 15 9% (2011 15 4%),
but would have fallen had the euro and Swedish krona not
weakened against sterling

The net surplus on revaluation of investment properties in the
year was £16 2 mullion (2011 £18 0 mullion) £21 0 millian of
uplift came from the two Londan properties on which we
gamed planning permission, and the ramaining portfolio fell
by 0 5% n local currencies, and by 1 7% after foreign
exchange effects

Finance income of £10 6 million (2011 £12 2 milbian)
comprised predominantly interest income of £9 1 mullion
(2011 £8 4 millian} from our corporate bond portfelio This
partfolic aporeciated in value strongly, particularly in the
second half of the year, producing a total return in the year
of 31 4%, and ended the year with a value of £127 3 mullion

The fall in short-term interest rates, the switch fram fixed
rates to floating rates for certain loans, the terminaticn in
Deacember 2011 of an onerous Interest rate swap and the
weakness of the euro and Swedish krona relative to sterling,
all cantributed to the fall in the interest expense of bank
loans, debenture loans and unsecured bonds in the year to
£24 2 mitlion (2011 £29 2 million) These effects were anly
partially offset by the increase in barrowings particularly the
1ssue of the retaill band With significantly fewer dervative
liabilities than in 2011 the movement in the fair value of
dervatives in 2012 was only £1 5 muilion {2011 £18 & million)

The majarity of the £5 8 mullson (2011 £3 0 millign) share of
results of associates was contributed by Catena AB This
contribution reflecied Catena s planning consent gained on
its large development site in Stockholm

CLS Holdings plc

Annual Report & Accounts

MOVEMENT IN RENTAL INCOME 2611 v 2012
(£ million)

PROFIT AFTER TAX
(£ mithior)

13

0041104 Anadosy 540122.1] 3y} Jo poday

23UBUIAA0G

SUPDIDY

UGNBLLIOJU| 13430




BUSINESS REVIEW conTinuen

MOVEMENT IN EPRA NAY 2012
(Pence per share)
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Once again this year the tax charge was below the weighted
average rate of the countrias mwhich we do business, due
primarily to the accruing benefit of indexation on the onginal
cost of UK properties

EPRA NET ASSET VALUE At 31 December 2012 EPRA net
assets per share (a diluted measure which highlights the fair
value of the business on a tang-erm basis) were 1 154 4 pence
(2011 983 1 pence), a rise of 174%, or 171 3 pence per snare
The main reasen for the increase was underlying profit after tax
which added 89 4 pence The two tender offer buy-backs in the
year added 8 5 pence per share, the fair value mavement on
investment properties added a further 37 1 pence and the
valuation uplift of the corperate bonds added 45 0 pence,
against this, exchange rate variances reduced EPRA net assets
per share by 8 7 pence




CASH FLOW, NET DEBT AND GEARING At 31 December
2012, the Group s cash balances of £97 & rrillion were

£42 3 mitlion hugher than twelve months previously, manly
due to £31 ¢ mallion from operating activities and net new
loans of £69 2 million, less capitat expenditure of £26 é million,
£12 6 million of distributions to sharehelders, and net
investments in corporate bonds of £19 8 milkion

Followtng the success of the issue of a SEK 300 million
unsecured bond in Stockholm in 2011, 1n September 2012

the Company 1ssued its first retail bond on the Order book

for Retail Bonds (ORB) of the London Stock Exchange This
£65 mullion unsecured bond attracts a coupon of 5 5% and
expires In December 2019 It was taken up by some 5 000
tnvestors extending the constituency of investor stakeholders
and thereby raising the profile of the Company £101 3 milbon
of bank debt excluding overdrafts was drawn or refinanced
i the year, including £78 5 milbon at our largest asset,
Spring Gardens €121 9 million of loans were repaid in 2012,
including £11 7 of amortisation of loan batances in the narmal
course of business At 31 December 2012 the weighted
average unexpired term of the Group s debt, excluding
overdrafts, was 4 6 years

Adjusted net gearing, which 1s based on EPRA net assets was
92 7% at 31 Dacember 2012 {2011 109 3%) and the weighted
average loan-to-value on borrowings against properties was a
comfortable 58 8% (2011 62 53%) Adjusted sclidity was 41 1%
(2011 40 5%)

The weighted average cost of debt at 31 December 2012 was
3 67% one of the lowest In the property sector and down
from 4 06% twelve months earlier The fall was primanly
caused by cancelling a long-term swap and a fall in short-
term interest rates With bank financing now more expensive
than when certain existing loans were taken out, refinancing
them as they fall due will probatly gradually increase the
average cost of debt of the Group

In 2012, our low cost of debt led to recurning interest cover of
a comfortable 3 9 times (2011 2 6 times)

CLS Holdings plc

Annual Report & Accouns

MOVEMENT IN LIQUID RESOURCES
(£ mullion)

MOVEMENT IN GROSS DEBT
(€ million)

DEBT PROFILE
{E million)
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BUSINESS REVIEW caonminuen

DEBT HEDGING

Fixed rate
27%

Float
Floating or;tls?g
rate -

capped
unhedged pfa%
33% —_—

DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS PAID AND PROPOSED
{€ miltion)
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FINANCING STRATEGY The Group s strategy is to hold its
Investment properiles predominantly in single-purpose
vehicles financed primanly by non-recourse bank debt in the
currency usad to purchase the asset In this way credit and
Liguidity risk can most easily be managed, around 75% of the
Group s expasure to foreign currency s naturally hedged, and
the most efficient use can be made of the Group s assets
Bank debt ordinanly attracts covenants on loan-to-value and
on Interest and debt service cover None of the Group s debt
was In breach of covenants at 31 December 2012 The Group
had 54 loans across the partfolio from 21 banks, a debenture,
a zero-coupen loan and two unsecured bonds None of the
loans at 31 December 2012 had been securitised by any
lender, and the Group had no exposure to the CMBS market

To the extent that Group borrowings are not at fixed rates the
Group s exposure to interest rate risk 1s mitigated by the use
of financial dervatives, particularly interest rate swaps and
caps The Board believes that interest rates are likely to
remain low longer than the forward interest curve would
imply and, therefore, its policy 1s to atlow a majonity of debt to
rematn subject to floating rates To mitigate the risk of interest
rates in¢reasing mare sharply than the Board expects, the
Group enters into interest rate caps At 31 December 2012
27% of the Group s borrowings were at fixed rates or subject
{0 Interest rate swaps, 40% wers subject to caps and 33% of
debt costs were unhedged

The Group s financial derivatives - predominantly interest rate
swaps and interest rate caps - are marked ta market at each
balance sheet date At 31 December 2012 they were a net
lability of £8 4 million (2011 £7 3 mullion)

SHARE CAPITAL AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS
At 1 January 2012, there were 49 756 714 shares in 1ssue,

of which 4,803,103 were held as treasury shares In April,

£7 9 million was distributed to shareholders by means of a
tender offer buy-back of 11 42 shares at 735 pence per share
which cancelled 1,070,324 shares In September, a further
£4 6 millen was distributed by means of a tender oifer
buy-back of 11n 746 shares at 805 pence per share, which
cancelled 577,411 shares Consequently, at 31 December
2012, 43,305,875 shares were lisied on the London Stock
Exchange, and 4,803,103 shares remained held in Treasury

In April 2013 the Directors intend to put to a General Meeting
of the Company a proposal to issue a tender offer buy-back
of 11n 44 shares at 900 pence per share If aporaved by
shareholders this could lead to the purchase and cancellation
of 941 432 shares and a distribution to shareholders of

£8 5 million being anincrease of 7 7% on the same time

tast year and distributions paid and proposed for the year

of 13 1 mutlion (2011 £12 3 million) an increase of 6 7%




TOTAL RETURNS TO SHAREHOLDERS

In addition to the distributions and share cancellations
assaclated with the tender offer buy-backs, shareholders
benefited from a rise in the share price in the year frem

590 pence on 31 December 2011 to 745 pence at 31 December
2012 Accordingly, the tctal sharehalder return in 2012 was

29 7% In the five years to 31 December 2012, our total
shareholder raturn of 135 4% which represented a compound
annual return of 18 7% represented the best performance in
the UK listed real estate sector

Since the Company listed on the London Stock Exchange in
1994, 1t has outperformed the FTSE Real Estate and FTSE
All Share indices, as set out In the graph below The graph
includes dividend payments made by other companies, since
1998, CLS had not made dwvidend payments to shareholders,
but instead has made capital distributions through tender
offer buy-backs, none of which has been accounted for in
the graph

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our performance against our key performance indicators is
set out on page 2

CLS Holdings plc

Annuzl Repert & Acceunts

SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT 2012

Scurce Bloomberg

TOTAL RETURNS TO SHAREHOLDERS 1994-2012

Source Datastream
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CURRENT DEVELOPMENTS

BASED IN VAUXHALL
INVESTING IN VAUXHALL

CLS S PRIMARY BUSINESS COMPRISES A CASH-GENERATIVE INVESTMENT
PROPERTY PORTFOLIO WHEN THE TIME 1S RIGHT, THE GROUP TAKES THE
OPPORTUNITY TO ADD VALUE TO THE BUSINESS BY UNDERTAKING DEVELOPMENTS
AFTER MITIGATING THEIR RISKS THROUGH PRE-LETTINGS OR PRE-SALES

VAUXHALL TRANSPORT
INTERCHANGE
VAUXHALL BRIDGE © TUBE, RAIL & BUS
o NEW US EMBASSY °

+
HOUSES OF
PARLIAMENT

REGENERATION PLAN

VAUXHALL

LONDON
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Vauxhall Square, London SW8

A 143,000 sq m mixed-use development scheme

In December 2012 we gained planning approval, subject to finalising a

s 106 agreement, for a 143,000 sq m mixed-use development scheme In
Vauxhall The site 1s at the heart of the Vauxhall Nine Elms regeneration area,
adjacent to the Vauxhall transport interchange and close to the new

US Embassy The scheme includes 520 new homes, consisting of

410 private homes in two 50 storey towers and a further 110 affordable
homes, 22,732 sq m of offices, 3,119 sg m of shops and restaurants,

a 278 bedroom hotel and a 123 bedroom suite hotel a 50 bedroom new
hostel for the homeless, 359 student rooms a 3,777 sg m multi-screen
cinema and associated community facilifies, and a substantial new public
square and public realm improvements

Caonstruction of the scheme 15 expected to begin in 2013 and the Group
will now progress discussions on phasing, design, pre-letting and funding
optians The cost of the scheme Is expected to be tn excess of £500 mullion

Since July 2012 the Vauxhall Nine Elms regeneration area has taken vast
strides forward funding has been committed by Central Gevernment for
the extension of the Northern Line, Battersea Power Station has been
acquired by Malaysian investors whao sold over 800 apartments within two
weeks of launch, over 350 apartments have been sold at Riverlight some
two years ahead of completion, Ballymore has sold over 500 apartments
two years ahead of completion, the US Embassy site has begun construction,
and the Duteh Embassy 1s reported to be relocating close by

CLS Holdings ple

Annual Repart & Accounus

Spring Mews, Lendon SE11

A 20,800 sq m mixed-use development scheme

in May, planning censent was granted for a

20,800 sq m mixed-use scheme which will consist
of 400 student bedrooms, and a 93 bedroom suite
hotet, together with a 361 sg m community centre
and cafe, 448 sq m of offices and a 245 sgm
convenience store We will also provide a new
pedestrian thoroughfare for the public linking
Spring Gardens to Tinworth Street Deenclition has
been completed and construction i1s under way, with
a target completion inlate 2014 The deveiopment s
expected to generate over £5 5 million income per
annum when complete Detailed discussions are
well advanced with our selected operators for both
the hotel and the student housing
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CORPORATE, SOCIAL & ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

RESPONSIBILITY

The Group s strategic and cultural commitment to a
sustainable ethos of corparate, social and environmental
responsibility 1s known to all staif The Directors actively
encourage Its integration into the business by employees
across the Group as explained further in this document

The Group aims to ensure that it 1s compliant with all
legislation including environmentatl legislation, in those
countries (n which it operates

SUSTAINABILITY

The Group seeks to promote sustainability through the
business and wia its Green Charter To achieve this, we have
assessed our key impacts which are in the following afeas

Corporate - respons:bility to customers, shareholders,
employees and the wider economy

Soctal - welfare of neighbours, the local community,
cccuplers, contractors and staft

Enwvironmental - commercial buildings in the UK are responsible
for approxirnately 20% of the nation s greenhouse gas emissions

Tne Group 1s categonised as an mtensive energy user thus
qualifying for participatian in the CRC Energy Efficiency
Scheme (CRC)

The Board ecknowledges the Group s impact on society and
the environment, and through i1ts actions seeks to either both
minimise and mitigate them, or to harness them in order to
affect positive change in keeping with the Group s "Green
Charter” In order to achieve this, the Group employs a
dedicated full-time Sustainability Manager

SUSTAINABILITY GREEN CHARTER

The Group seeks to pramote sustainability through affecting
continuous Improvement through the influence it can have on
the environment the local commumnity, the economy and its
key stakeholders in 2011 the Greoup adopted 1ts Green
Charter, under which 1t undertakes

* to mitigate our impact an climate change by reducing our
carbon footprint

* to be accountable for our performance relating to climate
change by communicating our successes and reporting
performance regularly against measurable indicators

* to make the most effective use of the duties powers and
resources available to mimmisa the impact of the Group
and Its customers on the environment and to enhance the
environment, community and economy wherever possible

20

+ to monitor aur progress by carrying out regular
assessments against the key actions ot the Green Charter

s touse our Green Charter toinfluence the behaviour of
our partners customers, suppliers and other stakeholders,
to promote and further the principles on wnich 1t 1s based

Key Performance Drivers

In erder to measure and assess our success effectively
against our Green Charier we have idenbfied the following
Key Performance Drivers on which we will report annually
For 2013, these comprise

+ Corporate

- Disclosure of the Group s environmental performance
to the GRESB sustainability benchmarking scheme

- Increase our engagement with occupiers by prowviding
portal access to automated and instantaneous energy
consumption data

s Soaal

- Continue to improve our reputation and value to local
stakeholders through community engagement

- Increase and broaden our support for young people
aspiring for a carzer relating to the built environment

*  Environmental

- Further reduction in paper use throughout the
business by 10% compared to 2012

- Further reductian of CO, emissions by the UK
portfalio of 5%

- Use of the SKA framework and assessment scheme
for fit-outs




Landshut 4

Our recently completed development of Landshut Phase 4 near
Munich has received a prestiglous Silver Award fram the German
Sustainable Building Council CLS was asked by a lang-term
custamer to build a new wing for up to 400 staff, which provided
at least a 10% saving in its occupation costs The building
cansists of 5,400 sq m ar lettable space, including a canteen for
approximately 1,700 employees

Energy saving features incorporated into the Landshut Phase 4
design included

* Integration into a district heating network

+ Natural ventilation reducing the energy consumption
signiticantly

+ Motion sensor activated lighting throughout the property
¢ Ahigh level of thermal insulation
»  Passwe solar protection through, for example exterior blinds

¢ Preservation of existing trees and planting of new ones to
shade the bullding further reducing the cooling required
over the summer

* Prefabricated elements used extensively during
construction which saved energy, manpower and materal,
restricting the construction period to only eight months

CLS Holdings plc

Annual Repart & Accounts

Buspace Studios

In August 2012 we nstalled a 43 75kWp (296m?)
photovoltaic array on the roof of Buspace Studios
In London and totally replaced the lighting in the
common parts with energy efficient fittings
Buspace has become our first bultding with zero
net emissions for the common parts, reception and
management office This Is the first time a building
in our Londen portfolic has made use of renewable
energy, and we intend to replicate 1ts success
elsewhere across the portfalio
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CORPORATE, SOCIAL & ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT conminuzn

2012 ACHIEVEMENTS

In 2012 we have made significant progress against our
corporate social and environmental goals, and we have
accomplished the tollowing

Corporate

»  Successfully completed the first internal cycle of a plan-
do-check-act approach to the Group Green Charter

* Completed the 2012 GRESB sustainability benchmarking
survey, the Group was assessed as ranking 8th out of an
undisclosed peer group of 18 competitars

* Introduced fortnightly reporting to the Board by the
Sustainability Manager with enhanced reporting every
quarter

* Anew bonus scheme directly binking executive bonuses
to Company performance in line with the proposed BIS
regulations 1s to be proposed at the AGM in April 2013

Sacial

« Prowided matenal support to the Vauxhall One Business
Improvement District ( BID ) commitiee in launching a
BID in Vauxhall to benefit the local business envirarment

* Collaborated with Vauxhall Gardens Community Centre
an additional 54 sq m (9%) was added to the design for
thair new purpose-built demise targer than the original
design, advised the Centre on how It can generate
revenue In order to be able to fund further community
services and operate more sustatnably

» Prowided expenence and research project opportunities
1o five young people ranging from a sixth form work
experience to a post-graduate placement

* Introduced a Give As You Earn scheme to aliow employees
ta donate maney to chanty through their salary

* Raised our total chantable contributions for the year to
£9 955 (2011 £2,731) by events such as a Christmas
Jumper Day, the Property Triathlon and the Land Aid Fun
Run, and by direct denations from the Company

Environmental

¢ Our Cliffard s Inn refurbishment 1s part of the pre-
commercial trial of the BREEAM for Refurbishments
sustainability assessment scheme

¢ The SKA sustainability assessment method 1s being used
for the refurbishment of three floors and the reception at
Falccn House

¢ Like for like reduction in energy usage from 2011 of 4%
for electncity and 25% for gas

* reduced waste going to landfill frem the UK partfolic to
zero

+  Our paper recycling scheme at all of the Group s cffices
has continued e reduce waste, saving the equivalent of
88 trees and 10,120kg of CO,

22

EMPLOYEES

The Dsrectors believe that the Group s employees are a source
of competitive advantage, and recognise that continued and
sustained improvement in the performance or the Group
depends on its ability to attract, mohvate and retain
employees of the highest calibre The Group I1s committed to
the principle of equal opportunity in employment, and seeks
to ensure that no employee or applicant 1s treated less
favaurably on the grounds of gender marital status, race,
cclour, nationality, ethnic or natienal origin, religion, disability
or sexual orientation nor 15 disadvantaged by conditians or
requirements, including age Umits which cannat be Justified
objectively Entry inte, and progression within, the Group are
solely determined by the application of |ob criteria, persanal
aptitude and competence These policies have waorked
effectively throughout the period

It 1s the Group s policy to apply best practice in the
employment of disabled people Full and fair consideration 1s
given both to every application for employment irom disabled
persons whose aptitude and skills can be utilised In the
business and io theirtraining and career development This
includes, wherever pessible the retraining and retention of
staff who became disabled during their employment

All staff are informed of matters concerning thair interest as
employees and the financial and econemic factors affecting
the business Estzblished management communication
channels have been supplemented by direct presentations
to staff by Directors to explain develapments of particular
significance

HEALTH & SAFETY

It1s a pnmary concern of the Beard that the Company
manages Iis activities in such a manner as to ensure that
the health and safety of its employees, customers, advisors,
contractors and the generat public are not campromised

As part of this process the Company emgloys specialist
accredited advisers t¢ advise onall health and safety matters
relating to the Group The Company also operates a Health
and Safety Commuttee, which covers issues related to the

UK partfolio and its employees Chaired by the Company
Secretary, the committee compnses House Managers, Asset
Managers and adwvisors, and reports to tne Chief Executive
Officer The Chief Executive Officer also attends Health and
Satety Committee meetings Alt regions maintain and follow
local health and safety policies and repart issues to the Chief
Executive Officer This reporting process has worked
effectively threughout the year anc has ensured ongoing
compliance with health and safety legislation




BUSINESS ETHICS

The Board recognises the importance of the Company s
responsibilities as an ethical employer and views matters

in which the Company interacts with the community both
soclally and econamically as the responsibibity of the whole
Board Following the enactment of the Bribery Act 20100
July 2011, the Company implemented a suitable policy which
further demonstrates 1ts commitment to business ethics

CLS Holdings ple
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EPRA SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE MEASURES

TABLE 1 - SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE - ABSOLUTE MEASURES

The tables below outline the performance indicators which
the EPRA Sustainability Reporting Committee has identified
as being core to sustainability and which should be reported
by members where data 1s avadable

The oifices at B4 Bondway ("HQ ) have been reported
separately as they are the largest centre of the Group s
operations

Broad issue Type Sustainabilily Performance Measure Ha London France Units
Energy Total energy consumption fram grid electricity 142,874 10,850,627+ 3436,0917 kWh
Tetal energy consumption from district heating - - 442,734 kWh
and cocling
Total energy consumptian from fuels - 10140957 444 980 kWh
Greenhouse gas Total direct emissions - 1842 g2t Metric
emissicns tonnes CO.e
Total indirect emissions 85 5472 3141 Metric
tonnes COze
Total indirect emissions from district heating - - 1011 Metric
tonnes CO,e
Water®* Total water withdrawn by scurce Data not 42 285 24,042 m3
available
Waste Total weight of waste by disposal route 7 £Z recycled 254 96 energy Data not Metric
from waste, avallable tennes
244 26 recycled

Percentage of waste by disposal route 100% recycled 51% energy Datz not Proportion
from waste, available by weight
49% recycled (%)

TABLE 2 - SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE - INTENSITY MEASURES
Intensity
Sustainability Performance Measure HQ Londen France indicator
Building energy intensiy 182 79 35957 114 207 kWh/m?/year
Greenhouse gas intensity from building energy 95 90 129 54 14 81 kg CO;/m?/year
Building water intensity Unknown 072 070 mi/m?fyear

TABLE 3 - SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE - REFRIGERANT GASSES
Sustainahility Perfarmance Measure HQ London Unit
Refrigerant gas emissions 2318 105,006 Kg CO,
(equivalent)
Refrigerant gas emissions Intensity 24 18 Kg CO,
(equivalent)
/m?fyear

" Of which 100% 1s supplied on renewable energy tanfls This figure includes 4 215 958 kwh consurmed by occupiers but which flows through a landlord s meter
The Group s annual operating consumption was 4 634 499 kwh

All water s currently supplied wa the mains utlity supply

t Common parts and centrally provided neating ventilation and arr conditicning only
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

THERE ARE A NUMBER OF POTENTIAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES WHICH COULD HAVE A
MATERIAL IMPACT ON THE GROUP S PERFORMANCE AND COULD CAUSE THE RESULTS TO
DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM EXPECTED OR HISTORICAL RESULTS THE MANAGEMENT AND

MITIGATION OF THESE RISKS ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

Risk

Areas of impact

Mitigatran

PROPERTY INVESTMENT RISKS

Underperformance of investment
portfelio due to

+  Cyclical downturn in property
market

* |nappropriate buy/sell/hcld
decisions

Cash flow
Profitability

Net asset value
Banking covenants

Senior management has detailed knowledge of core
markets and experience gained through many market
cycles This experience 15 supplemented by external
advisors and financial models used 1n capital allocation
decision-making

* Changes in supply of space
and/or occupler demand

Rental income
Cash flow
Vacancy rate

Void running costs
Bad debts

Net asset value

The Group s property portiolio I1s diversified across four
countries The weighted-average unexptred lease term s
7 2 years and the Group s largest occupier concentration
1s with the Government sactor (39 4%}

¢ Poor asset management

Reantal income
Cash flow
Vacancy rate

Void running costs
Property values
Net asset value

Property tearns proactively manage customers to ensure
changing needs are met, and review the current status
of all properties weekly Wntten reports are submitted
bi-weekly to senior management on, inter sha,
vacancies lease expiry preilles and progress on rent
reviews

OTHER INVESTMENT RISKS
Corparate bond investments
* Underperformance cf pertfclio

+ Insolvency of bond 1ssuer

Net asset value
Liguid resources

In assessing potential investments, the Treasury
department undertakes research on the bong and its
Issuer, seeks third-party advice, and recerves legal
advice on the terms of the bond where appropriate The
Treasury departmant and Executive Directors receive
updates on bond price movements and third party
market analysis on a daily basis, and reports on
corparate bonds to the full Board on a bi-weekly basis
The Executive Directors formatly review the corporate
bond strategy monthly

DEVELOPMENT RISK

Fallure to secure planning
permission

Abortive costs
Reputatian

Planning permission 1s sought only after engaging in
depth with all stakeholders

Contractor solvency and availability

Reduced

development returns

Cost overruns

Loss ot rental revenue

Only leading contractors are engaged Prior to
appeintment, cantractors are the subject of a due
diligence check and assessed for financial viability

Downturn in investment or
occupational markets

Net asset value

Developments are undertaken only after an approprate
level of pre-lets have been abtained
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Risk

Areas of iImpact
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Mitigation

FUNDING RISKS

Unavaitability of financing at
acceptable prices

Cost of barrowing
Ability to Invest or
develop

The Group has a dedicated Treasury department and
relationships are maintained with same 21 banks
thus reducing credit and liquidity risk The exposure
on re-financing debt +s mitigatad by the lack of
concentration in maturities

Adverse inferest rate mavements

Cost of barrawing
Cost of hedging

The Group s exposure to changes i prevailing market
rates is largely hedged on existing debt through interest
rate swaps and caps, or by borrowing at fixed rates

Breach of borrowing covenants

Cost of boerrowing

Financial covenants are monitored by the Treasury
department and regularly reported to the Board

Foreign currency exposure

Net asset value
Profitabiiity

Property investments are partially funded in matching
currency The difference between the value of the
property and the amaunt of the financing 1s generally
unhedged and monitored an an angoing basis

Financial counterparty credit nisk

Loss of deposits
Cost of rearranging
facilities
Incremental cost
of borrowing

The Group has a dedicated Treasury department and
relationships are maintained with some 21 banks thus
reducing credit and Liquidity risk The exposure on
re-financing debt 1s mitigated by the lack of cancentration
In maturities

TAXATION RISK

Increases in tax rates or changes to the

basis of taxation

Cash flow
Profitability
Net asset value

. The Group moenitors legislative proposals and consults

external advisors to understand and mitigate the effects
of any such change

POLITICAL AND ECONGOMIC RISK
Break-up of the Euro

Net asset value

Euro-denorminated liquid resources are keptto a

Profitability minimum Euro property assets are largely financed with
euro borrowings
Economic downturn Cash flow The Group s property portfolic 1s diversified across four
Profitability countries The weighted-average unexpired lease term 15

Net asset value
Banking covenants

7 2 years and the Group s largest customer concentration
1s with the Government sector (3% %) 65% of rental
Income !s subject to indexation

GOING CONCERN

The Group will not have adequate
working capital to remain a going
concern for the next 12 months

Pervasive

The Directors regularly stress-test the business model
to ensure the Group has adequate working capital
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SCHEDULE OF GROUP PROPERTIES

COST-EFFECTIVE OFFICES

LONDON
at 31 December 2012 Tenure Areasqm Use
London EC4
Clifford s Inn, Fetrer Lane Freehold 3,042 Offices
London SE1
Westminster Tower 3 Albert Embankment Freehold 4 458 Offices |
Fielgen House, 28/42 Londan Bridge Street® Freehold 776 Offices ‘
London SWé
Quayside, Willam Marris Way Freenold 3 044 Offices
London SW8
Cap Gemini House, §5 Wandsworth Rd & 72/78 Bondway & 22 Miles Street Freenold 10,427 Officesfindustrial
80/84 Bondway Freehold 1422 Offices
84 Bondway SWE” Freehold 851 Offices
18/20 Miles Sireet reencld 152 Qffices
101/183/107 Wanasworth Road Freehold 488 Residential
131/137 Wandsworth Road Freehold [T Offices
London SE11
35 Albert Embankment Freehold 527 Leisure
Western House 5 Glasshouse Walk Freehold 389 Community Centre
Gateway House Milverton Street Freehold 1844 Cffices
Spring Gardens, Tinworth Street Freehold 19,519 Dffices
Spring Mews, Tinworth Street Freehold - Under construction
Spring Gardens Court 79 Vauxhall Watk Leasenold 115 Residential :
§2/%8 Vauxhall Walk Freehold 415 Oifices i
Landon WC1
2144236 Grays Inn Road Freehold 26 255 Offices
London WC2 '
Ingram House, 13/15 John Adam Street Freehold 1,308 Offices/Residentizl |
London NW10 :
Chancel House Neasden Lane Fraehold & 940 Offices
London Wé
Cambridge House 100 Cambridge Grove Fraehcld 6,712 Offices
London W10
Buspace Stucios, 10 Conlan Street Freehold 3,006 Studies/Workshoros/

Difices
Brentford
Great West House, Great West Road TW8 Freehold 14,239 Offices
Coulsdon
Sentinel House 1463 Brighton Road, CRS Freehold 34 Offices
Hounslow
115/123 Staines Road TW3 Freshold 2.353 Offices
125/135 Staines Road TW3 Freehald 2 340 Offices
New Malden
Cl Tower High Street KT3 Frezhold 7 343 Offices
Apex Tower, High Street, KT3 Freehold 10,217 Oifices/Retal
Wallington
Crosspaoint House 28 Stafford Road, SMé Frezhold 1 943 Cifices
Ipswich
Zest Nightcluo Princes Street, IP1 Freshold 1951 Leisure

137,753

* Share of joint venture
1 Owner-occuprad
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FRANCE AND LUXEMBOURG
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at 31 December 2012 Tenure Area sqm Use
Panis
48 Rue Croix des Peuits Champs, 75001 Freehold 1,800 Offices
20/22 Rue des Petits Hétels 75010 Freehold 2080 Offices
18 Rue Stephensan 75018 Freehold 563 Offices
Le Sully 115t 2 Rue Gecrges Bizet 78200 Mantes la Jolie Freehald 2,758 Offices
95/97 Bis Rue de Beilevue 92100 Boulogne Freehold 277 Cffices
16 Ruea de Solferino, 92100 Boulogne Freehold 1020 Offices
58 Avenue General Leclere, 92100 Boulogne Freehotd 525 Qffices
Le Quatuer 168 Avenue Jean Jaures $2120 Montrouge Freehold 4 958 Offices
2 Rue rerre Timbaua, 92230 Genneviliiers Fraehold 3,118 Gffices
23/27 Rue Pierre Valette, 92240 Malakoff Freehotd 10778 Cffices
l.e Sigma Place de Belgique, 90 Bld de LEurope, 92250 la Garenne-Colombes  Freehold 4,559 Offices
Le Debussy, 77/81 Baulevard de la Republique, 92250 La Garenne-Colombes Freehold 4,158 Offices
42 Avenue Foch, 92250 la Garenne-Colombes Freehold 181 Qffices
120 Rue Jean Jaures, 92300 Levallois Perret Freehold 4 029 Offices
56 Boulevara de la Mission Marcnand 92400 Courbevole Fraehold 2784 Cifices
53/55 Rue du Capitaine Guynemer 92400 Ceurbevoie Freehold 21N Offices
7 Rue Eugene et Armand Peugeot, 92500 Rueil-Malmaisan Freehold 1,357 Offices
Lyon
Forum, 27/33 Rue Maunice Flandn, 45003 Freehold 6,804 Dffices
0 Aubigny, 27 Rue de la Viilette, 45002 t easehold 4,314 Dffices
Rhore Aipes, 235 Cours Lafayette 69004 Freehold 3147 Offices
Park Avenue 81 Boulevard de Stalingrad Villeurbanne 69100 Freehold 4 249 Offices
Front de Parc 109 Boulevard de Stalingrad, 69100 Leaseheld 5,223 Offices
Lille
946 Rue Nationale, 55000 Freehaold 2,951 Offices
La Madeleine, 105 Avenue de la Republique, 59110 Freehold 4 L4g Offices
Antibes
Le Chorus 2203 Chemin de St Claude Nova Antipolis G64600 Freehold 4 334 Offices
Luxembourg
14 Rue Eugene Ruppers, L2453 Freehold 3,658 Offices
94,244
LONDON FRANCE
Al
LiLLE
WEST END LUXEMBOURG
ALD
BRENTFORD PARIS
VAUXHALL
Mé A2
NEW MALDEN LYON
INNER M25
ANTIBES
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SCHEDULE OF GROUP PROPERTIES conminues

GERMANY

at 31 December 2012 Tenure Area sqm Use

Munich

BrainLAB, Kapellenstrasse 12, Feldkirchen D-85622 Freehold 16,313 Offices

Planegg, Maximitian Farum, Lechhamer Strasse 11/15 0-82152 Freehold 13 814 Offices

Grafelfing Lachhamer Schlag 1 Freshold 83527 Offices

Rudesheimer Strasse 9 D-80684 Freehold 2,588 Difices

Unterschleissheim Lise-Meitner-5trasse 4, 0-857146 Freehold 2 958 Difices

Hamburg

Fangdieckstrasse 75, 75a, b, 22547 Freehold 13053 Offices

Jarrestrasse 8/10 D-22303 Freehold 5 949 Dffices

Merkurring 33/35 D-22143 Freehold 5.405 Dffices

Harburger Ring 33, D-21073 Freehold 3,330 Offices

Frohbcsestrasse 12 0-22525 Frashold 1993 Dftfices

Berlin

Rudowerchausee 12, D-12489, Adlershofer Tor Freehold 19 992 Offices/Retail

Bismarckstrasse 105 & Laibnitzstrasse 11/13, Charlottenburg reehold 4045 Difices

Bochum

Hans-Bockler-Strasse 19, £44787 Freehold 24 828 Difices

Dusseldorf

Schanzenstrasse 7o, D-40549 Freehold 3 Q%5 Rasidential

Landshut

1 3 5E on Allee Rader-Jackl-Strasse & 1 Kiemn-Pauli-Strasse Freenold 14 054 Offices

Suderhastedt

Dorfsirasse 14 25727 reenold 1,185 Nursing heme
144,991

SWEDEN

at 31 December 2012 Tenure Areasqm Use

Vanerparken

Lasarettat No 2 4/8 Vanerparken, Yanersborgs Kemmun Freehold 45 354 Offices/Education/

Residential/Leisure/
Hoszital
45,354
Total Portfolio at 31 December 2012 424,342
GERMANY SWEDEN
SUDERHASTEDT
HAMBURS STOCKHOLM
VANERPARKEN
BERLIN
BOCHUM
DUSSELDORF GOTHENBURG
LANDSHUT
MUNICH
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

RENTAL DATA

Gross rental Net rental Contracted Contracted Vacancy

Incame for incame for Lettable rent at ERY at rent subject rate at

the year the year space year end yearend  taindexation year end

£m £€m sqm £m £m £m %

Landon 275 268 136,504 291 274 54 23%
France 185 185 96,244 187 178 187 3 8%
Germany 13¢ 131 144,991 141 165 141 7 4%
Sweden &2 45 45,354 &4 £ 7 &4 1 7%
Total Portfolio 461 629 423,093 68 3 45 4 (¥ 3.8%

Note a further £3 8 million of London cantracted rant will be subject to annual indexation from 2015

VALUATION DATA

Valuation movernent in the year

EPRA True

Market value Foreign Net topped up net equivalent

of praperty Underlying exchange imhal yreld™  anitial yeld® Reversien Over-rented yield

£m £m £m % Yo 9 % %

London 4375 198 - & 6% 6 3% 30% 11 4% 6 9%

France 235 ¢ (39) (6 8) 7 7% 7 3% 08% 9 6% 7 1%

Germany 197 4 Qi (53) 7 0% & 6% 0 9% & 0% 5 0%

Sweden 4G 0 (02) 08 7 5% 71% 2 6% 14 7% 9 4%
Total Portfolio 9345 16 2 (1M1 7 0% & 8% 1 9% 10 1%

(1) Based on contracted rent less non-recoverable service charges and befare adding purchasers costs to investment property values if based on passing rent net
imtial yield would be 4 8%

(2) Based on contracted rent less non-receverable service charges and after adding purchasers costs te investment propertyvalues If based or passing reat
EPRA net imitial yreld woLld be 6 5%

LEASE DATA
Average lease length Passing rent of leases expiring in ERV of leases expiring in
Year After Year After
Ta break  To expiry Year 1 Year 2 Jte 5 year 5 Year 1 Year 2 Jtal year 5
years years £m fm £m £m £m Em £m £m
Lendon 76 84 21 12 69 189 22 13 65 )
France 24 50 09 17 55 106 08 14 50 9%
Germany 29 g0 04 16 44 75 03 15 43 73
Total Partfolio 41 72 3.6 45 216 384 35 42 195 35.4
RENT BY LEASE LENGTH RENT BY SECTOR
Vacant Other
38% Qver 10 years 18 8% Government
26 T% Finance 39 8%
38%
Under T
5 years Sto10 P Business
41 8% years 2 Services
I 27 7% 18 4%

Manufacturing
10 3%
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

fer the year ended 31 December 2012

The Directers present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year endad 31 December 2012
The Chairman s Statement, Business Review and Corporate
Governance Report form part of this report and should be read
In conjunction with it

PRINCIPAL ACTIVATIES

The principal actiities of the Group during the year wers the
investment in, and the development and management of
commercial properiies in Landon France Gerrnany and Sweaden
and in ather invesiments

REVIEW OF BUSINESS

The group statemeant of comprehensive Income tor the year (s set
out on page 48

A review of resulis for the year the Group s objective business
model and strategy applied to the business model the principal
risks and uncartainties facing the Group and the prospects for the
future are set out within the Chairman s Statement Business
Rewview and Property Portfolio on pages 4 t0 29 and are incorporated
Into this report by raference These also Incluce analysis using key
performance indicators and any other infarmation required to fulfil
the requirements of the Business Review

Details of use by the Group of financial Instruments are set out In
the Business Review on pages 8 to 17 and in note 25 to the group
financial statements Risk management objectives are also
detailed in note 25 to the groco financial statements

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company are set out below and changes to
the comopasition of the Beard during the year can be found in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 33 to 38

The statement of Cirectors remuneration and their interests in
shares and share options of the Company are set out In the
Directors Remuneration Report on pages 3% to 45 Related party
transactions are shown in note 35

Biographical details of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors
are set out below

Executive Directors

Sten A Mortstedt, aged 73 15 Executive Chairman of the
Company He began his career in 1962 with Svenska
Handelsbanken in Stockholm and wathin three years nad formed
a property investment partnership In 1968 he was appointed
Managing Director of the Mortstedt family property company
Citadellet AB which was floated on the Stock Exchange in
Stackholm in 1981 The company was sold in 1985 fcr a price five
times higher than the introcuction price which was at that time
the largest property dezl recorded in Scandinavia

Since 1977 he has been involved in es.actishing and running
property Interests In the UK Sweden and France He established
CLS sn 1987 and has been Executive Chairman since he took the
Company ta a Listing on the main market ot the London Stack
Exchange in 1994

in addition to his focus on property, he has been commercially
active In a number of other investment areas He has seen a2
number of the compantes in which he has invested through to
successful stock exchange listings or trade sales

He runs his global interests from his residence in Switzerland

30

E Henry Klotz aged 48, was apponted Executive Vice Chairman
on 1 January 2011 having praviously been Chief Executive Officer
from May 2008 He jeined the Group 1n 1999 with responsibility for
the management of the Swedish cperation and more recently was
involved In the setting uo of the German civision and sourcing
new business opoortunities for the Group He s a qualified
engineer and economist

On behalf of CLS he 1s Non-Executive Chairman of Catena AB

a Nordic real estate company quoted on the Stackholm Stock
Exchange 1n which CLS holds aninterestin 29 9% of its issued
share capital Fe s also Non-Executive Chairman of Bulgarian
Land Development Plc in which CLS holds an interest in 48 3%
of its 1ssued snare capital a Non-Executive Otrector of Nyheter 24
a Swedish on-line news and meaia business in which CLS owns
an interest in 20% of 1ts 1ssued share capital a Non-Executive
Director of Note AE a technology company quoted on the
Stockholm Stock Exchange, 1n which CLS holds an nterest in

8 5% of its 1ssuec share capital ang a Non-Executive Director ot
Ceod Investments AB, a Swedish camp site operator, in whicn
CLS holds an interest of 15 64% cf its 1ssued share capital

Richard J 5 Tice aged 48, joined the Company in 2010 as Deputy
Chiet Executive Officer anc was appointed Chief Executive Officer
on 1 January 2011 He has over 25 years experience in
internationzl property and was joint CEQ of the Sunley Grouz plec
for 15 years until 2006 when he arranged a shareholder exit prior
to the market downturn in 2007 He was then Managing Partner
of ms own boutiqua firm speciglising in real estate deot For three
years until October 2009 he was alsc a non-executive airecter
then Chairman of AIM-listed South African Broperty Oppor-unities
plc He has been a non-executive director of two other listed
campanies His property experience covers commercial and
residential investment as well as development together with
banking hedging debt restructuring and distressed debt trading

John H Whiteley, aged 54 joined the Cempany in 2009 as Chief
Financial Officer He has over 20years experience in the real
estate sector he was previously Finance Officer at Doughty
Hansan & Co Real Estate, and for ten years was Finance Director
of Great Portland Estatas plc a company listed on the Loncen
Stock Exchange He spent nine years with Ernst & Young after
qualifying as an accountant with Spicer & Pegler He 1s a member
of the Finance Committee of the British Property Federaticn and
a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants

Nan-Executive Directars

Malcolm € Cooper aged 53, joined the Board in 2007 and 1s the
Senior Indegendent Director, Chairman of the Aueit Commuttee
and a member of the Remunerateon Commutiee He 1s Global Tax
& Treasury Directer of National Gnd olc where he has worked for
various predecessar campanies since 1991 Previously he warked
for Andersen Consulting He has a first in cure mathematics from
Warwick Unversity, 15 a qualified accoun-ant and 1s a member of
the Assaciation of Cerporate Treasurers

Joseph A Crawley, aged 53, joined the Board 1n 2008 He s a
Director of Kitewooa Estates Limiied, a property investment and
development company active in London and south-east Encland
and has over 20 years experience of the central London property
market He was previously employed by CLS for a number of years
and was invelved In the development of the Spring Gardens site




Christopher P Jarvais FRICS aged 57, joined the Board in 2008 and
15 Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a8 member of the
Audit Commuittee He nasan M A from Cambridge Unersity and 1s
a Partner of Jarvis & Partners, a boutique real estate consultancy
which he established in Berlin in 1994 Previously he was Managing
Directar of Richard Ellis Germany where he established the firm s
Frankfurt and Berlin offices His firm has acted as development
partner for the HRO Group in Germany

H 0 Thomas Lundgvist aged 48, joined the Board in Novernzer
1990 and was Finance Director of the Campany until 1995, when
he tecame a Non-Executive Directer He was Vice Chairman fram
24 November 2009 until 1 January 2617 Prior to joiming CLS

Mr Lundgwist worked for the ASEA-Brown Boveri Group (ABB)
and rrom 1983 for Svenska Finans International part of Svenska
Handelsbanken Group where he was a board member

Jennica Mortstedt, aged 28, joined the Bearc in May 2010 and 1s
the daughter of Bengt Mortstedt, a founding member and major
shareholder in the Company She has nine years experience In
the hatel iIndustry ana nas a degree n International Business and
Hascitality from Ecole Hoteliere de Lausanne, Switzerland

Brigith Terry aged 49 joined tne Board n August 2011 She nas
over 35 years experience In the mternational sanking and
property Industries and was a bank director responsible for the
internatienal commercial property loans business at
Wurttembergtsche Hypotheken-bank AG and then Hypo Reat
Estate Bank International AG {now part of Deutsche
Pfancbriefbank AG) until 3¢ June 2007 Brigith Terry 1s a qualified
public notary In Germany and 1s now retired from banking

Thomas J Thomsaon, aged 62 joined the Board 1n 2001 &s
Executive Vice Chairman and Acting Chief Executive and was
made Chief Executive in 2004 He became a Non-Executive
Oirector in 2006 and served as Non-Execuitve Vice Chairman
from 2006 to 2009 and Company Secretary from 1983 to 2001 and
from 2008 to 2009 He 1s a gualified solicitor and joinec the Group
as General Counsel in 1954, having been a partner with Taylor
Walton Solicitors for many years

As explained in the Corporate Governance Report on page 35,
all Directors will be subject to annual re-zalection at the Annual
General Mzating in accordance with the UK Carporate
Governance Code

The Executive Chairman recommencs the re-election of the
retiring Directers at the Annual General Meating, given their
performance and cantinued imperiant contribution to the
Cempany The Semor Indepencent Non-Executive Directer
recommends the re-clection af the Executive Chairman

DIVIDENDS

In lieu of paying cash dividends 1t 1s the Comcany s policy te make
districutions oy way of tender otfer buy-backs

The final distribution for 2011 as sat aut in a Circular dated

16 March 2012 for the ourchase of 11n 42 shares at 735 penca
per share was completed on 27 April 2012 K returned £7 § million
to sharehclcers, equivalent to 17 5 pence per share

The intenim distnibutien for 2012 as set out in a Circular datad
24 August 2012 for the purchase of 11n 76 snares at 805 pence
per share was completad on 26 Septemnber 2012 It returnad

£4 & mallion to shareholders, equivalent to 10 & nence per share

A final distrioution for 2012 will be put to sharehelders in March
2013 for the purchase of 1 1n 44 shares at a price of 300 pence per
share which, if approved, will return a further £8 5 million to
shareholders, equivalent to 19 4 pence per share

CLS Holdings plc
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PURCHASE OF THE COMPANY'S SHARES

As cescribed above and under the relevant autharity granted at the
2012 Annuat General Meeting, duning the year the Company made
twa tender offer purchases totalling 1 647,735 ordinary shares at
acost of €125 millon Of these 1,070,324 ordinary shares were
purchased an 27 April 2012 at 735 pence per share and 577 411
ordinary shares were purchased on 24 September 2012 at 805
pence per share Tnese shares were subsequently cancelled

There were no further purchases of the Company s own shares

The Diractors wilt continue to keep under review whether to make
tender offer purchases and market purchases of \he Company s
shares if they are in the best interests of shareholcers by reference
to the cash resources of the Company and the discount of the
market price of the Company s shares to the nat asset value

A resaluticn will be groposad at the 2013 Annual General Meeting
ta give the Company autherity to make market purchases ef up to
4,330,587 shares along with an additional resolution enakling the
Company ta undertake tender offer purchases subject to set
parameters, thereby reducing the administrative burden on
shareholders of having to hold General Meetings mare than once
a year Any market purchases or tender offer purchases during
the year will not exceed 4,330,587 shares in aggregate

The aggregated authonity for the purchase of the Company s awn
shares that remained valid at the year end, foliowing the tender
offer purchases and market purchases that took place during the
year, was in respect of 2,847,625 orcinary sharas

SHARE CAPITAL

Changes in share capital are shawn in nate 26 ta the group
financial statements At 31 December 2012 and at the date of this
report, the Company s 1ssuad share capital consistec of 48,108 79
ardinary shares of 25 pence each, of which 4,803,103 shares were
held as treasury shares and 2t of which ranked pan passu

At the date of this report, the total number of voting rights in
CLS Holdings ple 1s 43,305,876, being the number of shares in
1ssue excluding treasury shares The rights (including fult details
relatinc to voting) obligations and any restrictions on transfar
relating to the Company s shares as well as the powers of the
Directors are set out In the Company s Articles of Association

At 31 Decamuer 2012 the Company operated two ermployee
share schemes the 2005 Company Share Cption Plan (C50P)
(an Inland Revenue Approved Scheme), and the Company s
Unapproved Share Option Scheme (USCS) There were options
over 300 GO0 ordinary snares autstanding under these schemes
at the year end and as at the daie of this repor- (2011 300,000
ordinary shares} Upan a change of control opiicn holcers under
these scnemes have directly exercisable nghis Details of
outstanding opticns under these schemes are shown on page 44
of the Remunerauon Report

Detasls of the Directors interasis in shares are shown In the
Remuneration Report on page 45

PROPERTY PORTFOLIC

Avaluation of all the prooerties in the Group as at 31 December
20712 was carried cut by Lambert Srith Hampton for London,
Jones Lang Lasalle for France Colliers International for
Germany, and CB Richard Ellis for Sweden, which produced an
aggregate market value of £934 b mitlion (2014 £302 1 million)
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DIRECTORS' REPORT continuen

for the year ended 31 Decembar 2012

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corcorate Governance Statement, prepared n accordance
with rule 7 2 of the FSAs Disclosure and Transparency Rules 1s
set aut on pages 33 to 38 anc forms part of this repert

EMPLOYEES, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL ISSUES

The Group s policies on empleyment, environmental and sccial
issues, including charitable donations, are summarised in the
Cerporate Social and Environmental Responsibility Report on
pages 20 to 23 No political donatians were made duning 2012

INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND INDEMNITIES

The Company nas arranged insurance cover 10 respact of legal
action agamnst its directars and officers The Company has
granted indemnities to each of tha Directars and other senior
management, uncapped 1n amount but subject to applicable law

In relation to certain losses and Liabilities which they may incur in
the coursa of acting as directors or empleyzes of the Company or

one or more of its subsidiaries or assocla.es

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY

The Group agrees paymant tarms with its suppliers whan it
anters into binding purchase contracts and seeks to camply with
the payment terms whenever it 1s satisfied that the supplier has
provided the goads or services in aczordance with the agreed
terms and canditions At the year end Group trade craditors were
owed the equivalent of 19 days purchases based on the year as
awhole (2011 20 days) The Company had no trade craditors
(2011 nil)

AUDITOR
A resclution 1o reappoint Delontte LLP as aucitor to the Campany
will be proposed at the forthceming Annual General Meeting

2013 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2013 Annual General Meeting will be held on Wednesday,
17 April 2013 The notice of meeting including explanatory notes
ior the resolutions to ce proposec will be costed to sharenolders

32

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR
Each Direztor has confirmed at the date of this raport that

* 5o far as they are aware, there Is no relevant audit
information af which the Group s auditor I1s unaware, and

« they have taken all the sieps that they cught ta have taken as
a Dirzctor in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Group s auditor 1s
aware of that information

This canfirmatian 1s given and should be iterpreted in
accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2004

GOING CONCERN

The current macro-economic conditions have created e number

of uncertainties as set out on pages 24 and 25 The Group s

business activities and the facters likely to affect its future

development and performance are set out in the Business

Review on pages € to 17 The financial position of the Group its ‘
Liguidity positicn and berrowing facilities are described 0 the ‘
Business Review and in notes 23 and 25 of the group financial

statements

The Oirectors regularly stress-test the business madel to ensure

that the Group has adequate working capital and have reviewad

the current and projectec nnanzial positiens of the Group taking

Into account the repayrment profile of the Group s loan portfolio

and making reasanable assumptians about future tracing

performance The fhirectars have a reascnatle expectation that

the Company and tne Group have adegquate resources tc continue

in operational existence for the foreseeable future and, therefore

they continue to adopt the going concarn basis in preparing the

annual repart and accounts i

Company Secretary
4 March 2013




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CHAIRMAN S INTRODUCTION

CLS Holdings ple

Annual Report & Accoynts

The Board has overall responsibility for corparate governance and 1s accountable to the Company s shareholders for good

gavernance

As a Board, and under my Chairmanship, we are committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance which best fits
the Group Your Board has worked hard during the year on governance matters and recognises that through an effective structure
of systems and controls that defines authority and accounianility throughout the Group risks sre appropriately managed and
controlled whilst still promating entrepreneurial benaviour anc ensuring a successiul business

We have werked hard duning the year 10 address cerain governance Issues surrouncing executive remuneration and we thank
our largest sharenolders for their constructive comments wnich we have taken on board 1n shaping our remuneration policy

Corporate Gavernance Is a key driver to the success of 2 listed company but no two businesses are the same and no two boards
are the same Different governance structures develop and evolve aut neither shoulad be considered to be substandard Whilst
some might say tnat “he Chairman of a listed campany should not hold exacutive powers, and be incependent upon
appeintment , as Executive Chairman and founding shareholoer my interests are strongly aligned with all other stakeholders,
which ensures that the Group succeeds in its business strategy and cantinues to look to the future with optrmism

During the Board s evaluation process we noted the Code s requirements regarding Board composition [t has always been my belief
that an effective Board should have members wno nave a detailled knowlecdge of the company s business and its relationships so
that there can be effective challenge and searching questions asked of the Executive Directors From 2 governance persoective

| consider this to be more benencial than & Board comprising a number of indepenaent Non-Executwes wha cannct possess such
in-depth knowledge and whose competence as custodians of the shareholders interests is unpraven | thank our long term

shareholders for sharing this view

Sten Mortstedt
Executive Chairman

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

The princioal corporate governance rules which applied to the
Company in the year under review were those set out 1n the UX
Carporate Governance Coae puclishad oy the Financial Reporiing
Council ¢ FRC ) in June 2010 the UK Financial Services Authority
{ FSA ) Listing Rules and the FSAs Disclosure and Transparency
Rules The Board notes the revised UK Corporate Governance
Code issuad in September 2012 {(the Code ) and has decided to
adopt it for the year under review where practicable

The Board fully supports the principles of good governance as set
out in the Cede, which 1s publicly available cn the FRC s website
{www frc org uk)

The Code contains a number of acditional requiraments
applicabla to FTSE 350 comozanies At the date of this report
the Company 1s not a constituent of the FTSE 350 however, in
demonstrating Its commitment to good corporate gavernance
the Board has adopted a number of these requiraments, as
explained below Save as identifieg and explained below, the
Board considers that throughout 2012 it compliec with the Main
Principles and the supparting principles as set aut in Section 1
of the Code

LEADERSHIP
The Role of the Board

The Board, which mat four times during the y2ar s responsible
to the snareholders of the Company for the strategy and future
development of the Group and the management of Its resources
The Board s primary abjective 1s 1o add value to the assets of the
Group by identifying and assessing business apportunities as they
arise and ensuring that associatedyisks are denttfied, monitered
and controlled The Board has a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to 1t for decision Matters reserved for Board
decisions include identifying strategic long-term objectives and the
capital structure af major transactiens The implementation

of Board dectsians and the day-tc-day operaitons of the Group are
delegated to the Executive Directors

Strategy

irateqy 1s determined after hawing taken due recard of relevant
forecasts, and demestic and international developments The
views of sharehclders are sought by the Executive Directors and
are racaorted back to the Board The Board 1s also appraised of
the views of sharehelders analysis and potential investors by the
Company s acwisers
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conmnued

Perfarmance Monitoring

Group and divisicna!l performance cudgets and quarterly
financial forecasts including nat assets and cash flow projections
are formally reviewed by the Board cn a quarterly basis In
addition the Executive Directors monitor cash flows and the
performance of the investment porifolio weskly

Conflicts of Interest

The Company s Articles of Association contain pracecures to deal
with Directers confucts of interest The Board considers that
these have oceratecd effectively during the year

Meetings

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings during the year s
set aut below

Meetings

attended/eligible to attend

Sten Mertstedt L4
Henry Klotz 414
Ricnard Tice Lik
Jehn Whiteley LIk
Malcalm Cooper L4
Joseph Crawley Lk
Cnristopher Jarvis LI
Thomas Lundgvist Lf4
Jannica Moristedt Lfd
Brigith Terry Lfh
Thamas Thomson ¥4

In addition to attending Board meetings senior management
meet reqularly to discuss management ssues relating to the
Group both farmally and infermally

Insurance

The Company has arranged insurance cover in respac* of legal
action against its directors and officers The Company has
granted indemnities to each of the Directars and other senior
axacutives uncapped 1n amount but subject to applicable law in
relation to certain losses and liaoilitres which they may incur in
the course of acting as directors or employees of the Company or
of one ar more of Its subsiaiaries or asseociates

Oivision of Responsibilities

There 1s a divisien of respansibilities between the Executive
Chairman, who 1s responsible for the overall strategy of the
Group the Executive Vice Cnairman wno supparts the Executive
Chairman, and the Chief Executive Officer whg 15 respansible for
implamenting the strategy anc {or the day-to-day running of the
Group The Chief Executive Qfficer 1S assistad by the senier
management team The Board has approved a wnitten statament
of the dmision of responsibilities between the Executive Chairman
and the Chief Executve Officer
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A separate statement on the resconsibilifies of the Executive Vice
Chzairman and his role alongside the Executive Chairman and
Chiaf Executive Officer has been raviewed by tha Board

The Campany does not comply with provision A3 1 of the Code, as
the Executive Chairman was not independent on aopointment

There have been no significant changes {o the commitments of
the Executive Chairman during the year

Non-Executive Directars

Mr Caoper 1s the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director and
he 15 available to shareholders who do not wish 1o approach the
Executive Chairman the Executive Vice Chairman or the Chief
Executive Officer acout a Camopany matter

During the year the Executive Chairman cenferred with the Non-
Executive Directors without the other Executive Directors present
A formal meeting of the Non-Executives took place during the
year, without the Executive Directors or tne Chairman present,
and at which a tharough review of the perfarmance of the
Executive Chairman took place

A formal meeting of the Non-Executive Directars and the
Executive Chairman took place dunng the year to discuss the
performance of the other Executve Directors and the
periormance of the Beard as a whole

The Beard was satisfied with the experience expertise and
periormance of 2ach board member they continue to add
significant value to the operaticn of tne Comgpany through ther
cambined “nowledge and experience and exercise abjectvity In |
decision-making and proper control of the Company s business

EFFECTIVENESS

Composition of the Board

The Beoare comprises four Executive Directars including the
Executive Chairman, and seven Non-Executive Directars, three
of which the Board has determined to be independent for the
purpeses of the Code

Their blographies can be found on pages 30 and 31

The Board 1s assisted by tne Audit and Remunszration Commitiees
the Terms of Reference for whicn can be obtained from the
Cempany Secrelary

Independence

Guizance 1o the Cede recommends that for FTSE 350 companies
at least half the Boare excluding the Chairman should comprise
indecendent Non-Executive Directors As the Company was not a
constituent of the FTSE 350 and had tnhree independent nan-
executive directors 1twas comoliant in the year with orovision

B 12 whicn states that companies outside the FTSE 350 should
have two Independent non-executive directors

The Boara has determuned that, uncer the Code Guidance, Bnigith
Terry Malcolm Cooper and Christopher Jarvis were independent
in character and Judgement and that there were no relationships
or cireumstances which could matenzlly afiect or interfere with
the exercise of their independent judgement




The Board further determined that under the Code Guidance,
four Nan-Executive Directors Joseph Crawley, Thomas

Lundguist Jennica Mortstedt and Thomas Thomsan, were not
independent Mr Lundgwist has servad on the Board for more “han
nine years Miss Mortsteat is the miece of the Executive Chairman
and Mr Lundgwist 15 the Vice Chairman of the Sten Mortstedt
Famy and Charity Trust Mr Crawley has a close family tie with
the Exacutive Chairman by way of marnage Mr Tnomson has
served on the Board for maore than nine years fram the date o7 his
first election

Appointments to the Board

The Board considered the setting up of a separate Nomination
Committee, as recommended oy the Code but due to the size and
nature of the Company, decided that this function was better
carried out by the Executive Chairman and other Directors Non-
Executive and Executive, as appropriate for each appaintment
Given that there 1s no formal Nomination Cammittee the
Campany I1s nat compliant with provision B 2 1 o7 the Code

Following its annual board evaluation and having had regard to
stakeholder feedback the Board reviewed its balance of skitls
knowledge and experience [t considerad the composition of tha
Baard now had the necessary balance the Group required

Diversity

The Board reviews the balance of skills knowledge and
experience on the Board reqularly Its policy with regard to gender
1s such that it will continue to make changes to its compesition
irrespective of gender or any other form of discrimination and to
appoint the best candidate to the post

No appointmants were made during the periad under review and
therafore no external consultancy was retained

Board Evaluation

During the year, the Board undertoak 1ts annual performance
evaluation survey ted by the Senior Independent Director, with
assistance frem the Company Secretary The evaluation was
based on an extensive quastionnaire which addressed three key
areas meambership of the Board Board performance and Board
operatton The guestionnatre enabled the Directors to score
performance in each of these key arezs and alsc provided an
opportunity ta raise any other issues outside of these The
canfidential responses were compiled inta a non-attributable
repart by the Senior Independent Directer and previced to the
Executive Chairman

From the results of this year s evaluation, the Directors
cansicerad that the doard and its committees were working
etfectively and that there was a gooc mix of personalities, skills
and axperience Thaywere pleased with the way in which the
Executive Chairman led the Board and had concluded critical
strategic decisions which had benefited the Group

The key themes arising from this year s evaluation, which

will form an action plan for 2013 are succession planring,

a separate meeting set aside to discuss future strategy an
annual meeting to form part of the {ast Board meeting of

the year with anly the Nen-Executive Birectors and the Executive
Chzirman present and greater communication with key
employees

CLS Holdings plc

Annual Report & Accounts

In addition following the camprehensive performance review

of the Executve Chairman that took place at the Non-Executive
Directors meeting, the Senior Independent Director subsaquently
fed the resuits back to the Executve Chairman

The Board notes provision B 4 2 of the Code, requiring an
externally facilitated evaluation for FTSE 350 campanies every
three years As the Company 1s not a constituent of the FTSE 350
this provision does not apply butthe Board has considerad such
an evaluatien Due to the prohibitive cost of an externally
facilitated evaluation ana the current structure of the Board

the Company intends to continue to undertake an annual
performance evaluation survey internally

Information, Suppart and Development

Board members are sent Board packs in advance of each Board
and Committee meeting and senior exacutives aitend Board
meetings to present and drscuss their areas of speciality In
making commercial assessments the Directors review detailed
plans including financial viability reports which, among other
things detail the impact of prooesals on rerurn on capital return
an cash and the Ukely impact on he income statement cash
flows and gearing

Directors are able to ebiain independent professional advice at
the Company s expense and have access to the services of the
Company Secretary They are given appropriate training and
assistance on appaintment to the Board and later, if and wnen
required

The Company offers all Directors he opportunity to update their
skills and knowladge, and farmilianity with the Company in arder
to fulfil their role on the Board During the year members of the
Board have attended seminars an,inter alia executive
remuneration and the responsibilities of directors In addition
meetings with senior managers within the Company have been
arranged tc further familiarise Non-Executive Directors with the
Company As part of Ms Terry s induction process, she meat with
the Head of Praparty in each of Lendon France, Germany and
Sweden

Re-election

Under the Articles of Asscciation which can be amended by a
special resolution of tne sharehalders, the Board has the cower
to apooint directors and where notice 1s given signad by all the
other directars to remove a director from office

All Directors are subject to election by sharehclders at the first
Annual General Meeting following their appointment Provision
B 7 1 of the Code requiras all directors of FTSE 350 companies
to seek re-election by shareholders annually Asitis nota
constituent of the FTSE 350 this goes not apply to the Company,
but nevertheless the Board has implementad this provision
Accordingly all Directors will be seeking re-election at the
farthcoming Annuat General Meeting ana therr details are
contained in the Oirecters Reporton pages 30 and 31
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conminueD

The terms and condttions of aopointment of Nen-Executive
Directors are set out in a letter of acpointment which provices for
their removal 1n certain circumstances 1ncluding under 51468
Cempanies Act 2006 Their letters of appointment alsa set out
what Is expected of them and the time expected for them to meet
their commitment Non-Executive Directors are expected to serve
two three-year terms, althcugh the Boarc may invite them to
serve for an additional period, subject to & ngorous review The
terms of appointmeni of the Non-Executive Direciors can be
obtained an request ta the Cornpany Secretary

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board 1s required *o present a fatr, balanced ang
understandable assessmeant of the Cempany s position and
prospects, which are explained in this Annual Report

The Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee to moruter the
formal and transparent arrangemants for its corperate raparting
and risk management and Internal control principles and for
malntaining an acpropriaie relationship with the Company s
Auditer

Full details of the Committee s wark are given in the Auvdit
Committee’s Report on pages 46 and 47

Risk Management and Internal Controi

The Company has internal centrel and risk management systems
in ptace for the Company s financial reperting process and the
preparatian of the group accounts It is reviewed and
recommended by the Audit Committee in the first instance, and
then by the Board as a whole on an annual basis

It 15 the Company s aim ta manage risk anc *o control its business
and financial affairs econemically, eficiently and eifectively so as
to be able to exploit profitable business cpportunities in a
disciplined way, avaid or mitigate risks that can cause loss
reputational damage or business fallure and enhance resilience
ta external events The Board acknowladges that the Directors
are respensible for the Group s system of internal control and risk
management and has established proceduras which are designed
to provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement
or loss Thesa procedures have operated for the entire financial
year and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts

The Directors recogrise that such a system can only provide a
reasonable and not absoluie assurance that tnhere has been no
material misstatement or loss

The key elements ot the orocess by which the systern of internal
contral and nsk management 1s monitored are as follews

36

Internal Controls

The Company has an established framework for internal financral
cantrols, wnich s reqularly reviewed by the executive
management and the Audit Committee who update the Board on
its effectiveness

The Boarc 15 responsible for the Company s overall strategy for
approving budgets ana major tnvestment decisiens, and for
deterrmining the financial siructure of the Group

The Audit Commuttee assists the Board in the discharge of its
duties regarding the Group s financial reports ana provides a
direct ink hetween the Board and the Company s Auditor through
regular meetings

There 1s &n establisned crgarisational siructure wnich has clearly
defined lines of reporting and responsibility The Group has in
place control processes in relation to all aspacts of its financial
dealings, such as the authorisatien of banking transactions,
capital expenditure and treasury investment decisions

The Greup has a comprehensive system for budgeting and

planning wheareby quarterly and annual budgets are prepared |
monitered ana recorted (o the Board at each meeting Three- |
yearly rolling cash flows are updated and distributed to the

Executive Directors on a weakly 8asis to ensura the Group has

sufficient cash resocurces for the short and medium term

Set out on pages 6 ta 715 the deseniption of the Group s operations
and the strategy which it employs .0 maximise returns and
minimise risks

Risks

In Line with the most recent Audit Committee Guidance the risks
which the Group faces are reviewed in Board and executive
meetings on an angaing basis throughout the nnancial year

Each businass area maintams a process to ensure that key rnsks
are \denufiad evaluated managec and reviewed aporopriately
This process I1s also apolied at Board level tc major business
decisions and significant strategy implementations Furthermare,
a fortnughtly property activity portfolio update 1s circulated to the
Board wnich identifies key business risks developments and
oppartunities Addrtional risk management procasses, which
include health and safety and enwironmental risk management
are employed within the husinesses

As identified and discussed oy the Board the Company s key
risks the aress which they impact and how they are mitigated are
descrited on pages 24 end 28




REMUNERATION
The Remuneration Commiitee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee which
develops the Company s policies an executive remuneration and
sets the remuneration nackages of indwicual Executive Directors

Full details of the Committee s work are given in the
Remuneration Report on pages 39 ta 45

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company values its dialogue with botn institutional and
private investors The Board s primary contact with institutionat
shareholders i1s through the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer wha have regular meetings with institutional
shareholders They also undertake analyst presentations
{ollowing the Company s half-yearly and annual financial results,
and investor seminars during the year They are supportec by a
financial relaticns adviser and two corporate brokers, zll of whom
are in regular contact with institutional and retail shareholders
and analysts A report of feedback from each institutional investor
meeting I1s prepared by the broker which crganised it, and a
report of unattributed feedback from analysts on analyst
presentations Is prepared by our financial relations advisar, and
all such reports are circulated te the Board Coverage of the
Company by analysts 15 alsc circulated to the Board Consaquently,
all Directors develop an understanding of the views of institutianal
shareholders and commentators

investor seminars and analyst presentations, including those
fellowing the announcement of half yearly and annuat financial
results are webcast and avallaole on the Company s website

The Group issues its annual financial report to each of its
shareholders In accordance with the UK company disclosure
regutauvons the Group does not distribute its half-yearly financial
report to shareholders cut makes it available on its website
Copies are availatle on request

All financial reports and press releases are also included on the
Group s website at www clsholdings com

All snarehctders have at lzast 20 working days nolice of the
Annual General Maeting at which all Direcwors wha are available
to attend are introduced and are avaiiaole far questicns All
shareholders are welcome to attend the Company s Annuat
General Meeting and to arrange individual meetings by
appointment The views recewved at such meetings are fed back
to the Board

Praxy Voting

The proxy farms for the Annuzal General Meeting and Generzl
Meetings which were held in 2012 includec a2 vote withhela bex
Details of the proxies lodged for these meetings were announcec
to the Landon Stock Exchange and are on the Company s website
at www clsholdings com Shareholders may also cheose ta
register their vote by electronic proxy on the Company s website

CLS Holdings plc

Annual Repert & Accounts

MAJOR INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY S SHARES

Other than Mr Mortstedt s 53 5% intarest referred to in the
Cirectors Remuneration Report en page 45 as at 1 March 2013
the Campany has been notified of he following interests abave
3% in the Company s 1ssued share capital

No of shares %
Bengt Martstedt 3204165 7 4%
F&C Asset Management plc 2,601,305 6 0%

There are no shareholcers whao carry special rights with regard
to control of the Company and thera are no resirictions on voting
rights The Company knows of no agreements between holders
of secunties which would result in restrictions on the transfer of
securities or on voting rights

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS — CHANGE OF CONTROL

A change of control of the Company fellowing a takeaver aid may
cause a number of agreements tawhich the Company or its
active subsidiaries 1s party, such as commercial trading contracis,
banking arrangemants, procerty lesses and licence agreements,
to take effect alter or terminate In the context of the Group as

a whole, only the banking arrangements are considered to be
significant Thare are no agreements setween the Company and
its Directors or employees prowviding for compensation for loss of
office or employment that occur because of a change of control
or takeover oid

JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES

This Corporate Governance report applies te the Campany and its
subsidiaries it does notinclude joint ventures or associates

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Repor-
Directors Remuneration Repart znd the financial siatements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directars te prepare financial
statements for each financial yezr The Directors are required by
the IAS Regulation to prepare the group financial statements
under those International Financial Reporting Standards (1FRS)
adeopted by the European Union The group financial statements
are also required by taw to be properly orepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conminuep

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that finzncial
statements prepared under IFRS present fairly for each financial
year the Group s inancial periormance and ¢asn flows ang
closing financial position This regquires the faithful reprasentation
of the effects of transactions other events and conditigns in
accordance with the definitiens and recagnition criteria for
assets liabiliiies income and expenses set cut in the
International Accounting Standards Board s Framewark for the
preparation and presentaticn of financial statements  In wirtually
all circumstances a fair presentation will be achieved by
compliance with all applicable IFRS However Directors zre also
required to

+ properly select and apply accounting pobicies

+ present information ncluding accounting policies ma
manner which provides relevant reliable comparable and
understandable infermation

+ provide additional disclesures when cempliance with the
specific requirements in IFRS 15 insufticient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events or conditions on the entity s financial position and
financial performance and

* make an assessment of the ability of the Company and of the
Group to continue &s & geing concern

The Directors have elected to prepare the parent company
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generatly Accepled Accounting Practice (UK Accounting
Standards and applicable law) The parant company financial
statements are required by law to give a trus and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company In preparing these financial
statemenis the Directors are recuired o

+  select suitable accounting polictes and apply them
cansistently

* make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and
prudent,

+  giate whether applicable UK Accounting Sarcards have
been followec, subject to any materal departures disclesed
and explained In the financial statements and

» prepare the financial stataments cn tha gaing concern basis
unless it Is inappropriate ta presume that the Company will
continue In business

Uncer campany law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of afrairs of the Cempany and of the profit or loss
of the Company for the period
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The Directors confirm that to the kest of their knowledge the
hnancal statements comply with the above requiremenis

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
racords whicn are sufficient to show and explain the Campany s
transactions and disclase with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable themn to ensure
that the financial siatements comaly with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for .aking reasenable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are also respensible for the maintenance anc
integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the Company s website Leaislation in the United Kingdom
governing the pregaration and dissemination cf financial
staternents may differ from legislation in other jurisdicticns

Statement of Durectors responsibibhies
We confirm te the best of our knowledge that

* the financial statements precared in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framewaork, give a true and fair
view of the assets, hiaoilives, financial position and profii of
the Company and the uncertaskings included in the
consolidation as a whele and

* the Business Review which s incorporated into the
Directors Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the bustness and the pesition of the
Cempany and the undertakings included in the consclidation
taken as a whole togetherwith a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties they face

This statement of responsibilities was approved by the Board an
4 March 2013

Dawid Fuller BA Fi
Cempany Secretary

4 March 2013
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

for the year ended 31 December 2012

Meetings
Remuneration Cammittee members attended/eligible to attend
Christapher Jarvis (Chairman) 3/3
Malcalm Cooper 3/3

The role of the Remuneration Committee 1s

-

N N~

to determine the pay and benefits of the Executive Directors
to determune the structure of the PIP and set its parameters
to determine the awards under the PIP

to determine the fees payable to the Executive Chairman

to determine the grant of cpticns under the Company s Executive Share Option Scheme and Company Share
Option Plan

to perform all of the above by reference to the pay and benefits of other employees and market conditions

to review the Remuneration Report

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

2012 has been a very constructive and pragressive year for the Group s remuneration policy for Executive Directars

As explained in last year s regort 1in 2011 with advice from remuneration consultants PwC we undertook a delailed review of
our Executive Directors remuneration structure, which included a camprehensive consultation procass with our ten largest
shareholders Based on the results of this review we replaced the discretionary tonus scheme in 2012 with a Ferformance
Incentive Plan { PIP ) for which we will seek formal shareholder approval at the AGM in 2013 In designing the FIP we followed
the views of shareholders who sought an equal :spllt tetween the paid element of the bonus and the ceferred amount, and we
withdrew the Excepticnal Bonus Plan We believe that tne PIP 1s in ine with the proposed regulations of the Department far
Business Innavation 2nd Skills with a clear link between Company performance and pay and wilt promote the long-term success
of the Cornpany

in light of evolving best practice and the wider discussions on executive remuneration, including the proposec regulations 1ssued
by the Department for Business Innevatton and Skills in June 2012 the Committee has aligned this year s Remuneraticn Report
with those proposals, including splitting the repert 1ntc @ Policy Report and an Implementation Repen

We want ta ensure that our sharehalcers are able to have their say about executive remuneration an¢ should any shareholder
wish to contac me on any aspect of our remuneration colicy please email me at remcomi@clsholcings com

Chrnistopher Jarvis
Chairman
Remuneration Committes

”~

oty
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPQORT conminugD

for the year ended 31 Decermnber 2012

PART 1 POLICY REPORT

The Company s policy on ramuneration Is to sel averall remuneration cackages at a lavel sufficient to attract retain and incentivise high

calibre staft with a view to enhancing long-term sharzholder value The Commuttee also considers the level of pay and employment
conditions througnout the Group when setting Executive Directors ramuneration, consistent with the Company s general aim of seeking
ta reward all employees fairly according to the nature of their role, thair perfermance and market forces

Executive Directors

Consistent with this pclicy, emolumants awarded to Executive Direcors are intended 1o be competitive This 1s designed to incantivise

Exacutive Directors and to align thair intarests with those of sharsholcers

Key camponents of Executive Remuneraticn

Purpose and Link Performance Changes
to Strategy Qperatign Opportunity Matnx in Year
Base Salary To attract and retain “he Reviewed annually Maximum annual None All Executive Directors
best employees Based on Group and increase In line salares increased by
with market 2% (see taole below)

Reflects the role and
previous experience

persanal performance

Increases hased on average
salary Increases of stafr

Benchmarked against
peer aroup of similar

Benefits To attrac” anc retain the Frivate mecical insurance Full cost of annual  Naone None
hest employees life Insurance, income benefits £35,300
pretection, gym contributian
and steff lunch provisian
Annual Incentivise performancs 3 year pian Maximum of 150%  (see PIP Introduced in 2012
Banus on an annuall basis agaldnst KPl-based performance for CEQ and EVC Zelmmn
key fmanLc:Z targets an targets, tailared to specific Maximum of 100% elow)
persanal objectives areas of Group performance far CFO
Align Grc:up perfolrman};:e Comrnitice sets perfermance
and strategic geals wit thresnolds at the beginning
executive sanuses of each plan year
50% of bonus deferred, of
which 50% 15 subject to risk
adjustment in the following
year If targets are not met
Beferred balance linked to
share price and 50% 1s paid
cut each plan year
Pensions Part of overall retentian Maney Purchase Schema 5% indivicual None None

strategy

contribution

5% Company
contribution
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Executive Directors’ Salaries

CLS Holdings plc

Annual Report & Accounts

The annual increase 1n basic salanes for Executive Directors fram 1 January 2013 was set at approximately 2% in line with the

Committee s policy to have regard to the pay and employment conditions throughout the Group

2013 2042 Uplift

£ £ %

Sten Mertstedt 229500 225000 2
Henry Klotz 224145 219 750 2
Ricnard Tice 212262 208 100 2
lohn Whiteley 195,840 192,000 2

Diractors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Executive Directors has a service coniract of no fixed term except for Mr Klotz As approvec at the 2011 Annual General
Meeting Mr Klotz s service cantract as Executive Vice Chairman began on 1 January 2011 and excires on 31 December 2013 if the
Company exercises the right to terminate Mr Klotz s contract early, the Company would make a cayment to Mr Klotz equivalant to the
amount due under the unexpired term There s no prowision in the contracts of Mr Mortstedt, Me Tice or Mr Whiteley for contractual

termination payments save for those payments normaily due under employmant law

Each Non-Exacutive Directar has a letter of appointment but 1n accordance with best practice, nene has a service contract All of

the Non-Executive Directors are appointed until such time as they are not re-glectad The Code requires tnat all directors of FTSE 350
companies be subject to annual election by sharehalders Although the Company is not a constituent of the FTSE 350, the Board
adopted this prowision in 2012 and requires the annual re-election of all Directers by shareholders If a director fails to be re-elecred the

terms of their appointment will cease

Details of the service conrracts or letters of acpointment of those whe served as Directors during the year a
MName

re as follows
Contract date

Nolice peniod

Sten Martstedt Executive 1 January 2005
Henry Klotz Executive i January 2011
Richard Tice Executive 11 March 2010
John Whiteley Exscutive 1 October 2009
Malcolr Cooper Nan-Exscutive 15 June 2007
Joseph Crawley Non-Exscutive 25 Nevember 2008
Christopher Jarvis Non-Exacutive 25 November 2008
Thomas Lundgwvist Non-Executive 1 October 1995
Jennica Mortstedt Non-Executive 11 May 2010
Brigith Terry Nan-Executive 14 August 2011
Themas Thernsen Non-Executive 25 January 2008

12 months

n/a
12 months
6 manths
3 months
3 manths
3 months
3 months
3 months
3 manths
3 manths

(1) Fixec-term contract to 31 Decamber 2013

Non-Executive Birectors

The remuneration of the Non-Exacutive Direc.ors 1s reviewed and determinad by the Executive Directors It consists cf fees for services
to the Board and any additional services such as chairing or being a memper of a Board committee The Senior Independent Director

recelves an additionat fee

The Non-Executive Directars fees are deemed tc be aporopriate for the Company s size and complexity slthough this 1s kept under

review by the Executive Directars

During the year, fees for non-executive directars were

Board fee

Senior Independent Director
Committee chairmanship
Committee membership

£15,000
€5 400
£8 000
€£5,000

There 15 no change to these fees for 2013
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT continueD

for the year anded 31 December 2012

PART 2 IMPLEMENTATION REPORT

For the year ended 31 Dacember 2012 the Grouo s policy on remuneration was implemented as set out below

Directors’ Remuneration {audited}

The remunaration recewed by the Directors was as fallows

2012 2012

Salaryor 2m2 2012 Perfarmance 2012 201

Fee asa 2012 Benefits Pension Related Total Total

Director Other fees mkind Contribution Bonus' Remuneratton Remuneration

Notes E000 €060 €000 £000 £000 €000 £90c¢

Executive
Sten Mertstedt 225 375 - - - 400 554
(Executive Chairman)
Henry Klotz 220 28 8 - 275 531 502
(Executive Yice Chairman)
Ricnard Tice (2) 208 - ' 10 261 483 17
(Chief Executive Officer)
John Whiteley 192 - 5 10 159 366 281
(Chief Financial Officer)
Non-Executive
Malcolm Cooper 33 - - - - 33 35
Joseph Crawley 15 - - - - 15 i7
Christopher Jarvis 28 - - - - 28 30
Thamas Lundgvist {3 15 9 - - - 24 22
lennica Mortstedt 15 - - - - 15 15
Brigith Terry 15 - - - - 15 é
Thomas Thomson )] 15 2 - - - 17 23
2012 981 414 17 20 495 2,127 1,902
2011 212 427 14 19 530 1902
Notes

(1) Subject to sharehalder approval of the Performance Incentive Plan

{2)  Mr Tice was awarded a £20¢ 000 performance-related annual discretionary bonus for the year ended 31 December 2011 of which £100 000 was paid inte his
SIPP by the Campany on his behalf The figure for 2011 has been restated from Sension Cantributions to Performance Related Bonus for ease of cornpansan
(3) Messrs Lundguist and Thomsan received a fee of £125 per hour for special projects

Other Fees

A company associated with Mr Mortstedt provided consultancy
services which related to speaific advice which was autside the
terms of Mr Mortstedt s contract of employment The Committes
has reviewsd the {ees ior these servicas, and 1s of the apinion that
the market rate far the services would have far exceeded the
amount pand Mr Klotz receved additicnal fees whicn he retained
of £18,926 (2011 £20,718) in respect of his role as Non-Executive
Chairman of Catena AB and £9,463 (2011 £9,607) as Non-Executive
Director of Note AB Both Thomas Lundgws. and Tnormas Thomson
received hourly fees for specific projects undertaken subject to the
agreerment of the Chief Executive Officer ar Executive Chairman

Performance Incentive Plan

The Executive Vice Chairman, Chier Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer participate in the PIP, the Executive Chairman
does not participate in it as the Commuttee consider that the size of
his shareholding in the Company gives an adequate overalt link to
performance The annual banus award under the PIP 15 calculated
by reference to eignt Key Performance Indicators { KPls ) whicn
reflect areas of the Group s business The maximum potential award
In anv one year for the Executive Vice Chairman and the Chier
Executive Officer, 1s 150% of satary, and for the Chief Financial
Officer 108% Each KPl s allocatec & proportien of the maximum
potential avallable depending on the relevance ta the participant
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KPY ALLOCATION

The Committee set the targets against each KPi based on
stretching critena, and having regard to past performance the
current economic climate and achieverent ci the Group s strategy

No honus vests betow the Bonus/Forferture Threshold and full
vesting I1s achieved at Maximum Performance There Is a tinear
slicing sczle between the Bonus/Forfeiture Threshold and
Maximum Performance
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KP! Targets
Key Performance Indicator Pertarmance Vesting
Bonus/

Maximum Forfeiture On Target Geac Maximum 2012

Forfeiture Threshold Perfarmance Performance Performance  Achievement
1 Total Sharehotder Return 5% 7% 12% 14% 16% 29.7%
2 Effective management of the balance sheet (ROE)} % 7% 12% 1% 20% 15 9%
3 Vacancy rate 10% 8% 5% 4% 3% 3I8%
4 Administration cost ratio {as % of Net Renial) 20% 17 5% 14% 13% 2% 146 3%
§ Personal Performance 2 25 4 i5 5 nfa*
& EFPRA NAV Growth G% 5% 7 5% 88% 10% 17 &%
7 NAV Growth 0% 5% 7 5% 88% 10% 17 4%
8 Core Profit over Budget -5% 0% 75% 8 8% 10% 54%

Annual bonus contribution 15 earned on a linear basis from tre start to the finish of the performance range for a given KPE the points in the above table are ingicative
having been rounded far clanty

Personal performance 1s a grading of tne Executive Directer by the Remuneration Commuttee in a range of 1105

KPI Results

As a rasult of the performance of the Group, the participating Executives receved the following amounts

Key Perforrmance Indicators

Perfarmance Breakdown (£)

EVC CEOD CFo
1 Totzal Shareholder Return 45,925 62,430 38,400
2 Effective management of the balance sheet (ROE) 18,597 17,410 146,248
3 Vacancy rate 49,664 47,001 8,832
4 Administration cest ratio (as % of Net Rental) 41,248 39,081 34,058
5 Personal Performance 25,370 24,972 15,360
& EFRA NAV Growth 21,975 * 20,810 14,400
7 NAV Growth 21,975 20,810 14,400
8 Core Profit over Budget 29,431 27,87 15,429
2012 Total Banus 275,205 250,615 159,127
Bonus as a % of salary 125 2% 125 2% 82 %
Banus Achieved as 2 % of Total Available Bonus 83 5% 83 5% 82 9%

Cf the totzl bonus above, 50% will ce paid 1n cash and the balance
in deferred shares 50% of any pool balance from previcus years
will be released in the two subsequent years remaining of the

PIP s operation

The Committee has the discretion to override the provisions of the
PIP but did not do so for 2012

The PIP and relatec awards for 2012 wiil be subject to shareholder
approval at the AGM in Agrit 2013

2012 AWARDS AGAINST MAXIMUM AWARD
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT conrinuep

for the year ended 31 December 2012

Actual Performance Against Targets

The elements af remuneration actually paid or awarded to the
Executive Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer are sat out below, against what woula have ceen
pald nad pertormance merely achievec the Jhreshold to mernit a
bonus, the bonus had oerformance been an target and the
maximum payable as a banus

COMPONENTS OF EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

Pension Entitlements

The Executive Directcrs are entitled te particicate in a defined
contribution pension scheme ot which ane Directar {John
Whiteley) was a memper at the end of the year (2011 one)
Participants are required to contribute 5% of basic UK salary
(2011 5%) which 1s maicned by a contribution from the Camoany
of 5% (2011 5%) The Company centributes 5% of salary towards
Richard Tice s Self Invested Personal Pensian {SIPP) in tieu of
contrioutions to the Company pension scheme The Executive
Chairman I1s not a member of the Company pension scheme The
Executive Vice Chairman 1s a deferrec member of the scheme

Long-Term [ncentive Plan

The Company does nct operate a long-term incentive plan The
Cemmittee considers that the introduction of the PIP should
provide an adequate long-term incantive However 1t will
continue te review its paticy on LTIPs annually

Payments for Loss of Office

There was no payment for loss of office for any director of the
Company during the year

44

Share Options {audited)

The Board has delegated to the Committee the authority to grant
options under the Campany & share schemes baing the 2005
Company Share Option Plan {(CSOP) (an Inland Revenue Approved
Scheme) and the Company s Unapproved Share Option Schame
(U50S) Parucipation in each scheme 1s open to any Director or
armployee, subject to mirsmum werking hours Opticns may
normally only be exercised between the thiro and seventh
anniversaries of the datz of grant subject lec comchance with the
performance conditicns

Any grant of aptians to an eligible empioyee under the CSOP

1s subject to HMRC Limt 5 Both schemes are supject to the
aggregate number of aptions granted in 2 ten year period not
exceeding 10% of the shares theninssue Iti1s not fareseen that
further options will be granted under the schemes unless there
are exceptionsl circumstances, when aggregate awards to 2n
individual under both schermes will be limited to options over a
maximum of 300 000 shares

Optiens ordinanily lzose it an optien holder leaves employment
and are exercisable early in certain circumstances, including
death, injury, disability, ill-health redundancy retirement, or at
the Committae s absolute discretion [n these circumstances,
options will be exercisable for 2 periad of six manths fallowing
cessation (ar 1Z months in the event of death) Options may alsc
be exercisad In the event of a takeover of tne Comceany {or, In
certain circumstances may be exchangec for options over snares
In an acquiring company) Options are not transfarable other than
on death

In line with the Commutiee s poticy to attract retain anc
incentivise high calibre staff an jaining the Company in 2010, the
Remuneration Committee granted Richard Tice options aver
300,000 Ordinary Shares at an option price of £4 70, of whicn
6,382 were granted under the CSOP and 293,618 under the USDS

The earliest date of exercise of thase share options granted under
each scheme 1s 11 March 2013 anc 1s conditional upon the
satisfaction of the aporopriate non-market-based performance
criterton of the growth in net assets of the Group being at least
equivalent to the growth of the IPD All Properties Capital Growth
Index aver three years from the date of grant Whilst current
corparate governance requirements prefer stepped vestng
conditions, the Commuttee cansiderad st esseniial to grant this
award to ensure Mr Tica joined the Campany If not exercised
these options will expire on 10 Marcn 2017

No other Birecters held or were grantad options over shares in
the Company during the year and none of the tarms or conditions
of the share options was varied dunng the year

The highest mid-market share price in the year was 779 & pence,
the lowest 560 0 pence, and the average was 459 6 pence The
ctosing share price on 31 December 2012 was 765 0 pence




Caomparison of Overall Performance and Pay
The graph below shows the Tetal Sharesholder Return ( TSR )

performance of the Company and the total pay for the Chief
Executive Ofiicer

Soqurce Datas ~eam

The Company s TSR performance since 1t was lsted an the
London Stock Exchange 1s set out below and 15 comeared to the
TSR perfermance of the rTSE All Share Index and the UK
Datastream Real Estata Index over the same period

CLS Holdings plc

Annual Report & Accounts

Directors Interasts in Shares

The interests of tne Directars in the ordinary shares of 25p each
In the capital of the Campany were

At 31 At 1

December December

2mz2 2011

Ordinary Ordinary

shares shares

of 25p of 25p

ten Mcrtstedt 23,170,345 23,978,149
Henry Klotz 11,395 11395
Ricnare Tice 263,425 258,732
John Whiteley 12,000 10 000
Malcolm Cooper 4,457 4 648

Joseph Crawley - -
Christopher Jarvis - -
Thomas Lundgwist 80,110 79 220
Jennica Moristedt - -
Brigith Terry -

Thomas Thomson 105,751 110 582

All of the above intarasts in snaras were hetd beneficially for the
Diractors The shares inwhich Sten Mortstedt 1s beneficially
interested are held in trust and include shares held in the name
of, benahcially ownad by and held in trust for, Mrs K Martstedt
There have been no changes to the interests cf the Directors
since 31 Oecember 2012

The Committee has implemented a policy of meimum
shareholdings for Executive Directors It 1s expected that within
five years of becoming an Executive Director, the Executive Vice
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer sheuld build a helding
with 2 value of at least 100% of salary, and the Chief Financial
Officer at least 753% This further aligns the interests of Directors
to those of shareholders

At the year end the Executive Directors beneficial shareholdings
represented the following percantages of salary

Henry Klatz 40% (2011 31%)
Ricnarc Tice 968% {2011 748%)
Jehn Whiteley 48% (2611 31%)

The Executive Chairman Sten Mortstedt controls or has a
beneficial interest in shares which 1s very substantially in excess
of the rmumimum raquirament )

Shareholder Voting

At the 2012 AGM, following the Remuneration Review and
shareholder consultation on the PIP, the Oirecters Remuneration
Report achieveo 88 2% (2011 84 3%) in favour 5 7% (2011 13 9%)
against and 6 1% (2011 1 %) withheld

On behalf of the Board

Christopher Jarvis
Chairman
Remuneration Committee

4 March 2013
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Meeungs
Audit Committee members attended/eligible 1o atteng
Malcolm Cooper (Chairman) 414
Christopher Jarvis 414

.

The role of the Audit Committes is

9
S
-

=
e

>

to monitor the integrity of the Group s financial statements and review significant financial reporting judgements
to review the Group s internal controls and nsk management systems

to oversee the relaticnship with the external auditor and monitor its iIndependence, objectivity and effectiveness
during the audit procass

to review the potential need for an internal audit function

to review the Group s policy on whistleblowing, and the policy on the supply of non-audit services by the
external auditor

to report to the Board on how it has discharged its responsibilities

Mr Cooper was regarded as having recent and relevant accounting and financial experience The Chief Financial
Officer, certain senior management and the Company s Auditar are noermally inviled to attend the meetings The
Company Secretary acts as Secratary to the Committee

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
it has been business as usual for the Commiitee during the year

The Commitiee reviewed the Annual Repert and Accounts and the Half-Yearly Financial Report focusing on key areas of
Judgement and complexity critical agcaunting policies and any changes required to them Following these reviews, the
Committee was able 1o recommend to the Board that taken as 3 whole the reports were fair, balanced and understandable
The Commitiee concluded that there was sufficient information In those repors for shareholders to assess the Group s
performance, business mocel and strategy

The Cornmittee reviewed the external audit strategy and the findings of the Company s Auditor from its review of the Half-Yearly
Financial Repert and its audit of the Annval Repert ane Accounts | am pleasead fo report that at beth the half and the fult year
there were no issues of a materig! nature whicn needed o be addressed

The Commitiee discussed the way in which the full and half year audit process had been undertaken and, separately, sought the
views of senior management As a result the Committee concluded that the audit strategy had been met, and that key accounting
and auditing Judgments had been 1dentified and satisfactory answers to the Commuttae s questions had been given The
Cammittee s conclusions were reparted to the Board and it was agreed that Deloitte LLP would be asked to continue as the
Company s Auaitar at the forthcoming AGM

During the year the Commit-ze paic particular attention to reviewing the Group s key nisks and ensuning that they had been
adequstely Identified and rmibgated One such key nsk was the methedology behind the valuation ot the Greup s corporate bond
portfolio so as to ensure (s value was accurately reflected based on the most recent aveilable data Based on the market ewidence
that was collated we concluded that the valuation was apprepriate
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The Commuttze also mat with the Group s valuers Lambert Smitn Hampton Colliers Internationat and Jones Lang LaSatle
to discuss and quastien the methodology usad for the bi-annual valuations cof the Group s propertias We were salisfied with
their explanations

Towards the end cf tha year, the Committee reviewed its Terms oi Raference sa as to ensure it cantinued te cemply with best
practice, ang reviewed its performance to ensure that it continuad to oparate as an effective Audit Commuttee and hac discharged
its responsibilities in accordance with 1ts remut There were no 1ssues that we felt were required to bring to the Board s attentian
For the size and complexity of the Group the composition of the Commuttee was considerad appropriate and in compliance with
the Code

In order to keep up to date with technicat developments, the Committee will be recewing further training during 2013 with the
support from cur external suditors the Chief Financial Officer and Group Financial Controller
EXTERNAL AUDIT

The external audit was iast pu- out to tender in 2007 when the current auditor, Deloitte LLP, was apoointed In accordance with best
practice, tne lead audit partner was changed by rotation for 2012 There are no contractual obligations to restrict the Company s
chaice of external auditor In accordance with pravision C 3 7 of the Code, the Committee intends that the external audit contract be
put out to tender at least every tenyears

INTERNAL AUDIT

Following its annual review the Committee recommenced to the Board not ta establish aninternal audit department due to the
relatvely small number of personnel employed within the Group the nature of the business and the current control and review
systems in place This view was supported by the external auditor

NGN-AUDIT SERVICES POLICY

The Commuttee 1s also responsible for monitoring the compliance of the Campany s policy on the provision of non-audit services
by tha Campany = Auditor so as to ensure the Auditor s objectivity and independence The policy, which is based on the mast
recant Guidance an Audit Committees and reviewed annually categorises nen-audit services as

s excluded

«  permitted without approval from the Commuttee, but subject to approvel by the Chief Financial Officer ot up to 10% of the
annual aggregate Group audt fee (or £20 00C whichever 1s smaller) and

« permitted with approval from the Committze (indwvidual projacts with a fee in excess of £30 006 require tne pre-approval of
at least one member of the Committee)

The anly non-audit service provided by the Company s Auditer during the year was work on the issue of the Listed reta:l bond, for
a fee of £7,000, which was approved by the Chief Financial Officer in accordance with the policy

On behalf of the Board

Maicoim Cooper /M—Z é
Chairman

Audit Committee
4 March 2013
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

far the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m Em
Contiuing operations
Group revenue 802 801
Net rental income 4 629 630
Income from nen-property actvities - cg
Aaministration expensas {10 5) (izn
Other expenses 29) (22)
Group ravenue less costs 495 455
Net movements on revaluation of investment croperues 13 162 120
Net (loss)/gain on sale of corporate boncs and other investments (04) 0%
Profit on sale of subsidiaries and assaciates 3 - .22
Operating profit 653 702
Financa income 8 106 12 2
Finance costs ¢ (25 &) (477
Share of profit of associates after tax 17 58 30
Profit before tax 561 377
Taxation 10 (9.4) i
Profit for the year 6 46,7 388
Other comprehensive income
Foreign exchange dsfrerences (2 6) (50)
Fair value gains/(losses) on carporate bonds and other investments 18 197 (1460
Fair value lasses/{gains) taken to (loss)/gan on sale of carporate bonds and ather investments 18 40 (08)
Geferred tax on net fair value gains on corporate bonds and other investments 22 (59 44
Revaluation of ownar-accupied property 14 01 03
Total comprehensive income for the year 620 219
Profit attributable to
Owners of the Campany 4467 375
Non-contralling interests - 13
Profit for the year 4567 388
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of the Company 620 2046
Non-controlling interasts - 13
Total comprehensive incame for the year 420 219
Earnings per share from continuing operatiens attrbutable to the
owners of the Campany during the year (expressed in pence per share)
Basic il 1060 820
Diluted 1 1058 819

The notes an pages 52 to 81 are an intagral part of these groun financial statements
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2012

2012 201
Notes £m Em
Non-current assets

Investment properties 13 934.5 2021
Property, plant and equipment 14 2.8 27
Goodwill and other intangible assets 14 11 I
Investments in associates 17 33.3 241
Other investments 18 1299 §78
Derwvative financial Instrurments 24 0.2 15
Deferrad tax 22 87 177

1,1105 10370

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 19 1740 1é
Derwative financial instruments 24 0s 04
Cash and cash equivalents 20 974 553
115.2 473

Total assets 1,225 7 11043

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 21 (33 0) (30 4}
Current tax {3 8) (12}
Borrowings 23 (135 &) {151 2)
Derwative financial instruments 24 (0 4) Q1)

(172 &) (182 9)

Non-current Liabilities

Deferred tax 22 (77 8) (75 0)
Barrowings 23 (549 4) (445 8)
Derwvative financial instruments 24 (8 8) [CAD]

(634 0) {553 9)

Total Labilities (808 &) (7346 8)
Net assets 4171 38675
Equity
Share capital 24 12.0 123
Share premium 28 7.5 715
Other reserves 29 101.8 840
Retained earnings 2318 1975
Total equity 4771 3675

The financial statements of CLS Holdings plc (registered number 2714781) were approved by the Board of Directors and autharised for
1ssue on 4 March 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

Mr $ A Mortstedt Mr E H Klotz

The notes on pages 52 to 81 are an intagral part of these group financial statements

49

o1j0j1104 Apadoy, SI0108JI[] Sy JO 1I00BY
JHOg d

FIUBLIBAGY

S1UnoDDY

UGN BWIOJU| 330




GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2032

owners of the Company

Attributable to the

Nan-
Share Share Other Retained controtling
capital premium resarves earnings Total interests Total
Notes £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
At 1 January 2012 125 715 8560 1975 367.5 - 3675
Arising 1n 2012
Tetal comprehensive tncome
far the year - - 153 467 629 - 620
Purchase of own shares 26 (0 5) - 035 {125) {12 5) - (12 5)
Expenses thereof - - - 1 @1 - (on
Employee share aption schemes 7 - - - 02 02 - 02
Total changes aristng in 2012 (0 5) - 15.8 341 94 - 49 6
At 31 December 2012 120 715 1018 2318 4171 - 4171
Attributable to the
owners af the Company
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controiling
capital premigm reserves earnings Total Interests Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m Ern Em
At 1 January 2011 129 719 1025 1716 3585 (13) 3572
Ansing in 2011
Total comprehensiva income
for the year - - (16 9) 375 206 13 219
Purchase of awn shares 26 (0 4) - 04 (117N 117 - (17
Expenses theraof - - - {619 (01} - @
Employee share optien schemes 7 - - - a2 02 - G2
Total changes arising in 2011 (0 4) - (16 5) 259 90 13 183
At 31 December 2011 125 715 860 1975 3675 - 36775

The notes an pages 52 to 81 are an integral part of these greup financizl staternents
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 Decernber 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated trom operations 30 543 541
Interest paid (22 5) (26 1)
Income tax refundec/(paid) 01 29
Net cash inflow from operating activities 319 251
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment property (13 1) (72)
Capital expenditure an investment property (135) 132)
Interest recaved 82 69
Purchase of corparate bonds (&5 &) (54 °5)
Proceeds from sale of corporate bonds £5.8 318
Purchzse of equity investments (0 6) {7 8)
Ciwidends receved from equity invesiments 01 -
Proceeds from sale cf equity invesiments 0.6 72
Purchase of interests in associate undertakings (4 1) {02}
Loans to associate uncertakings {4.5) -
Distributions receved from associate undertakings as 199
Incoma/(costs) on foreign currency transactions 03 {1 4)
Cests of corporate aisposals (0 8) A}
Purcnasas of property plant and equipment {0 2) {0 2)
Net cash outflow from investing activities {46 &) (20 3)
Cash flows from financing activities
Purchase of own shares {12 &) (11 8)
New loans 2233 174 2
Issue costs of new loans (2 4) (28)
Repayment of lcans (151 7) (i322)
Purcnase or cancellstion of dervative financial instruments (01) (25 9)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 565 15
Cash flow element of net increase in cash and cash equivalents 418 &3
Foreign exchange gain 0.5 07
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents £2.3 70
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 55.3 483
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 97 4 553

Interest received has been included In cash flows from investing activities as the majonity of it arisas from investing in corporate bends

Previously, interest received was disclosed in cash flows from operating activities

The notes on pages 52 to 81 are an integrzl part of these group finencial statements
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2012

52

GENERAL INFORMATION

CLS Holdings plc (the Company™) and its subsidiaries (together CLS Holdings orthe Group )is an investment property group
which 1s principally invelved 0 the investment, management and development of commercial properties and in ather investments
The Group s principal operations are carried oui in Landon, France, Germany and Sweden

The Campany Is raqistered in the UK, registration number 2714781 with its registered address at 86 Eondway, London SW8 15F
The Campany s Listed on the London Stock Exchange

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these group financial statements are set out below These policies
have been cansisiently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwtse stated

21

22

Bas:s of preparation

The financial ststements have been prepared on a going concern basis as explained tn the Qirectors Report on page 32 anc
have been prenared in accorcance with International Financizal Reporting Standarcs ("IFRS ) as acopted by the European
Unian, International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuttee ( IFRIC ) interpretations, and the provisions of the
Ccmpanies Act 2006 applicatle ta companies reporting under IFRS

New standards and interpretations

n the current year, the Group has adopted twe standards and guidance for the first time none of which has had a material
effect on the results for the year

* Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of stems of cther comprehensive income

*  Amendments to IAS 12 - Deferred Tax Recovery of Underiying Assets

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been
applied in these financial statements, wers in issue but not yet effective In some cases thess standards and guidance have
not been endorsed by the European Union

s |AS 28 - lnvestments i associates and joint ventures (2011)

* IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

s IFRS 10 - Consolidated financial statemenis

* IFRS 11 - Jont arrangements

s« IFRS 12 - Disclosure of interests in ather entilies

*« IFRS 13 - Fair value measurement

¢ Improvements 2011 - Improvements te IFRSs 2010

e ED/2011/6 - Revenue from cantracts with customers

o ED/2012/1 - Annuat improvements to IFRS 2010/12 Cycle

These pronouncements when acphed, estner will result in changes to presentation and disclosure or are not expected to
have a material impact on the financral statements

Business Combinations

(1} Subsmdiary undertakings
Subsiciary undertakings are those entities contralled by the Group Centrol 1s assumed when the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating pclicies of an entity or business tc benefit from its activities Subsidiaries are fully
consclinated from *he gate on which control is transferred to the Group until the date control ceases All intra-group
transactions, balances, iIncome and exoenses are eliminatad on censclidation

{n) Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group has significant influence but which are net subsidiary undertakings or joint
ventures The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorparated in these financial statements using the equity
method of accounting Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost es adjusted by post-acquisition
cnangas in the Group s share of the net assets of the associate, less any iImpairment in the value of individual Investments

() Goodwill

Goodwill arising on censelidation represents the excess of the cost of acguisition over *he Group s Interest In the fair
value of identifiatle assets and biabilities of a subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition 1t 1s initially recognised as
an asset at cost and 15 subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairmen: losses Gaodwill which 1s
recognised as an asset IS reviewed for impairment at least annually




2.3

2.4

25
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anaLal Pegor & 4ccounts

Foreign currency
(1} Fore:gn currency transactions

fransactions in foraign currencies are translated into sterling using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and liaoilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated
Into sterling at the exchange rate ~uling at that date, and differences ansing on translation are recogmised in profit
before tax

Changes in the fair value of monetary sacurities classified as availlable-for-sale and denominated in fareign currencies
are recognsed in profit before “ax wnere the translation diffecence results from changes in the amortised cast of the
secunity anc are recogrised In equity where 1t results iromn other changes in the carrying amount of the security

(n) Consolidation of foreign entities

The results and financial position of all Group entities which have a functional currency different from sterling are
translated into sterling as follows

{a) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sneet
{b) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at the average exchange rates and
{c) all resulting exchange differences are recognisec directly in equity In the cumulative translation reserve

On consolidation exchange differences arising from tne translation of tne naet investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments are taken ta the cumulative
translation reserve When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised as part of the gain or
loss on sale in pront before tax

Investment properties

Investment properties are those properties held for long-term rental yields or ror capital appraciation or oath Investment
properties are measured initially at cost including related transaction casts Additions to invesiment properties comprise
costs of a capital nature, in the case of iInvestment properties under developmant these include capitalised interest and
certain staff costs directly attributable to the management of the development Capitalised interest 1s calculated at the
rate on associated barrowings applied to direct expenditure between the date of gaining planning consent and the date of
prectical completion

Investment praperties are carried at fair value tased on market value as determined by professional exiernal valuers at the
balance sheet date Investment properties being redeveloped .or continuing use as investment properties, or for which the
market has become less active continue to be classified as investment properties and measured at fair value Changes in fair
values are recognised in profit before tax If an ivestrment proper'y becomes owner-occupied, itis reclassified as property
plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cast for accounung purposes Suesequently
the owner-occupied praperty 15 depreciated over its useful economic Lfe and revalued at the balance sheet date

Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, clant 2nd equipment Is stated at historical cest less accumuiated depreciation and aay recogmised impasrment loss

Land 1s not deprecialec Depreciation on property, plant ana equipment 1s calculated using the straight-line methed to
allocate cost less estimated residual values over the estimalted useful lives, as follows

Plant and equipment 4 -5 years
Freeholc propery b years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amaount of the asset and I1s recognised in profit before tax Freehold property is depreciated untit December
2014 after wnich it 1s anticipated that 1t wall be receveloped
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminuen

31 December 2012
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54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

24

27

28

29

Financial instruments
{1) Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derwvative financial iInstruments, including swaps and interest rate caps to help manage its interest rate
and foreign exchange rate risk Dervative financial instruments ara recorded ana subsequently revalued, at fair value
Revaluation gains and losses are recagnised in profit bafore tax excapt for dervatives whics qualify 25 eifective cash
flow hedges the gains and losses relating to which are recognised in other cormprehensive Income

{1) Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale invesiments are inially measured a- cost, and are subsaquently revalued to fair value Revaluation gains
and losses are recogrised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses an monetary assets On discosal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
15 recycled through profit before tax

{in) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivatents comprise cash on hand, demand depasits and cther short-term highly licuid investments
which are readily convertible to a known amaunt of cash ana are subject to an insigniticant risk of changes in value

{iv) Trade and other receivables and payables

Trade and other recevables are recognised initizlly at fair value An impairment provision 1s created where there 1s
objective evidence that the Group witl not be able to collect the recevable in full Trade and othe~ payables are stated at
cost which equates to fair value

{v) Borrowings

Borrowings are recogmised Inttially at fair value less attributable trensaction cosis Subsequently torrowings are stated
at amorrised cost with any difference between the amount tnitially recogmisec and the rademption value being
recagnised in prefit before tax over the periad of the barrowings, using the effective interest rate method

Revenue
{1} Rentalincome

Rental income from operating leases 1s recagnised on a straight-line basis cver the leasz term The cost of incenuves 1s
recognised over the lease term on a straight-line nasis as a reduction of rental income

(1) Service charge income

Service charge income Is recaognised on a gress basis in the accounting period in whicn the services are rendered

Profit on sale of investment properties

Profit on sale of an invesiment oroperty 1s recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferrad to the
buyer, typically on unconditicnal exchange of contracts or when legal titte passes

Income tax

Current tax 15 based on taxable profit for the year and 1s calculated using tax rates that have seen enacted ar substantvely
enacted by the balance sheet date

Ceferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences betwean the carrying value of
assets and liabilities for financial recerting surposas and the values used for tax purposes Temporary differences are not
provided far when they arise from initial recagrition of goodwill or from the initial recognition o assets and liabilities in a
transaction that doas not affect accounting or taxable profit

The amount of deferred tax provided is based an the expectec manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of assets and Liabilites and i1s calculated using rates that are expected to apply 1n the period when the Lability 15 settled or
the asset s realised, in the tax jurisdiction in whicn the temporary ditfferences arise Deferred tax is charged or credited in
arriving at crofit after tax, except when it relates to items recogmised in other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferrec tax 1s alsc recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets are recognisad only te the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the assets can be used The deferred tax assets and liabiliies are only offset if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority, there 1s a legally enforceable right of set-off and the Group intenas to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net besis
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In he application of the Group s accounting policies, which are described in note 2 the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions acout the carrying amounts of assets and Liabilities that are not readly apparant from other sourcas
Tne estimates and associztad assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant
Actual results may differ from these estimates

The astimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis Changes to accounting estimates are recagnised In
the period in wnich the estimate Is rewsac if the revision affects anly that perniad, or In the period of the revisian and future periogs
if the revision affects both current and future periods

The following are the critical estimates and judgements that the Directors have mace n the process of applying the Group s
accounting pclicies and that have the most significant eifeci on the amounts recognised in the financial statements

(1) Fair value of investment properties

The Group uses the valuations periormed by its indepencent external valuers as the fair value of 1ts investment croperties
The valuations are basad upon assumplions including future rental Income anticipated maintenance costs, future
development costs and an approgriate discount rate The valuers also make reference to market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties

(1) Listed corparate bonds

The best evicence of the fair value of Listed corporate bonds 1s quoted prices in an active market The bond market 1s not
always as lquid as conventional equity markets The Group, therefore, 15 required to make certain judgements when arriving
at the fair value of bonds which are less liquic in nalure To the extent that bond prices are not available from third party
pricing sources the Group determines their fair value oy comparing cbservable market data and making judgements on

the ligutaity of particular bonds from g varrety of sources

{a) the Group uses a braker to obtain multiple quotes directly from market makers and to make a judgement as to the
liquicity of those bonds and tne Group determines whether the judgments of licuidity are reasonable and whether
the spread of market maker prices i1s within an expected range, and

{b) the Group makes judgements on price and liquidity based an recent market transactions in particular bonds

) Income Taxes

The Group Is subject to income taxes in different Jurisdictions and estimation 1s required to determine the waridwide
provision far income taxes There are some transacticns and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 1s
unceriain Where the final tax outcome of these matters 1s differant from the amounts that were initiatly recordad,

such differances wilt imgact the iIncome tax and deferrad tax provisions in the period in which determination 1s made

(v) Deferred tax

The metnod of calculation of deterred tax in relation to Londen properties assumes that indexatian allowance will be
avallable as it 1s assumed that the Group will recover the carrying amount of is investment properties through use followed
by an eventual sale
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminuen

31 December 2012

4  SEGMENT INFORMATICN

The Group has two operating divisions - Investment Property and Other lnvestments Gther Investments comprise corporate
bonds, shares in Catena AB Bulganan Land Development Plc and Coad Investments AB, and other small corporate investments
The Group manages the Investment Property division on a geographical basis cue to its size and geographical diversity
Censaquendy, the Group s principal operating segments ara

Investment Property - Landon
France
Germany
Sweden
Other lnvestments
There are no transactions between the operating segments

The Group s results for the year ended 31 Decermnber 2012 by oparating segment were as follows

Investment Property

Other
Londen France Germany Sweden  Investments Total
£m £m £m Em £m £€m

Rental income 275 185 13¢ 62 - 661
Other property-related income 04 01 01 - - 08
Service charge income 47 55 27 04 - 123
Service charges and sirmilar expanses (60} (5 6) (36) {21) - a7y
Net rental income 258 185 131 45 - 629
Administration expenses 23 14 (1)) {03) (0.5) (54)
Othar expenses {(15) (0 4) (oM {01) - 29
Group revenue less costs 230 1467 113 41 (0 5) 54.6
Net movements on revaluation of
investment properties 198 {35) 01 0 2) - 14 2
Net loss on sale of corporate bonds and
other investments - - - - (0 4) (0 4)
Segment operating profit/{loss) 42.8 132 114 39 (0 9) 70.4
Finance income - 0.1 - - 105 104
Finance costs (11 9) (4.6) (4 6) (12) (33) {25 8)
Share ot profit of assaciates after tax - - - - 58 58
Segment profit before tax 309 87 &8 27 121 512
Taxation (52) (35) 0N - - (9.4)
Segment profit after tax 257 52 461 2.7 12.1 518
Central administration expenses (51)
Profit for the year 467
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The Group s results for the year ended 31 December 2011 by operating segment were as follows

lnvestment Property

Other
London France Germany Sweden  Investments Total
£m £m Em Em £m £m
Rental income 265 i91 14 4 62 - 682
Other property-related income 08 01 - - - 09
Service charge income 42 52 25 03 - 122
Service charges and similar expenses (59N (59) 3y (18) - (1¢ 3)
Net rental income 284 g9 134 49 - 430
Incame from nen-property activities - - - - 08 08
Administration expenses a9 (1 (am (0 4) an (¢ &)
Other expenses (1o (63 (3 ¢) (03) - (22)
Group revenue less costs 227 169 119 44 Q9N 550
Ne- movernents on revaluation of investment croperties 102 49 20 09 - g0
Ne gain an sale of corporate bonds and other investments - - - - 05 05
Profit on sale of subsidiaries and associates - - - 18 04 22
Segment operabing pralit 329 218 139 71 - 757
Finance income 03 01 - - 118 122
Finance costs (3¢3) 7N n {16) 08 (477
Snare of profit or associates after tax - - - - 30 30
Segment profit before tax 29 140 &8 55 140 432
Taxation 77 (4 4) [GFS)] (22) 04 11
Segment pront after tax 106 94 54 33 14 4 £4 3
Central administration expenses (E5)
Profit for the year g8
Other segment iInformation
Assets Lrabilities Capital expenditure
2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m tm £m £m £m
Investment Property
London 44635 L4385 3587 304 9 199 124
France 2470 2529 2075 2129 14 18
Germany 2025 2011 144 4 1472 55 40
Sweden 629 452 40 2 420 a7 25
Other investments 2498 145 4 878 268 - -
1,225.7 11043 808.4 7368 275 09

Included witnin the assets of other investments are investimenis In asscciates of £33 3 mellion (2011 £24 1 mullion)
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conminued

31 December 2012

o8

ADMINISTRATION COST RATIQ

The administration cest ratio 1s a key performance indicator of the Group It represents the cost of running the property per-folio

relative to its net income and 15 calculated as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
Administration expenses cf the operating segments 54 &6
Central administration expenses 51 55
Total administration expenses of the Group 105 121
Less non-recurring element thereof - a7
Less administration expenses ot Other Investments {05) an
Property-related and central adminustration expenses 100 ¢7
Net rental income 629 430
Administration cost ratio 15.9% 15 4%
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging
2012 201
£m Em
Auditor s remuneration
Fees payazle to the Company s auditor for the audit of the parent company and groug accounts 02 0z
Fees payaole to the Cempany s auditor for other services to the Group
The audit of the Company s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.1 G
Depreciation cf property, plant and equipment 02 a2
Employee banefits excense (note 7) 64 78
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
202 201
Em m
Wages and salaries 50 54
Social security costs 0.7 g8
Pension costs - defined contributicn plans 02 04
Cther employee-related expenses 07 12
66 78

The Directors are considered to be key management of the Group

Information an Directors emoluments share options anc interests in the Company s shares 1s given in the Directers

Remuneration Report on pages 39 to 45

The monthly average number of emaolayees of the Group In coantinuing eperations Including Exacutve Directors was as follows

2012 201
Other Other
Property operations Tatal Praperty operatiens Total
number number number number rumber number
Male 20 - 30 24 6 30
Female 35 - 35 31 2 33
65 - &5 55 8 &3
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Share-based payments

The Group operates two emplayze share option schemes, the 2805 CLS Holdings plc Company Share Option Plan and the Group s
unapproved Snars Option Scheme In Marcn 2010, share options under these schemes were granted at an exercise price of 470p
and can be exercised from March 2013 ta March 2017 Details of vesting conditians in relation to these options are given within the
Directors Remuneration repert on page 44

The movement in share opticns during the year was

012 2011
Mumber Exercise Number Exercise
of share price of share price
aptions options
Ouistanding at the beginning of the year 300,000 470p 300,000 4£70p
Granted during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 300,000 470p 300000 470p

Exercisacle at the end cf the year - -

The fair value of share options granted in 2010 were calculated using the Black Scholes model Tnenputs to this modal were

Share price at grant date (penca) 4950
Exercise price {pence) 4700
Expectad volatility 47 9%
Option Nife (years) 70
Risk-frae rate 4 1%
Expected divicend yield 4 3%
Value per option (pence) 1772

The expected volatility has been estirated using the historical volatility of the share price over a feur year period The expecied
lfe of the eotions has been adjusted based on management s best estimate, for the effects of behavioural considerations and
exercise restrictions The Group recognised an expense of £0 2 million (2011 £0 2 million) relating to equity-settled share-based
transactions in the year and a corresponding increase to equity

FINANCE INCOME

2012 2011
£m £m
Interest Income %9 G2
Other finance Income g1 23
Foreign exchange variances 0s G7
06 122
FINANCE COSTS
2012 201
£m £m
Interest expense
Bank loans 15.4 212
Debeniure loans 47 47
Unsecured bonds 28 12
Amortisation of lean issue costs 13 21
Total interest cosis 24.2 29 2
Less interest capitalised on develocment projec’s (0.1)
241 292
Movernent in fairvalue of derivative financial instruments
Interest rate sweps transactions net qualifying as hedges Q2 142
Interest rate caps transactions nct qualifysng as hedges 13 43
254 477
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31 Gecember 2012

10

"

60

TAXATION
2012 201
£m £m
Current tax charge/(credit) 23 12D
Deferred tax charge (note 22) 71 01
94 an

A deferred tax charge of £5 ¢ million (2011 credit of €4 6 million) was recognised directly in equity {ncte 22}

The charge for the year differs from the theoratical amount which would arise using the weightad averags tax rate applicable to
proiits of Group campanies as follows

2012 2011

Em Em

Profit before tax 561 377
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable ta profits in the respective countries 139 101
Expensas not deductible for tax purposas 07 on
Tax effect of unrecognisec crofits In associates and Jjoint ventures (12) (G 8)
Agjustment in respect of iIndexation allowance on Landen progerties (30) (£ &)
Other deferred tax adjustments (0 9) (18
Deferred tax assets not recognised 01 (08}
Adjustment in respect of pnor penods 12 33
Tax charge/{credit) for the year 94 an

The wesghted average applicable tax rate of 24 9% (2011 26 7%} was derived by applying ta their relevant profits and losses the
rates In the junisdicticns in wnich the Group operated

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Management has chosen to disclose the Zuropean Public Real Estate Associzticn (EPRA) measura of earnings per share which has
been provided to give relevant Information to investors gn the leng-term performance of the 8roup s underlying business The EPRA
measure excludes items which ara non-recurring in nature such as profits (net of related tax} on sale of investment properties and of
otner non-current Investments, and items which have no impact io earnings over their life, such as the change In fair value of dervative
financial instruments and the net movement on revaluation of Investment properties, and the related deferrec taxation an these items

2012 20m
Eartings £m Em
Profit for the period attributable to the owners of the Company 487 375
Revaluation gains on investment prooeriies (16 2) (18 M)
Prafit on sale of subsidiaries and associates - 22)
Net loss/(gain) on sale of corporate bonds and other investments 0.4 (0 5)
Change In fair value of dervatve financial instruments 1.5 185
Ceferred tax relating to the aoove adjusiments 29 05
Adjustments in respect of associates (5 8) 38
Non-recurring finance income - (23)
EPRA earnings 288 257

2012 201
Wesghted average number of ardinary shares Number Number
Weightad averace numper of ardinary shares in circulation 44,072,410 45738 400
Dilutive share cptions” 85,002 47 842
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 44,157,412 45 804,142

2012 201
Earnings per Share Pence Pence
Basic 106.0 8240
Ciluted 105.8 89
EPRA 653 449

t 300 900 share aplions were granted on 11 March 2010 at an exercise price of 470 pence
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Management has chosen to disclose tha two Eurapean Public Real Estate Association (EPRA) measures of net assets per share
EPRA net assets per share and EPRA tricle net assats per share The EPRA net asse's cer share measure highlights the fair value
of equity on a long-term basis and so excludes items which have no Impact on the Graup in the long term such as rair value
movements of cervatiwe financial Instruments and mavaments on fair value of investmant preperties and assoclated deferred tax
The EPRA triple net assets per share measure discloses net assets per share on a true fai- value basis zll balance sheet items are
included at their fair value In arriving at this measure including deferrad tax fixed rate loan Liabilities and any other nalance sheet

items not reported at fair value

2012 2011
Net Assets £m £m
Basic net assets 4171 3475
Dilutive imgact of share options 14 14
Diluted net assets 4185 3489
Adjustment to increase fixed rate debt to fair value, net or tax (23 9) (237)
Goodwill 25 a result of deferrad tax (11 (N
EPRA triple net assets 3935 3441
Deferred tax an property and cther nan-current assets T4 6 67 9
Fair value of derivative financial instruments 84 73
Adjustrnent to decrease fixed rate debt to baok value net of tax 239 237
Adjustments In respect of associates ! 30 19
EPRA net assets 503 4 444 9

2012 2011
Number of ordinary shares Number Number
Number of ordinary shares in circulation 43,305,876 44,953,611
Dilutive share options 300,000 300 000
Diluted numker aof ordinary shares 43,605,876 45253 611

2012 2013
Net Assets Per Share Pence Pence
Basic 9431 8175
Diluted 95% 7 8152
EPRA 1,154 4 2831
EPRA triple net 902.5 76Q 4
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
London France Germany Sweden Total
Em £m Em £m £m
At 1 January 2012 398.0 2483 1971 58 7 2021
Acquisitions 1341 - - - 131
Capital expenditure 8.4 14 55 07 14 2
Net movement on revaluation of investment properties 19.8 (35) - (01) 16 2
Rent-free period debtor adjustments - - 01 01 -
Exchange rate variances - (& 8) (53) 08 1M
At 31 December 2012 437.5 2394 197 4 400 9345
London France Germany Sweden Total
Em Em fm (m Cm
At § January 2011 3750 2487 196 5 547 874 9
Acquisitions b4 - 08 - 72
Capital expenditure 61 17 32 25 135
Net movement on revaluation of Investment properties 102 49 20 09 180
Rent-free period debtor adjustments 03 - - n 02
Exchange rate variances - (7 0) (5 4) (i3 (137
At 31 Decameer 2011 3980 2483 1971 587 9021

The investmenti properties (and the awner-occupied property detailed 1n note 14) were revalued at 31 Dacember 2012 to their fair
value Valuations were based on current prices in an active market for all propertizs The property valuations were carried cut by

external, professionally qualified valuers as follows
London Lambert Smith Hampton

France Jones Lang LaSalle

Germany Colliers Internaticnal

Sweden CB Richard Elis

Investment praperties included {easehcld properties with a carrying amount of £18 3 mullion (2611 £19 1 million)

Where the Group leases out its investment zroperty under operating leasas the dura.an s typically thiee years or more No contingent
rents have been recagnisec in aither the current or the comparative year

Substantially all investment properties (and the owner-accupiad property detailed in note 14) are secured against debt

In 2070 the Group purchasad a croperty in London for £1 8 millian Under the terms of the purchase agreement should the site
be developed additional cansideration may bacome due to the vendor The maximum bability in respect of this 1s estimatad ta be
£0 5 milien At the balance sheet eate the fair value of the Liability was £niL (2011 £nel)
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15

2012 2011
£m Em

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 40 54
Additions 02 02
Disposals {0 4) {19
Revaluation 01 a3
At 31 Decemcer 39 40
Accumutated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January (13 (28)
Depreciation charge 02) 02)
Oisposals 04 17
At 31 Decemeer (11 )]
Net book value
At 31 December 28 27

An owner-occupled property was ravalued at 31 December 2012 based on the external vatuation periormed by Lambert Smith
Hamoton as detailed in ncte 13

JOINT VENTURES

Ai 31 Decemper 2012 the Group had a cne-third interest (2011 one-tnird) in the 1ssued ordinary share capital of Fielden House
Investment Limited, a company incorparated in England and Wales which hae a coterminaus yezarend to that of the Group

The principal activity of Fielden House Investmeant Limited is investment in, and management and development of
commercial proparty

The fellowing amounts represent the Group s share of the assats and liabilities and of the iIncome and expenditure or Fielden
House Investment Limited which are included in the balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income of the Group

2012 201
£m £m
Assets
Non-current assets 27 23
Current assets - 02 a1
2.9 24
Liabilities
Current liabilities €0.1) (o1
Non-current Liabilities {2.0) (23)
2.1) (2 4)
Net assets 0.8 -
Incomea 02 02
Expenses (02 ()]

Profit after tax - -
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GODDWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Qther
Goadwall intangibles Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 11 - 11
Amaortisation
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 - - -
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 11 - 11
Other
Goodwill intangibles Total
£rm £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2011 186 72 258
Disposals (17 5) (72) (267
At 31 Decemcer 2011 11 - 11
Amartisation
At 1 January 2011 (17 5) (72) (247)
Disposals 175 72 247
At 31 December 2011 - - -
Net book value
At 31 Decemter 2011 i1 - 11

Goodwill comprised £0 8 million (2011 £0 8 million} on the acquisition of a French property porttolio in 2004 and £8 3 million
(2011 £0 3 miltion) an 2 German property acquisition 1n 2005 All other goodwilt and cther intangibles (relating to trade names
technology, customner relationships, capitalised development and other costs) which had oeen fully written down, related to the
Wyatt Media Group, which was sold in 2011, as described in note 33

Impairment review 2012 and 2011
Goodwill was reviewad for impairment at 31 December 2012 and &t 3} December 2011 using the key assumptians set out below
No adjustment for impairment was required

Key assumptians

Unamortised goodwilt at 31 December 2012 and at 31 Cecember 2011 related to contingent deferrad tax arising on acquisitions of
corporate antinias for which an equal deferrad tax lability was recognised in tne balance sheet Management have reviewed the
sensitivity to a fall in property values ot each cash generating unit A tall of 10% would result in a potential iImpairment ot goocwill
of up te €01 millian (2011 £0 1 mullion)
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Net assets Gooadwall Tatal
£m £m Em
At 1 January 2012 17 4 &7 24 1
Additions i 10 41
Share of profit af associates after tax 58 - 58
Dhividends received {0 8) - (0 8)
Exchange rate differences - a1 01
At 31 December 2012 55 78 333
Net assets Goodwill Tatal
£m £m tm
At 1 January 2011 38 68 406
Additions 07 14 21
Disposals - )] 195)
Share of profit of zssociates after tax a0 - 3a
Diwdends received (18 9) - (16 9}
Exchange rate differences 02 - (0 2)
At 31 Decemuer 2011 174 &7 241
The Group s Interests In its principal associates were as jollows
Bulganan Land
Development Gther
Catena AB Ple assaciates Total
At 31 December 2012 £m Em £m £Em
Interest held in ordinary share capital 29 % 48 3% varjous
Revenues a7 04 27 38
Share of profit/(loss) of associates after tax 58 (0.7) 07 58
Assets 261 8.4 100 445
Liabilities (124) (0.6) (6 0) (19 0)
Net assets 137 78 40 255
Goodwnill 52 - 24 78
Investments In assoclates 18¢ 78 64 333
Market value of interest 207 nfa nfa
BuigananLang
Develooment Otner
Catena AB Plc assaciates Total
At 31 December 2011 Em £m £m £m
Interest held 1 ordinary share caputal 29 9% 48 3% Various
Ravenues 08 04 D& 20
Share of profit/(loss) of associates after tax 37 (0 5) o2 30
Assets 199 93 08 300
Liabilities (11 5) (G &) a5 {12 %)
Nei assets B4 87 03 174
Goodwill 51 - 14 67
Investrments in associates 135 87 19 249
Market value of intarest 178 n/a nfa
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES CONTINUED
Catena AB

At 31 Decemczer 2012 the Group had a 2% 9% (2011 29 9%) interestin Catena AB, a isted Swedish property comeany Henry Klotz
Executive Vice Chairman of the Company, 15 the Non-Executive Chairman of Catena AB

Bulgarian Land Development Plc

At 31 Decernber 2012 the Group had a 48 3% (2011 48 3%} interest in Bulganan Land Development Plc {"2LD ) an unlisted developer
of residential and commerc:al real estate in Bulgana Henry Klotz, Exacutive Vice Chairman of the Company 1s the Non-Executive
Chairman of BLO

Other associates

As described in note 33 on 31 May 2011 the Group sold the remaining operating subsidiaries and certan associatas of the Wyatt Media
Group The entiies were acquired by Nyheter 24 (a Swedish on-Une news and media business) in exchange for a 20% interest in the
entarged Nyheter 24 group The fair value of the Group s interest in Nyheter 24 was determined on acguisition to be £1 9 mitlion Henry
Klotz, Executive Vice Chairman of the Company, was appointed to the board ot Nyheter 24

The Group retains an assoc:ate interest in ane former associate of the Wyatt Media Group

On 12 January 2012, the Group accuired a 16 6% interest in Cood Investrnents AB ("Cood ) an unlisted residential property company
specialising in haliday cottages and cabins on vacation sites in Sweden Henry Klotz Executive Vice Chairman of the Company, was
appointed to the board of Cood

Impairment
2012

In assessing the carrying value of Catena A2 management cansidered it was not iImpaired as the market value of the Group s Interest
in Catena exceeded its carrying value by £1 8 millien at 31 Decemnber 2012

BLD was carried in the balance sheet at a value equal ta the Group s share of its net assets BLD s audited net assets which were
prepared under [FRS, were reviewed and found not ta ce impaired at 31 December 2612 Accordingly there was no requirement to
provide for further impairment in tne carrying value of the Group s interest in BLD at 31 December 2012

The fair value of Nyheter 24 was determined cn acguisition to be £1 9 million and was based vpon detailed forward farecasts As the
precress to date has nct been matenally dissimilar from these forecasis management considered the carrying value of Nyheter 24
not t¢ be impeired at 31 December 2012

The fair value of Cood was assessad on acquisition and the resulis to date including the payment of a avidend, support the tair value

011

In assessing the carrying value of Catena A3, management considered that the net asset value of Catena s balance sheet was not
representative of true fair value as 1t did not include the latent development profit on Catena s remaining singte development site, Haga
Norra Furthermare the market value of the Group s interest in Catena exceeced its carrying value by £4 3 million at 31 December 2011

Bl.0 was carried in the bzlance sheet at a value equal to the Group s share of 1ts net assets BLO s audited net assets, which were
preparad under [FRS were reviewed and found not to be impaired at 31 December 2011 Accordingly there was no requirement to
provide for further impairment in ine carrying value of the Group s interest 1n BLO at 31 December 2011

The fair value of Nyheter 24 was determined on acquisition to be £1 ¢ million and was based upon detailed forward tarecasts As the
progress to date has nat been materially dissimilar rrom these forecasts management considered the carrying value of Nyheter 24
not 1o be iImpaired at 31 December 2011

OTHER INVESTMENTS

Destinahian of 2012 2011
Investment type Investment £m £m
Availanle-for-sale financial investments
carried at fair value Listed cornarate bonds UK 732 560
Eurazone 217 122
Other 32.4 149
127 3 851
Listed equity securitres UK 03 g5
Sweden 17 16
Other 02 01
Unlisted invesiments Sweden 03 04
Government securities UK 01 G1
1299 878
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The movemnent of other iInvestments analysed based on the methods used 10 measure thetr fair value was as follows

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
OQuated Jbservable Other
market market valuation
prices data methods® Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 2.3 851 04 878
Additions 0.6 45 4 - 662
Disposats (0.9) {46 3) (0 3) (475)
Fair value mavements recognised in reserves on available-for-sale assets 0.1 196 - 197
Fair value mavements recognised 1n profit before tax on availlable-for-sale assets 0.3 35 02 40
Exchange rate variations (0.1) (0 2) - {03)
At 31 December 2012 2.3 1273 03 1299
Leveli Level 2 Level 3
Quoted  (Observanle Gther
markat market valuation
prices data methads*  Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2011 31 781 04 814
Additions 76 545 - 621
Disposals (97 (311 - (388
Fair value movements recegnised in reserves on available-ror-sale assets {0 4) (15 4) - (160}
Fasr velue movements recegnised in profit before {ax an available-for-sale asseats [(OND)] 07}y - {C &)
Exchange rate vanations Q2 (01 - {03
At 31 Decemper 2011 23 851 04 878
* Unlisted equity shares valued using multiples frorm comparable listed argarmisations
Corporate Bond Portfolio
At 31 December 2012
Building
Sector Banking Insurance Societies Financials Other Total
Value £2% 3m £42 8m £8 7m £7 3m £39 2m £127 3m
Running yield 85% 7 5% 8 7% 7 0% 8 9% 82%
|ssuers ABC Brit Yorkshire Man Group TUI
RBS AXA Nationwide Abardeen AM Fiat
HB¢S Aviva SAS
Lloyds Generali Boparan
Investac Insh Life Europcar
Drasdner Swiss Re Teleforica
SNS Bank™ Swiss Life Swissport
Rothschild Direct Line Alliance Qil
Danske Bank* RL Finance Loticmatica
Phoenix Life Norske Skog

Lagal & General
riends Provident

Corral Finans
Thomas Coak

British Airways
Renewabta Energy Cerp

* Less than £0 3 million markel value
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2012 200
£€m Em

Current
Trade recaivables 30 36
Prapayments 09 g5
Accrued income 68 £2
Other debtors 63 23
170 146

There was no concentration of credit sk with respect to trade recewvables as the CGroup had a large number of customers spread
across the countries in which it operated

There were no matenal trade and other recevables classifiec as past due but nat impaired (2011 none) No trade and cther
recewatles were Interest-bearing

Includec within owner debtors 1s £5 0 rmullion (2011 £0 5 mdlion) due after more than one year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2012 014

£m £m

Czsh at bank and in hand 968 287
Shart-term bank deposits a8 29 4
976 553

At 31 Decemoer 2012 Group cash at bank and 1n hand included £4 8 miltion (2011 £5 8 mullion) which was restricted by a third-
party charge

Cash and short-term ceposits are invested at floating rates of interest based on relevant national LIBID and base rates or
equivalents in the UK France, Germany and Sweden

The cash and cash squivalents currency profile was as follows
Cash at bank Short-term

and in hand deposits Total

At 31 December 2012 Em Em £m
Sterling 59 6 08 60 &
Euro i5 8 - 158
Swedish Krona 2712 - 212
Other 0.2 - 02
95 8 08 974

Cash atbank Short-term

andinhang deposits Total
AL 31 December 2011 £m £m €m
Sterling 01 52 153
Euro i36 G4 140
Swedish Krona 20 240 260
27 296 553

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2012 2011
£m £m

Current

Trade payablas 14 17
Social security and other taxes 22 19
Other payables 74 40
Accruals 110 14
Deferred income 108 ¢4
330 04
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2012 2013
£m £m
Deferred tax asseis
- after maore than 12 menths (87 77
Deserred tax Lbabibities
- after mara than 12 menths 778 750
691 573
Tne movernent In deferrec tax was as follows
2012 20411
£m Em
At 1 January 573 433
Charged in arriving at profit after tax 71 01
Charged/{credited} to other comprehensive Incame 59 (4 8)
Exchange rate vanances (12) {(15)
At 31 December 691 573

The rmovement In deferrec tax assets and babilities during tne year without taking mto consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdictian, was as follows

Tax losses Other Total
Deferred tax assets £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 (10 &) (71 a7rn
Charged In arriving at profit after tax 5.1 10 51
Charged ta cther comprehensive income - 2.9 29
At 31 December 2012 (5.5) (32) (87
Tax losses Other Total
Deferred tax assets £ Em £m
At 1 January 2011 G n 61 12
(Crecited)/chargad in arrving at prafit after tax (5 5) 20 39
Cradited to other comprehensive mcome - Gn 3n
Exchange rate variances - 01 01
At 31 Decemncer 2011 (10 8) 71 Qa7
Fairvalue
adjustments to
UK capital Investment
allowances properties Other Total
Deferred tax Liallities Em Em fm £m
At 1 January 2012 %7 64 5 o8 750
{Credited)/charged \n arriving at profit after tax {0 3) 14 (01) 10
Charged to other comprehensive income - - 30 30
Exchange rate variances - (12) - (12)
At 31 December 2012 94 84 7 37 778
Fair value
adjus.ments lo
UK capnal invesiment
allowances procerties Other Total
Deferred tax kablities £m £m £m Em
At 1 January 2011 102 623 20 745
(Credited)/chargad 1n arriving at profit after tax 05) 38 03 3é
Cradited to ather comprehensive income - - (19) (15)
Exchange rate variances - {18) - (16)
At 31 Decemper 2011 g7 64 3 08 750
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DEFERRED TAX CCNTINUED

Deferrec tax assets are recognisad in respect of tax losses carriec forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits 1s probable At 31 December 2612 the Group did not recogruse deferred tax assets of £8 2 milbon
(2011 £7 2 rullion) in respect of losses amounting te £33 2 million (2011 £27 9 million) which can be carriec forward against
future taxable Income or gains The majority of deferred tax assets recognised within tne otner calegory retate either to deferred
tax on swaps with a negative book value or to corporate bonds carried at below cost Losses recognised as deferred tax assets can
be carried farwara without restriction

On 3 April 2013 the UK corporation tax rate reduces from 20% to 23% As this nas been substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date the UK deferred tax assets and Lizbllities have been calculated a2t a rate of 23% The impact on net assets for 2012 as a result
of this change was an increase of £1 0 milbon 1t 15 expectad that UK tax rates will reduce to 22% by 1 April 2014 A further 1% fall
In the rate of UK tax would increase net assets by £0 5 million, and increase profit after tax by £3 Omitlion

BORROWINGS
Total
Current  Non-current berrowings
At 31 December 2012 £m £m £m
Bank loans 1345 414.6 549.1
Debenture loans 13 305 318
Zero coupon note - 121 121
Unsecured bonds 02) 922 9240
135 & 549 4 68510
Total
Current  Mon-current borrowings
At 31 December 2011 £m £m £m
Bank loans 150 0 399 6 849 4
Debenture loans 12 318 330
Zero coupen note - 1079 109
Unsecured bancs - 275 275
151 2 469 8 6210

Arrangement fees of £5 2 million (2011 £4 1 millian) have been orfset in arriving at the balances intne above tables

Bank loans

Interest cn bank loans is charged at fixed rates ranging between 3 1% and 11 2%, including margin (2011 3 1% and 11 2%) and at
floating rates of typically LIBOR EURIBOR cr STIBOR plus a margin Fixed rate margins range between 0 8% and 1 8% (2011 08%
and 1 8%) and flaating rate margins range between C 8% and 3 8% (2011 08% and 3 8%) All bank loans are securad by legal
charges over the respective properties and in most cases a floating charge aver the remainder of the assets held in the company
which owns the property In addition, the snare capital of some of the subsigiaries within the Group has been charged

Debenture loans

The debenture loans represent amortising bonds which are repayakle in equal quarterly instzlments of £1 Z mitlion {2017 €1 2 million)
with final repayment due in January 2025 Eachinstalment 1s appartioned betweern principal and interest on a reducing balance
pasis Interestis charged at an annual fixad rate of 16 8%, 1ncluding margin The debentures are secured by a legal charge over a
properiy and securitisation of its rental income

Zero coupon pote

The zero coupon note accrues interest at an annual ra*e of 11 2% including margin It 1s unsecured and is redeematle as a balloon
repaymant of principal and interest of £43 7 million 1n aggregate in February 2025

Unsecured honds

On 11 September 2012 the Group 1ssued £65 0 million unsezured retail honds, which attract a fixed rate coupan of 5 5% and are
due fer repayment in 2019 The bonas are listad on the London Stock Exchange s Order baok for Retail Bonds

On 15 April 2011, the Group 1ssued SEK 300 million unsecured bonds The ponds attract a floating rate coupon of 3 75% over three

manths STIBOR and are due for repayment in 2016 After two years, the Group has an option to redeem all outstanding bonds
subject tc an early repayment premum The bonds were listed on the NASDAGQ OMX Stockholm an 5 July 2017
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Loan covenants
There ware no cavenant braacnes at 31 Decemnber 2012 or au 31 December 2011

The matunty prenle of the carrying amount of the Group s borrowings was as folicws

Debenture  Zero coupon Unsecured
Bank loans loans note bonds Total
At 31 December 2012 Em £m £m £m £m
Within one year or on demand 1357 13 - - 1370
More than one but not more than two years 371 15 - - 38 4
Mare than twe but not more than five years 286 1 55 - 28 4 3200
Mare than five years 940 235 121 650 194 &
5529 318 121 93.4 690 2
Unamortised i1ssue costs (3 8) - - {14) (5.2)
Borrowings 5491 s 121 920 6850
Less amount due tor settlement within 12 months (134 5 (13) - 0.2 (135 &)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 4146 05 121 922 549 4
Debenture  Zero coupon Unsecurad
Bank loans loans note bonds Total
At 31 December 20114 £m £€m £m Em £m
Wirhin ene year or on demand 1510 i2 - - 152 2
Mare than one out not more than two years 719 i3 - - 732
Mare than twe aut not more than five years 199 4 so - 280 232 4
Mare than five years 130 9 253 109 - 187 3
553 2 330 109 280 4251
Unamortised 1ssue costs (38) - - (08) (& 1)
Borrowings 549 6 330 mne 275 6210
Less amount due for sattlement within 12 months (150 0) 2 - - (151 2)
Amaounts due for settlement after 12 months 3694 318 109 275 449 8

The interest rate risk profile of the Group s fixed rate borrowings was as follows

At 31 Dacernber 2012

At 31 December 2011

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weghted
average average average average
tixed rate period for fixed rate periad far
of financial  whichrate s of financial  which rate1s
Liabilities fixed liabilities fized
Years % Years
Sterling 75 85 g4 i
Euro 51 16 51 Z3
The interest rate risk profile of the Group s {loating rate borrowings was as follows
At 31 December 2012 At 31 December 2041
Average Average
capped capped
% of net nterest Average % of net interast Average
floating rate rate tenure  floating rate rate tenure
loans capped % Years loans capped % Years
Sterling 33 3.0 29 46 37 22
Euro 79 31 29 75 32 38
Swedish Krona 44 26 09 53 26 19
Gther - nfa nfa - n/a n/a
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The carrying amounts of tha Group s borrowings are dencminated in the following currencies

Fixedrate Fleating rate

finangial financial
habilties Liabibities Total
At 31 December 2012 £m Em £m
Sterling 1239 206 9 3308
Euro 605 2236 284 1
Swedish Krona - 48.6 &8 6
Other - 15 15
184 4 500 & 6850

Fixedrate  Floating rate

financeal financial
lizbilties bahiiities Tatal
At 31 December 2011 tm £m Em
Sterbing 50 2 1835 2437
Euro 132 2394 3128
Swedish Krona - 587 587
Other - 58 c8
133 4 4876 6210

The carrying amounts and {air values of the Group s borrowings are as follows
Carrying amounts Fair values

2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Current borrowings 1354 131 2 1361 1512
Non-current borrowings 549 4 469 8 579 8 5011
4850 6210 7159 6523

Arrangement fees of £5 2 million (2011 £4 1 million) have been offset in arriving at the balances in the above table

The fair value of non-current corrowings represents the ameunt at which a financial instrument cauld be excnanged inan arm s
length transaction cetween informed and willing parties, discounted at the prevailling mar'<et rate and excludes accrued mterest

The Group has the following undrawn committad facilities available at 31 December

2012 2011
£m Em
Floating rate
- expiring within one year 219 0é
- expiring afier cne year 129 -
I8 gé
24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
202 2012 201 20113
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£m £m £m £m
Non-current
Interest rate swaps - (g8 8) - (51}
Interest rate caps 02 - 15 -
02 {8.8) 15 51
Current
Interest rate swaps - {0.4) _ —
Currency optiens 0é - G4 -
Forward fareign exchange contracts - - - @1
04 {0 4) 04 @n
08 2 19 (52)
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The valuaticn methods used to measure the fair value of all dervative financial iInstruments were darived from inputs which were
aither observable 25 prices ar derved from prices (Level 2)

There were no derwmative financial instruments accounted for as hedging instruments

Interest rate swaps

The aggregate notional orincipel of interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2012 was £48 4 milion (2011 £50 0 rrullion) The
average pertod to matunity of these interest rate swass was 3 1 years (2011 4 1years)

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group uses forward foreign exchangea cantracts from time to ume to add certainty to, ang to mmimise the impact of foresgn
exchange movements en commutted cash flows At 31 December 2012 the Group had £9 9 million of outstanding net fereign
exchange centracts (2011 £19 9 million)

Currency options

The Group uses currency options from time to time to hedge the foreign exchange risk relating to the translatian of the Group s net
Investment in overseas suosidiaries At 31 Decermnber 2012 the Group had no currency options (2011 €90 0 million 1n excnange for
steriing 2t an average exchange rate of £1 £1 2878)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets of the Group comprise Iinterest rate caps, foreign currency options and forward contracts available-for-sale
Investments Investments in associates trade and other receivables and casn and cash equivalents

Financial Labilities of the Group comprise Interest rate swaps forward foreign currency contracts bank loans, debenture loans,
Zero coupan notes, unsecured oonds, trade and cther pavacles and current tax labilies

Tne fair values of financial assets and liabilites are determined as follows

(a) Interast rate swaps and cacs are measured at the present value of future cash flows based on applicable yield curves derived
from quoted interest rates

(b) Fareign currency options and forward contracts are measureg using quoted forware exchange rates and yield curves darived
from quated interest rates matching maturities of the contracts

(c) The fair values of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities with standard terms and condiions and traded on active Liguid
markets are deterrmined with reference to guoted markei prices Financial assets in this categary mclude available-fer-sale
Instruments such as listed corperae bonds and equity Investments

(d) In mare illiguid cenditicns nen-derivative ninancial assets are valued using multiple quotes ootained from market makers and
from pricing snecialists Where the spread of prices 1s tightly clustered the consensus price 1s deemed to be fair value Where
prices become more dispersed or there 15 a lack of available quoted data, further procedures are undertaken such as evidence
from the last non-forced trace

(&) The fair values of other non-derivative financial assets and financial lakilities are determined In accordance with generally
accepted priceng medels based on ciscounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions
and dealer quotes for similar instruments

Except for investments in associates and fixed rate loans, the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilines recorded at
amortised cost approximate ta their fair value

Capital nsk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able te continue as coing concerns while maximising
the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity balancas The capital struclure of the Group consists of debt
cash and cash equivalents, other investments and equity attribuiable to the owners of the parent cemprising Issued capital,
reserves and retained earnings Management perform stress tests of the Group s business model to ensure that the Group s
objectwes can be met The objectives have heen met in the year

The Qirectars review the capital structure on a quarter'y basis to ensure that key strategic goals are teing acnieved As part of this
revigw they consider the cost of capital and the risks asscciated with each class of capital
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

The gearing ratio at the year enc was as follows

2012 2011

£m £m

Debt 490 2 86251
Liquic resources (224 9) (140 4)

Net debt 485 3 484 7

Equity 4171 3675

Ne debt to equity ratio 112% 132%

Debt s defined as long and short-term borrowings befora unamartised 1ssue costs as detailed in nete 23 Liquic resources are
cash and short-term descsits and listed corporate bonds Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group attnbutable tc the
owners of the Cempany

Externally imposad capital requirement

At 31 Decemnper 2012 the Group was subfect 10 3 minimum equity ratio of total equity to total assets of 22 5% imposed by
unsecured bonds of £92 0 milhon (2011 £27 5 million) The Group was aiso restricted from making cistributions to shareholders if
to so would reduce net assets below £250 million imposad by unsecured bonds of £64 1 million (2011 nfa) Additonally the Group
was subject to externally imposed capital requirements to the extant that debt covenants may require group comoanies to maintain
ratios such as debt to equity (or similar) below certain levels

Risk management abjectives

The Group s activities axpase 1t to a variety of financial risks whicn can be grouped as
¢ market risk

¢ creditrisk

s« hquidity risk

The Group s overall risk management approach seeks to minimise potantial adversa effects on *he Group s financial performance
whilst maintaining flexiplity

Risk management 15 carried out by the Group s treasury department in close co-aneration with the Group s cperating units and
with guidance from the Beard of Directors The Board reguiarly assessas and reviews the financial nsks and exposures of the Group

{a) Market risk

The Group s activities expose 1t primarily to the financial nisks of changes in interest rates and fereign currency exchange
rates, and to & lesser extent other price risk The Group enters into a variety of derwative financral instruments to manage its
exposure ta Interest rate and foreign currency risk and also uses natural hadging strategies such as matching the duration
interest payments and currency of assets and liabilities

() Interest rate risk

The Group s most significant interest rate risk arises fram its long-term variable rate borrawings Interest rate rsk Is
regularly monitored by tne treasury department and by the Board on bath a country and a Group basis The Board s
policy I1s to mitigate variable interest rate exposure whilst maintaining the ilexibility to barrow at the oest rates and with
considerztion to potentizl penalties on termination of fixed rate teans To manage its exposure the Group uses interest
rate swaps, interest rate caps and naturat heaging from cash held on deposit

In assessing nsk a range of scenaries 1s taken into consideration such as refinancing, renewal of existing positiens and
alternativa financing and hedging Under thesa scenaries the Group calculates the timpact on the statement of
cemprehensive income for a detined mavement in the uncerlying interest rate The impact of a reascnably bkely movement
N Iintarest rates 1s set out below

2012 2011

Statement of Statement of

Comprehensive Camprehensive

Income Incame

Scenaro £m Em
Cash +50 basis points 02 03
Variable borrewings (including caps) +80 basis soints (23) (19
Cash -50 basis points {0 2) (C3)
Variable borrowings (including caps} -50 basis coints 24 20




CLS Holdings plc

Apnsal Papo -t & A coun's

(1) Fareign exchange nisk

The Group does nct have any regular transactional foreign exchange exposure However 1thas operations in Eurone
which transact ousiness dencminated in euros and to a lesser extent in Swedish kronor Censaquently, thera 1s
currency exposure causad by translating the local trading performance and net assats into sterling for sacn financial
period and balance sheet respectively

The policy of the Group 1s to mateh the currency of investmenis with the related borrowing which largely eliminates
faraign exchange risk on property investments A portian of the remaining operations equating to the net assets of the
faraign property operations 15 nat hedgad except In exceptional circumsiances such as the uncertainty surrounding the
euro in tate 2011 Where foreign excnange risk anses from future commercial transactions the Group will hedge the
future cermmitted cemmaercial transaction using foreign exchange swaps cr forward foreign exchange cantracts

The Group s principal currency exposuras are In respect of the euro and the Swedish krona If the value of sterling were
to increase or decrease i strength the Group s net asse*s and profit for the year would be affected The impact of 8 1%
Increase or decrease \n the sirength of sterling against these currencies 1s set out below

2012 012 2011 20113
Prafit Profit
Net assets befare tax Net assets hefore tax
Scenario €m £€m £m £m
1% increase invalue of sterling zgainst tne euro (13) (on an wun
1% increase in value of sterling against tne Swedish krona €0 4) (0 1) 7D en
1% fall in value of sterling against the eure 14 01 i1 a1
1% fall in value of sterling against the Swedish krona 04 01 07 a1

(1) QOther price risk

Tne Group 1s expasad to corporate bond price risk and, to a lesser extent, to aquity securities price risk because of
investments held by the Group and classified 1n the balance sheet as avaitable-for-sale

In order to manage the risk in relation to the holdings of carporate bonds and equity securiies the Group holds a
diversined portfolte Diversification of tne partfolic 1s managad in accorgance with the Umits set up by the Group

The table nelow shows the effect on other comprehensive incorme which would result from an increase or decrease of
10% \n the market value or corporate boncs and equity securities, which 1s an amount management believes to te
reasonable in the current market

2012 2013

Other Other

Comprehensive  Comprehensive

’ Income Incorme

Scenario Shift of 10% 1n valuations €m Em
10% fall 1n value (12 0) g8
10% increase in value 130 88

{b) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group Credit nsk arnises from the zbility of customers to meet outstanding recevables and future lease commitments and
from tinancial institutions with which the Grouo places cash and cash ecuwalents ang entersinta derivative financial
instruments Tne maximum exposure to credit risk 1s partly represented oy the carrying amounts of the financial assets
which are carried in the balance sheet, including derwatives with positive fair values

For crecit exposure other than to occupiers, the Directors believe that counterparty risk 1s minimisad to the fullest extent
possible as the Group has polictes which Limit the amount of credit 2xpesure to any individual financial institution

The Group has policies In place o0 ansure tnat renial contracts are made with customers with an apprepriate credit history
Credit risk to custormars 1s assessac by a process ai Internal and external credit scering and 1s reduced by obtaining bank
quarantees from the customer or its parent, and rental deposits The overall credit risk in ralztion to customers 1s menitored
en an ongoing basis Morsover, a significant proportion af the Group cortfolio 1s Let to Government occuplers which can be
considered financially secure
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()

At 21 Decemner 2012 the Group hele £129 9 million (2011 £87 8 million) of available-for-szle and other financial assets
Management considers the creait nsk associated witn individual transactions anc manitors the risk on a continuing basis
Information 1s gathered from external credit rating agencies and othar market sources to allow management to react te any
percetved change In the underlying credit risk of the instruments in which the Group invests This allows the Group to
minimise Its credit exposure to such items and at the same time to maximise returns for shareholders

The table below shows the external Standard & Poor s credit banding on the avallable-for-sale and other investments held by
the Group

2012 20
S&P Credit rating at baiance sheet date £€m £m
Investment grace 429 270
Non-investment grade Ad 1 207
Not rated 42,9 401
Total 1299 878

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk rmanagement requires maintaining sufficient cash ather liquid assets and the avallability of funding to meet
short medium and long-term requirements The Group maintains adequate levels of liquid assets to fund operations and to
allow the Group to react cuickly to patential cpporiunities

Management moritors rolling forecasts of the Group s Liquidity on the basis of expected cash flows so that future
requirements can be managed effectivaly

Tna majonity oi the Group s debts arranged oni an asset-specific non-recourse basis This allows the Group a nighar degree of
flexibility in dealing with petential covenant defaults than it the debt was arranged under & Group-wide borrowing racility

Loan covenant compliance i1s closely monitored by the treasury departmant Potenual covenant breaches can aordinarily be
avoideq gy placing additional security or @ casn deposit witn the lender or by partial repaymen. betare an event of default
takes place There wera no patential lcan-to-vzlue covenant breaches at 31 Becember 2012

|
The table below analysas the Group s contractual undiscountec cash slows payable under financial Liabibities and derwative ‘L
assats and liabilities at the balance sheet date, into relevant maturity groupings based on the period remaining to the '
contractual matunty date Amaunts due within one year are equivalent ta the carrying values in the balance sheet as the
impact of discounting 1s not signincant

Less than 1 year 1to2years  2toSyears Over Syears

At 31 December 2012 £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial labilities

Borrowtngs 1370 38.6 320.0 194 &
Interest payments on borrowings' 211 197 452 252
Trade and other payables 330 - - -

Forward foreign exchange contracts
Cash flow hedges

~ Qutflow 99 - - - :
- Inflow (S RD] - - -
Less than 1 year Tto2years  2to Syears  Over Syears
At 371 Decernber 2011 m tm &m m
Non-derwauve financial babitlitres
Borrowings 1522 732 2324 1673
Interest payments on borrowings” 2212 173 393 258
Trade and other payatles 304 - - -

Forward foreign exchange contracts
Cash flow hedges

- Outflow 199 - - -
- Inflow (199 - - -
t Interest payments on borrowings are calculated without taking into account future events Floating rate :nterest 1s estimated using a future interest

rate curve as at 31 Dacember
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26 SHARE CAPITAL

27

Number
Ordinary
Ordinary Total shares in Treasury Total ardinary
shares n Treasury ordinary circulation shares shares
<ireuiation shares shares Em Em £m
At 1 January 2012 44,953,611 4,803,103 49,756,714 1123 12 12.5
Cancelled following tender affers (1,647,735) - (1,647,735) {05) - (0.5)
At 31 December 2012 43,305,876 4,803,103 48,108,979 108 12 120
Number
Ordinary
Ordinary Tatal sharas in Treasury Total ordinary
sharasin Treasury crdinary circuiation shares shares
arculation shares shares £m Em £m
At 1 January 2011 46 588,244 4,793,000 51 381,244 17 12 129
Cancelled following tender offer {1 624 530) - (1624530 (0 4) - (0 4)
Purchase of own shares
- pursuant to market purchase (10 103) 10,103 - - - -
At 31 December 2011 44,953 611 4,803103 4% 7356 714 113 12 125

Ordinary shares have a nominal value of 25 pence each

TENDER OFFER BUY-BACKS

Atender offer by way of a Circular dated 16 March 2012 for the purchase of 1 1n 42 shares at 735 pence per share was completed in
April It returned £7 ¢ million to shareholders equivalent to 17 5 pence per share

Atender offer by way of a Circular dated 24 August 2012 for the purchase of 1 1n 74 shares at 805 cence per share was completea
In September [t returned £4 6 miltion to sharehalders, equivalent tc 10 6 pence per share

A furtner tander ctfer will he put to shareholders in April 2013 far the purchase of 11n 44 shares at a price of 900 zence per share
which 1f approved will return £8 & mullion to shareholders, equivalant to 19 4 pence per share

28 SHARE PREMIUM
2012 2011
Em Em
At 1 January and at 31 December 715 715
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OTHER RESERVES

Capital Cumulative
redemption transiation Fair value Other
Teserve reserve reserve reserves Tatal
£m £m tm £m £m
At 1 January 2012 212 46 4 N 281 8460
Purchase of own shares
- cancellatron pursuant to tender offer 05 - - - 05
Exchange rate variances - (24) - - (26)
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
- net fair value gains in the year - - 237 - 237
- deferred tax thereon - - (59) - 59
Revaluation of owner-occupied property - - 01 - 01
At 31 December 2012 217 438 82 281 1018
Capital Cumulative
recemption transtation Fair value Othar
reserve reserve reserve reseryes Total
£m Em £m fm £m
At 1 January 2011 208 514 22 281 1025
Purchase of own shares
- cancellation pursuant to tender affer 04 - - - 04
Exchange raie variances - {50) - - (50)
Available-far-sale financia! assets
- net fair value lasses in the year - - (16 B) - {14 8)
- deferred tax thereon - - 46 - 46
Revaluatian of owner-accupied property - - 03 - 03
At 31 Decemaoer 2011 212 4é 4 ¢7 281 860

The cumulative translztion reserve comprises tne aggregate 2ffect of translating nat assets of overseas subsidiaries into sterling

since acquisition

The fair value reserve comprises the aggregate movement in the value of corporate bonds other avallable-for-sale assets and

owner-occupted property since acguisition net of deferred tax

The amaount classified as other reserves was created prior to listing in 1994 an & Group recansiruction and 15 censiderec to be

non-distributable

CASH GENERATED FRGM OPERATIONS

2012 2011
£m £m
Operating profit 65.3 702
Adjustments for
Net movements on revaluatian of investment croperties (16 2) (12 0}
Depreciaticn and amcertisation 02 02
Profit on sale of subsidianies and asscciates - (22)
Net loss/{cain) on szle of corparate bonds and ather investments 04 (09
Share-basea nayment expense 02 g2
Non-cash rental income - (3]
Revaluation of currency options - 01
Changes in working capital
Decrease In deptors 08 28
Increase in crediters 34 15
Cash generated from operations 543 541
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CONTINGENCIES

Azcounts

At 31 December 2012 CLS Holdings plc had guaranteed certain liabilities of Group companies These were primarily in relation to
Group borrowings and covared interest and amortisation payments No cross-guarantees had been given by the Group in relation to
the princtpal amounts af these borrowings Certain warranties given in the course of corperate sales during 2008 aither have been

pravided for or are toc remaote to be cansidered contingent

COMMITMENTS

The Group leases otfica space under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The future aggrecate minimum lease paymants

under these non-cancellable cperating leases are as follows

2012 2011
Operating lease commitments - where the Broup 1s the lessee £€m £m
Mare than cne but not more than five years 0.4 05
Mare than five years 0.4 o8
0.8 13

At the balance sheet date the Group had contracted with customers for the following mintmum lease payments
2012 20Mm
Operating lease cornmitmenis - where the Group is lessor £m Em
Within cne year b6 b 4% 4
Mare than cne but not more than five years 2131 2192
More than five years 2090 228 8
488 7 510 4

Operating leases where the Group 15 the lessor are typizally negotiated on a customer-by-customer tasis and include break

clauses and indexatian provisions

Qther commitments

At 31 December 2012 the Group had centracted capital expenditure of £2 3 million (2011 £nil) There were no autharisad financial

commitments which were yet to be contracted with third parties (2011 none)
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33 BUSINESS DISPOSALS
Wyatt Media Group

On 31 May 2011 the Greup disposed of its Interests in Wyatt Media Group ccmprising five subsidiaries and two associates All of
the corporate enlities solc were previously reparted in the Otner Investments™ division The entities were disposad of In & share-
for-share exchange with Nyheter 24 (a Swedish on-line news and medta business} and the Group recaived a 20% interest n
Nyheter 24 following the transaction In addition the Group received 2 £0 5 million convertible loan nowe

Em
Net assets disposed of
Investments In assaciates 15
Property, plant and equipment ai
Trade and other recewvacles 04
Cash and cash squivalents a1
Trade and other payables (0 5)
16
Gain an dispasal of subsidiaries and associates a5
Costs of disposal a3
Total consideration 94
Satisfied by
Convertible loan notes recesved 05
Snzres in Nyneter 24 (note 17) 19
Z4
Ne- casn inflow arising on dispesal
Cash consideration -
Cash and cash aquvalents disposed ot (01}
@n
2012 2011
Profit an disposal of subsidiaries and associates £m £m
Disposal of the Wyatt Media Group - 05
Relzase of provisions and guarantees in relation to corporate disposals made In prior years - 17
- 22

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The group financial statements include the financial statemenis of CLS Holdings plc and all of 1ts subsidiaries the principal ones

of which are listed helow

The Diractors consider that to give full paruiculars of all subsiciary undertakings would lead to a statement of excessive length
The fellewing imformation relates ta tnose wholly-cwrned subsidiary companies whose results or financial position, 1n the opinion
of the Directars, principally affected those of the Group

Adlershofer Sart*

Apex Tower Limited
Caventry hause Limited
End:cott Sweden AB
Freres Peugeot SCI**
Great West Housa Limited

Incorporated in Luxembourg
** Incorporated in France
*** Incorporated in Sweden

Grossglockner Sarl*

Ingrove Limiied

Kapellen Sarl*

Muselon Forvaltnings AB*=*
Narepere Sarl*

New =rinting House Square Limited

NYK investments Lirmited

Spring Gardens Limited

Spring Mews Lirnited

Vanerparken Property Investment KB***
Vauxheil Crosa Limited

The princical actvity of eacn of these subsidiaries 1s oroperty investment, apart fram Coventry House Limited Zndicott Sweden AB,
Museton Forvaltnings AB and NYK Investments Limited wnose pringipal activities are to act as investment companies All of the

above subsidiary undertakings are incorporated in the United Kingdom unless stated otherwise To comply with the Companies Act
2006 a full List ot subsidiaries will be filea with the Company s next annual return
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Assaciates and Joint Venturas

A Group company providec accounting services to Bulgarian Land Development plc an associate ¢f the Group, for which a charge
of £48 000 was made (2011 E£48,000) of which ZmL{2011 £15 000) remained outstanding at the balance snzet date

In 2011, & Group comoany charged Catena AB an associate of the Group £74,700 for management services provided by Henry
Klotz, the Executive Vice Chairman of CLS Holdings ple In relation to this transaction £nel (2011 £74 700) remained outstanding
at the balance sheet date

At 31 Decermter 2012 the Group hac a convertible loan of £473,140 (2011 £446,905) due from Nyheter24 Media Network AB

an associate company Until 1 May 2015 this loan 1s interest iree, and thereafter atiracts Swedish base rate plus 2% At any date
between 1 May 2016 and 30 June 2014, the Group 1s permittad to cenvert the loan into shares 1n NyheterZ4 Media Netwark AB
at SEK 40 § each

The Group had a ane-third interest in a joint venture Fielden House Investment Limited which owed a loan to a Group company of
£350,000 (2011 £350,000) Interest of £8 774 (2011 £8 750), recewvable on this loan at a rate of 2 0% acove base rate, was accrued
in the year Accruec interest of £87 531 (2011 £78,757) remained ouisanding at the balance sheet date

0On 12 January 2012 the Group acquired 5 14 4% interest in Cood Invesiments AB ¢ Cood ), for £4 1 million, and alsa provided to
Cood up to £8 0 million of landing facilities at market rates This was a related party transaction as first, the trust in whicn Sten
Martstadt Executive Chairman of CLS Haldings ple 1s benenicially interested (the Trust ) simultaneously acquired at the same
price per share an 8 39% in and provided lending facilies on the same terms t0 Cooc and second Chrisier Sandberg whe s a
diractor of certain Group companies owned 7 5% of the enlargec equity of Cood At the balance sheet date, loans to Cood from the
Group wera £4 525 110 (2011 £nil) and during the year interest of £42 920 (2011 £nil) was charged an these loans, of which

£25 270 (2017 €nit) was outstanding at the balance sheet date The Group also cnarged Cood fees of £44,555 (2011 £rul) relating
to the arrangement of these loans As a result of averpayment of these fees a balance of £9,580 {2011 £nil) was owed to Cood at
the balance sheet date

Transactions with Directars

Distributions tatalling £7,737,720 (2011 £6,718,039) were made througn tender offer buy-backs in the year in respect of ordinary
shares held by the Company s Direc.ors

In August 2012 companies connected with Sten Moristedt subscribed for retait bonds totalling £1 120,000, Richara Tice subscribed
for £90 000 Thomas Thomson subscrized for £4é 900 and Malcolm Cooper subscribed for £30 000 on the 1ssue by the Company of
1ts unsecured retail bond

During the year, a campany owned by Sten Mortstedt rented office space to a Groun company, Vanerparken Investment AB
("Vanerparken ), at & cost of £37,270 (2011 £19,000), and 1n 2011 to another Group company, Forvzltnings AB Klio ("Klio ) at a
cost of £19,000 At the balance sheet date Vanerparken had signed an agreement to lease the office space until 31 December 2014
at 3 cost of £37,270 per annum Also, a company owned by Sten Morstedt purchased accountancy services from Vanerparken
during the year amounting to £8,950 (2011 £3,000) and in 2011 from Klio for £5,000 In relation to all of these transactions, ne
balances were outstanding at the balance sheet date (2011 £nil)

Directors’ Remuneration

The remuneration of the Directors who are the key management parsannel of the Group 15 set out below in aggragate for 2ach of
the categanes specified in I1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures Infermation about the remuneraton of individual directors s provided
in the auditec part of the Remuneration Commitiee Report an pages 39 to 45

2012 20119

£000 £000

Snert-term employee benerits 1,960 1,735
Post-emgployment benefits 20 19
1,980 1754
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CLS HOLDINGS PLC

We have audited the group financial statements cf CLS Holdings
ple for the year ended 31 December 2012 which comprise the
group statement of comprehensive income, the group balance
sheet, the group statement of chances in equity the group
statement of cash flows and the related notes 1 to 35 The
financial reperting framewcrk that has been applied in their
preparation Is apglicable law and International Frnancial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adapted by the European Unon

This report 1s made solely to the Cempany s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 14 of the Campanies Act
2006 Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state ta the Comoany s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor s report and for no other purpose

To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsitility to anyone other than the Campany and the
Cempany s members as a bady, for our audit work for this
repert, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUCITOR

As explained mere fully in the Sta.ement of Directars
Responsibitities on pages 37 and 38, the Directars are respansible
for the preparation of the group financial statements and far
being satistied that they give a true and iair view Cur respansibility
Is to audit ang express an apinion on the group financial statements
in accardance with applicable law and Internatianal Stancards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the arounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatament whather caused by fraud or errcr Thes includes an
assessmant of wherher the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Group s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adecuately disclosed the reascnableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Directors and the overall presentation of
the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial intormation in the annual report to 1Identfy material
incensistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any iInformatian that 1s apparently matenally incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistant with, the knowledge acquirad
by us in the course of performing the audit 1f we become aware
of any apparant material misstatemeants or incansistencles we
consider the implications for our raport

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinton the group financial statements

¢ give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group s affairs as
at 31 Dacember 2012 and of its profit for the year then ended

* have been properly grapared tn accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Unton and

+ have been prepared In accordance with the reauirements of
the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Requlation
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SEPARATE OPINION IN RELATION TC IFRSS AS ISSUED BY THE I1ASB

As explained in note 2 to the group financial statements

the Group 1n addition to complying with its legal abligation to
apply IFRSs as adcpted by the European Union, has also applied
IFRSs as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB}

In our opinion the group financial statements comply with IFRSs
as 1ssued by the IASB

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES
ACT 2006

In our opinion the infarmation given 1n the Directors Repart for
the financial year for which the group financial statements are
preparad Is consistant with the group financiat statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY
EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Cempanies Act 2006 we are required (o report 0 you If
M GUT OPINION

s ceriain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by
law are nct made or

* we have not receivec all the iformation and explanations we
reguire for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

¢ the directors statement contained within the Direciors
Report In relation to going cencern,

*  the part of the Corporate Governance Staterent relating to
the Company s campliance with the nine provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review and

s cerain elements of the repor-to shareholders by tne Board
on directors remuneration

OTHER MATTER

We have reportad separately on the parent company financial
stalements of CLS Haldings plc or the year ended 31 December
2012 and on the information in the Directors Remuneration
Repart that 1s described as having been audited

Mark Beddy (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Delaitte LLP

Charterad Accountants and Statutory Aucitor
Londen

4 March 2013

|




COMPANY BALANCE SHEET - UK GAAP

at 31 Decernber 2012

CLS Holdings plc

Annual Report & Accounts

2012 2011
Notes £€m £m
Fixed assets
Investrent in subsidiary undertakings 5 150 4 1337
Current assets
Trade and other recervatles & 111.7 4G 4
Cash and cash 2quivelents 112 180
Total assets 273.3 2011
Current labilities
Trade and other payables 7 (20) 19
Non-current Labilities
Berrowings 8 (92 2) {27 9)
Total labilities (94 2) {29 4)
Net assets 1791 1717
Equity
Called up share capital g 120 125
Share premiem i0 718 715
Other reserves M 263 258
Profit and loss account 1 69 3 619
Shareholders funds 1791 1717

These financial statements of CLS Holdings plc {registered number 2714781) were zpproved by the Board of Directors and autharised

for issue an 4 March 2013 and were signed an its behalf by

Mr S A Martstedt
Director W

The notes on pages 84 to 87 are an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - UK GAAP

at 31 December 2012

84

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tnese separate financial statements have been prepared under UK GAAP in accordance with applicable accounting standards
under the historical cost convention and are oresented as requirad by the Campanies Act 2006 Tne following accounting policies
have baen spplied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year unless ctherwisa stated CLS Hotdings ple is the
ulimate parent company of the CLS Holdings groug Its primary actiity {which accurs exclusively in the Urited Hingdom) 15 to hold
snares In subsidiary companies

Tne Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Campany has adequats resources « continue In operational existence for the
foreseesble future Accordingly they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual repart and accounts as
detailed in the Cirectors Report on page 32

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Tre principal accounting policies are summarisad below They have all been applied consistently throughout the year and the

precaaing year

21 Investment in Group companies
Investments are valued at cost, less orovisions for impairment If the ecuity value of the investment s lower than cost, the
valuation Is edjusted accordingly, provicea that management cansiders tnis tc be a permanent diminution in valuve Diwmdend
inceme 15 recegnised when receivec

22 Pension costs
Tne Campany cperates a defined contribution pension schame for al! eligible employees The pansion costs charged
represent the ccntributions payable Differences between contributions payable in the year and contrioutions paid are shawn
as either aceruals or prepayments in the balance sheet

23 Share capitat
Ordinary shares are classifiea as equity

Incremental costs directly at*ributable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown In equity as a deduction net of tax
from proceeds

Where a Group company purchases the Comoany s equity share cagital the consideration pad including any diractly

a tributable incremental cosis {net of iIncome taxes) (s deducted from 2quity attributzble to the owners of the Company until
the shares are cancelled reissued ar disposed of Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissuad any consideratien
received, net of any directly attributable incremental transactien costs and the related income tax effects 15 included in
equity attributable to the owners of the Company

2 4 Related party transactions

Advantage has been taken of the exemnption attowed in FRS 8 nat io misclose ransactions with entities which are wnolly
awned within the Group where consolidated accounts are publicly available

There were nc other related party transactions during the year

25 Foreign currency

Transactions In fereign currencies are recarded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction Tangible assets denominatec
in foreign currencies are shown at histerical cost Current assets and all Liabilities denominaiec 1n Toreign currencies are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of the financial year All differences are recogmised in profit before tax

PROFIT FGR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2004, the Company s profit anc loss account has not been presanted in these
financial statements The Company s retained profit far the financial year was £20 0 million (2011 £50 4 mullion)

Audit fees for the Company were £0 2 million (2011 £0 1 multion)

Details of the Dhrectors employea during the year anc of their remuneration 1s included 1n the Remuneration Report on pages 39 to 45




CLS Heldings plc

Annual Report & Accounts

TENDER OFFER BUY-BACKS

A tander ofler by way of a2 Crrcular dated 14 March 2012 for the purchase of 1 in 42 shares at 735 pence per share was completed in
Apnil lt returned £7 9 million to shareholders, equivalent to 17 5 pence per share

Atender offer by way of a Circular dated 24 August 2012 for the surchasa of 110 74 shares at 805 cence per share was completed
in September It returned £4 6 mitlion to shareholders equivalent to 10 & pence cer share

A further tender cfier will be put ta shareholders in April 2013 for the purchase of 11n 46 shares ata price of 900 pence per share
which, if approved, will return £8 5 million to shareholders equivalent to 19 6 pence per share

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

2012 2011

£m Em

At 1 January 1337 105 5
Additions 171 289
Oisposals (0 4) -
Prowision tor impairment - 7
At 31 December 150 4 1337

The Directors consider that to give full particulars of all subsidiary undertakings would lead to a statement of excessive length To
comply with the Companies Act 2004, a full Us: of subsidiaries will be filed with the Company s next annual return

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2012 2011
Em Em
Current
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 1115 4G 4
Prepayments and accrued income 02 -
117 4G 4
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2012 201
Em Em
Current
Amounts cwed to subsidiary undertzkings 01 -
Accruals . 21 21
Arrangement fees (02) (02}
20 19
BORROWINGS
2012 2011
Em Em
Unsecured bones 934 280
Arrangement fees 12 (05}
922 275

On 11 September 2012 the Grougp 1ssued £65 0 million unsecured retail bands which attract a fixed rate coupan of 5 5% and are
due far repayment 1in 2019 The boncs are listea on the London Stock Exchange s Crder beok for Retail Bonds

On 15 April 2011, the Greup issued SEK 300 miltion unsecured bonds The nonds attract a floating rate coupon of 3 7% over three
menths STIBOR and are due for reoayment in 2016 After twa years, the Group has an aption to redeem all outstanding bonds
subject to an early repayment premium The bonds were listed on the NASDAG OMX Stockholm on 5 July 2011
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - UK GAAP coninued

at 31

10

"

86

December 2012

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number
Ordinary
Ordinary Total shares in Treasury Totalardinary
shares in Treasury ardinary <irculation shares shares
crcutation shares shares Em £m £m
At 1 January 2012 44,953,611 4,803,103 49,756,714 113 12 126
Cancelled fotlowing tender offers {1,647,735) - {1,647,735) (0 5) - (0.5)
At 31 December 2012 43,305,876 4,803,103 48,108,979 108 12 120
Number
Qrdinacy
Qrdinary Total sharas in Treasury Total erdinary
shares In Trzasury crdinary cireulation shares sha-es
cireulation snares shares £Em £m Em
At 1 January 2017 46,588,244 4,793,000 51,381,244 7 12 129
Cancelled following tender oifer {1,624,530) - {1624 530) (0 &) - (04)
Purchase ot own shares
- pursuant to market purchase (10,103) 16103 - - - -
At 31 December 2011 44,953,611 4803103 49754 7i4 113 i2 125
Ordinary shares have a nominal value of 25 pence each
SHARE PREMIUM
2012 2011
Em £m
At 1 January and at 31 December 715 715
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND OTHER RESERVES
Cther reserves
Capital
redemption Profit and
reserve Other Total loss account
£m £m Em £m
At 1 January 2012 212 4 b 258 419
Purchase of own shares 05 - 05 (125)
Expenses thereaf - - - 0 1)
Profit for the year - - - 200
At 31 December 2012 217 4.4 263 693
Other reserves
Capiial
rademption Profit and
reserve Other Total  loss account
£m Em £m £m
At 1 January 2011 208 L b 254 233
Purcnase ot awn shares 04 - 04 (117
Expenses thereof - - - Qn
Profit for the year - - - 50 4
At 31 Decemcer 2011 212 1Y) 258 819
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CLS Holdings plc

Arngal Pepar & Accaints

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS

2012 20n

£m £m

Balance at 1 January 1717 1331
Profit for the year 200 50 4
Purcnase cf own shares (12 6) (118
Batance at 31 December 1721 1717

CONTINGENCIES

At 31 Decemecer 2012 CLS Holdings plc had guaranteed certain Lisbilities ot Group companies, primarily in relation to Group
barrowings and covering Interest and amortisation payments Mo cross guaraniees had been given in relation to tne principal
amounts of these norrowings Certain warranties were given in the caurse cf corparate sales during 2008 Sinca the possibility of
payment by the Company under any of these guarantees and warranties 1s considered remote no provisions in relation to these
have been made in the Company s financial statemants and no reportasle cantingent Lability exists

COMMITMENTS

At 31 Decemzer 2012, the Company had no contracted capital expenditure (2011 £nil) and no authorised financial commitments
which were yet to be cantracted with third parties (2011 £mil)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CLS HOLDINGS PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of

CLS Holdings plc for the year ended 31 Decamber 2012 which
comprise the parent company balance shest and the relatec
notas 1 to 14 The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in thesr precaration 1s aoplicable law and United Xingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Acceunting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company s members as a body n
accordance with Chapter 3 ot Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audii werk has been undertaken so that we might siate o the
Cempany s members those matters we are reguired 10 stata to
them in an suditor s report and for no other purpese To the fullest
extent permitted by taw, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Comcany and the Company s members
as a body, for our audit work for this report or for the opinions
we have formad

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors
Resoonsibilities on pages 37 and 38, the Directors are respensiole
far the presarsuon of the parent company financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur
responsibility 1s to audit and express an gpinion on the parent
company financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and international Standards cn Auciting (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us io comply with the Avaiting Practices

Board s Ethical Stancards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit invelves abtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to qive
reasonable zssurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This
includes an assessment of whether the accounting pelicies are
appropriate to the parent company s circumstances and have
been consistantly aoplied and adequately disclosad the
reasonableness of significant accounting esimales made by the
Birectors and the overall presentation of the inancial statements
Im addition we raad all the financial and non-financial information
in the annual repart to identity matenal inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements and to identify any information that
Is apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally
incensistent with, the knowiedge acquired by us in the course

of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for cur report

GPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{n cur opinion the parent cecmpany financial statements

* gve a true and fair view of the state of the parent company s
aftairs as at 31 Oecember 2012

« have been properly prepared in accorcance with Uniteg
Kingdom Generally Acceptad Accounting “ractice, and

* have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2004

88

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES
ACT 2004

In our opinion

¢ the part of the Directors Remuneration Report tc ce avudited
has teen properly prepared inaccordance with the
Companies Act 2006 and

+ the information given in the Directors Report fer the financial
year for which the financial statements are preparad s
censistent with the parent compzny financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY
EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in resgect of the following matters where
the Companies Act 2006 requires us o report to you If n cur
opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
cempany ar returns adequate for our audit have nat been
received from brancnes not visited by us or

* the parent comcany financial statements and the part of the
Directors Remunerztion Report ta be aucited are not in
agreement wiih the accounting records and returns, or

= certain disclesures of directors remuneration specified by
law are not made or

« we have not received all the inormation and exclanations we
reguire for our audn
OTHER MATTER

We have reported saparately on the group financial statements of
CLS Holdings plc for the year ended 31 December 2012

Mark Beddy (Sentor Statutary Auditor)
for and on behalf of Delaitte LLP
Charterad Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London

4 March 2013




FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

31 December 2012

CLS Holdings plc

Annual Repert & Accounts

2012 261 2010 2009 2008
Em Em £m tm £m
Graup revenue 802 801 791 763 814
Net rental income 629 &30 5% 7 577 b4 &
Income from non-property activities - G8 43 38 3¢
Administration expenses (10 5) (12N {(130) (122) (s 1
Other expenses 29 (22) (22) (33 (82)
Group revente less costs 495 4G5 48 8 460 442
Net movernents an revaluation of Investment properties 162 180 301 (67 (103 3)
{Loss)/gain en sale of corporate bonds and other invesiments (0 4) [ERs] 93 19 -
Profit on sale of iInvestment properties - - - 03 70
Profit/(loss) on sale of subsidiaries/|oint venture/zssociates - 22 - - (16 2)
Imnpatrmant of intangible fixed assets and goodwilt - - - - (22 0)
Operating profit/{loss) 653 762 g8 2 415 (90 3)
Finance income 104 122 &1 b6 87
Finance costs (25 &) {4rn 31N 321 (51H
Snare of profit/(loss) of associates after ~ax 58 30 77 25 (7 9)
Cther non-recurring costs - - - - (13
Profit/{loss) befare tax 561 377 ]9 185 (142 1)
Taxation (9 4) 11 {10 8) amn 441
Profit/{loss) for the year 467 388 60 1 174 (7R 0)
Share buy-backs paid and proposed 131 123 12 &0 590
Net Assets Employed
Non-current asseats 1,1105 1,0370 1018 & Q44 2 84691
Current assets 115 2 673 59 8 80 7 205 9
1,225.7 11043 1,078 & 1,024 9 10750
Current Labilities (172.2) (1829 (123 1) {164 3) (133 %)
Non-currant labiiiies (8636.4) (553 9) (598 ) {551 &) (402 5)
Net assets 4171 3675 357 2 3090 3384
Ratios 2012 20m 2010 20C9 2008
Met assets per share (pence) 963 1 8175 766 7 $433 S48 4
EPRA net assets per share (pence) 1,154 4 9831 $52 9 8258 498 4
Earnings/(loss) per share (pence) 106 0 820 1271 364 (12C &)
EPRA earnings per share {(pence) 653 849 425 280 284
Net gearing (%) 1M1 é 1319 130 4 147 4 1179
Adjusted net gearing (%) 9217 1093 104 6 114 8 926
Recurring interest caver (times) 3.89 263 315 208 108
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

ADMINISTRATION COST RATIO
Recurring acmimstration expenses of the Investment Froperty
aperating segment expressed as a percentage of net rental Income

ADJUSTED NET ASSETS CR ADJUSTED SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Net assets excluding the fair vaivs of financial derwvauves, deferred
tax on revaluations and goodwill arising as a result of deferred tax

ADJUSTED NET GEARING
Net debt expressed as 2 percentage of adjusted net assets

ADJUSTED SOLIDITY
Adjus.ed net assets expressed as a percentage of adjusted
total assets

ADJUSTED TOTAL ASSETS
Total assets excluding deferred tax assets

CONTRACTED RENT
Annual contracted rental income after any rent-free pericos
have expired

CORE PROFIT

Profit before tax anc tefore net maverments on revaluation of
investment properties profit an sale of investment properties
suesidiaries and corporate bonds (mpairment o intangible
assets and goodwill non-recurning costs change in fair value
of dervatives and foreign exchange variances

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit atter tax divided by tne dilutea weighted average number
of ordinary shares

DILUTED NET ASSETS
Equity shareholders funds increased by the patential proceeds from
Issuing those shares 1ssuable under employee share schemes

DILUTED NET ASSETS PER SHARE OR DILUTED NET ASSET VALUE
Biluted net assets divided by the diluted number of ordinary shares

DILUTED NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES
Nurnber of ordinary shares in circulation at the balance sheet
date zdjusted to incluce the effect of potential dilutive shares
1ssuable under employee share schemes

DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
peried adjusted to include the effec* of patential weighted average
dilutive shares 1ssuable under employee share schemes

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after tax divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares inissue in the period

EPRA
Eurcpean Public Real Estate Association

EPRA EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit after tax but excluding net gains or losses from fair value
adjustments on invesiment preperties profits or losses on disposal
of tnvestment properties and other non-currant investment
Interests, impairment oi goocwill and intangible assets,
movements in fair value of derivative financial instruments and
their related current and deferrac tax

EPRA NET ASSETS

Diluted net assets excluding the fair value of financial derwativas,
deferred tax on revaluations ana gaodwill arising as a result of
deferred tax

EPRA NET ASSETS PER SHARE
E=RA net assets diviced by the dituted number of ordinary shares

EPRA NET INITIAL YIELD

Annual passing rent less net service charge costs on Investment
properties expressad as a percentage of the investment property
valuation after adding purchasers costs

90

EFRA TOPPED UP NET INITIAL YIELD

Annual net rents an 1nvestment prooerties expressed as a
percentage of the investment property valuation arter adding
purcnasers costs

EPRA TRIPLE NET ASSETS

EPRA net assets adjusted to rerlect the fair value of debt and
dervatives and to include the fair value of deferred tax on
property revaluations

EPRA TRIPLE NET ASSETS PER SHARE
EPRA triple net assets diwded by the dituted number cf
ordinary shares

ESTIMATED RENTAL VALUE (ERY)
The market rental value of lettable space as estimated by the
Group s valuers

L1aUiD RESOURCES
Cash and short-term deposits and listed corporate bonds

NET ASSETS PER SHARE OR NET ASSET VALLE (NAY)
Equity shareholders funds divided oy the numaer of crdinary
shares in circulation at the balance sheet date

NET DEBT
Total barrowings tess liguid resources

NET GEARING
Net debt expressed as a percentage of net assets

NET INITIAL YIELD
Annual net rents on investment pronerties expressed as a
percentage of the investment property valuation

NET RENT
Contracted rent less net service charge costs

OCCUPANCY RATE
Contracted rent expressed as a percentage of the aggregate of
contracted rent and the ERV of vacant space

OVER-RENTED
Tne amount by wnich ERV falls short of the aggregate of passing
rent and the ERV of vacant space

PASSING RENT
Contracted rent before any rent-free periods have expired

PROPERTY LOAN TQ VALUE
Property borrowings expressed as a percentage of the market
value aof the property portfolio

RECURRING INTEREST COVER

The aggragate of groue revenue less costs plus share of results
cf assaciates, dwvided cy the aggregate of interes. expense and
amortisation of i1ssue costs of debt, less interest income

RENTROLL
Contracted rent

SOLIDITY
Equity shareholcers funds expressed as a percentage of total assets

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

For a given number of shares, the aggregate of the proceeds
fram tender offer buy-hacks and change in the market value of
the shares during the year acjusted for cancellations cecasioned
by such buy-backs, as a percentage of the market value of the
shares at the beginning of the year

TRUE EQUIVALENT YIELD
Tne capilalisation rate applied to futura cash flows to calculate the
gross properiy value as geterminad by the Group s external valuers
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The paper used In this report 1s producea using wood fibre from fullv sustainable
forests in Finland, Sweden Pertugal Spain and Brazil with FSC certification
The pulps used are Eternental Chlorine Free (ECF) and the manufacturing mill
1s accredited with the 1SO 14001 stancarce for enviranmentat management and
with EMAS (The EU Environmental Management and Audit System)

Designed and producad by MAGEE
www mageea co uk

Printed by Boss Print Ltd
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